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Business Model

An individual with care
requirements requires a home.

The local authority designs a care
package, identifying a care provider
and property for the individual.

The care provider is paid the full
amount for the care package and
pays rent to the Approved Provider,
or the Approved Provider is paid
the rent directiy.

The Approved Provider pays Civitas
amounts due under the lease.

What We Do

Social Housing Pioneers

CS8H s aleading provider of care-based community
housing in “he LK.

CSH beheves that access 1o a decen: home 1s a basic
human nght from which so much more can be achieved,
paricularly for people who are hving with a life-long
disability. Wirh milhons of peonle stuck on housing
waring lis:s across the L £ or rrappedan long stay
hospirals, C3E became The first public company o bring
large scale equity inves:ment in:o the secton

The Company has the dual olyjecuves of achieving both
positive financial returns and large scale measuralile
social impact.
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Our Portfolio

as at 31 March 2023
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Financial Highlights
as at 31 March 2023

How We Performed

Basic and
Diluted EPS: -42.0%

Penca

2023

Profit Before Tax
£25.5m -43.1%

ol fon

2023

44.8
noal

36.1

EPRA EPS*
4.43p -8.1%

Prnce

2023

NAV per share”
109.16p -1.0%

NAV
£661.9m -2.0%

NAV increase since
IPO* -9.5%

Ponoe mion Poroen,
2023 2023 2023
661.9
2073 2077 s

110.30 673.5 12.6
AN A oAt

108.30 673.5 10.6
Investment Dividends declared Total Shareholder
property? (Ordinary shares) Return®
£978.1m +1.0% 5.70p +2.7% -16.5%
i owon Ponice Poroen.
2023 2023 2023
0 Lo 2022

968.8 555 1ne
Eival Al G2l

915.6 8.40 26.5
¥ Alternatve Perlormance Measutes Terms are defined 1o the Glossary
1onan idinary share hetd sinee launch (pereentage not annualised)
2investment propelty independently valued See note 15 0 of the Consolidated Tinancial Stalements for detsls of the valuauon
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Key Achievements

Operational Highlights

697 oroverties £835 million
acquired nvestad-

4,594 tenants
with denendan.e
accommodat’on

bhased on
long-termi
leases signed with
19 Approved
Providers

supported by
131 care
providers

across 178 local
authority partners

The Good Economy, the social impact advisory firm, in its semi annual independent
Social Impact Report in November 2022 on Civitas, has classified Civitas’ assets

as ‘Contributes to solutions’ according to the internationally recognised Impact
Management Project IMP) dimensions of impact. TGE also notes that Civitas'
funding contributes to increasing the supply of specialist housing, easing the

burden on residential or inpatient facilities,

1 wver the e of the Company as o1 31 March 2023

Levered IRR* since IPO

I N - -

[

Share price performance (pence)

Past performande s not a tellable indicator of tuture peitormance
* Alrernanve Pertormance Measuie See Appendhix 1ior the calculaton
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CIVITAS SOCIAL HOUSING PLC
REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2023

This g our sixth Anncaal Repart, covenng “he year 1o

3" March 2023 | am pleased to report that, despite a
difficult economic hackdrep in the UX, our portfolio has
continued o perform sirongly, delivering on average a
SY increase mn rental income denved from our inflanon
adjusted leages.

Our investmen: Adviser, Civitas \nvestmen: Managemen:
amauited (CIVTY, has conunaed 1o work closely wath oar
Approved Providers fo enhance further the quah:y of the
portfolio and o assiat where needed 1n the process of
ensuaring our rental tncome 1s recetved on a mely basis,

The ne: aszes value of the Company at 31 Varch 2023 was
{0916 pence, a small decrease of 1.03% from 110,50 pence
per share as a: 3. March 2022

The 3oard declared a final dividend of 74250, bnnging
+he full year dividend o 58.70p, in hne with the minimum
stated intenton.

A chfficalr challenge dunng the year was the sharp
increase 1N interest rates. . am pleased thar in Jebruary
2023 the Company entered mto a new deb: faciliy for
£70.9m, which was pary used o repay tThe loan facmy
with lovds. [n addizion, we also fixed our interes: rame
exposire 1o provide greazer cerainty. dowever, the
overall re-financing was achleved ar a ma:enal increase
In engoing nseres: costs. Ul desails are included in the
‘nvestment Adviser's epor:.

Qur share price has been disappointing over *he year
under review, refleciing in part the broad deraung of
real estaze invesiments, higher interes: rates and mveas:or
concern abous our sector. The 3oard has been reviewing
a number of possible actions 10 address <his posinon.
The Company has contimued to buy back ghares - over
“he past 12 months 1t has acquired 6.050.00C shares at an
average of 76 89 pence per share for a to1al invesimen:
of £4 65 mihion. This has enhanced she NAY by § 30% and
benefited the P°RA earnings.

Continuation Vote

Al the annual general meeting on |5 Seplember 2027,
98.85% of those sharehalders who voted have voted in
favour of the conunuanon of the Company

Offer for the Company

rollowing the year end, on 9 May 2023 the Board
announced a recommended offer for the Company ar 80p
per share in cash, from a subsicdiary of CK Asset moldings
_mited (CKAYL

Whilst the Board believes that the Offer undervalues the
tong-rerm prospec:s of Civitas as expressed by net asse:
value, we also recognise that Civiras, and 118 sector as a
whole, faces a number of challenges in senument which
the public markets are unhkely ro overcome in the short ~o
medium erm.

The Offer provides hiquidity 10 shareholders with the
opporiumty to exitin full and 1in cash at a sigmificant
premium o the current share price, in & nime of
MacroeconOmMIC uncertamry.

Moreover, CKA, as a current investor 1n the social housing
gector has a detalled understanding of the atracnve
fundamentals of the real estate and the expertise of the
manadgement ream. C<A does not expect there 1o be

any disruption 10 enants as a result of the Offer and wnll
be focused on the conunuaton of relatonshps with
Approved “roviders, care providers and the Requlator

of Somal Housing following the compietion of the Offer.
The Board therefore considers the terms of the Offer 1o be
fair and reasonable and we have recommended 11 ‘0 our
shareholders.

Outlook

Demand for the wype of properties within the Company's
porifolio remains ssrong wrh mmdependen’ forecas:s
predicang that there will he conunued growth for

many years 10 come 1n the need for addrional amrs

of adapied accommodarnon. The Board remains
confiden: in the sirength of the porfolio and 173 potennal
reverile genarasion.

Michael Wrobel

Chatrman

28 June 20723
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Our Portfolio
By UK Region as at 31 March 2023

g 15§
3l 82 5=
seamwest 120 133 143 ®
London 26 128 13.8 L)
# west Midlands T 13 16
i Yorkshire and the Humber 96 jo:h 107
Wales 34 1.0 106
North West 0 100 1041
South East 65 101 9.8
East Midlands o 58 86 8.8
Neorth East S 64 58 6.4
l East of England -32 4.0 3.9

Market Value (%)

-

£978.I1m
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London
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697 properties

Tenancies
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Our Portfolio

By Approved Provider as at 31 March 2023

Annualised Contracted Rent Roll (%)
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Investment Adviser’s Report

In thégrear to March 2023, CIM continued to work closely?)vith the Board to manage
a high-performing portfolio.

Portfolio
40% of residents living in Civitas propetties receive over 50 hours of care per week.
High acuity portfolic
Provide homes to those who need long-term quality accommodation
Largest porifolio of $8H th England & Wales
Premium Fitch rating retained at "A” secured and "A-" unsecured
Average rental growth of c.5%

Social Impact
14599 Tigh-aguahty

mllion savir N public parse

e largeting

e Contmaed acees ygquverniment gran: fundineg sour
& Clargstrgg minmam © by

Highly Experienced Team
managemean iedm & b o work with and a

ur Approved Providers have
ms from:

Commissioning of care

1 Suurce The Gond Econemy Civitas Somal leusing PLEC Annual Tmpact Report 2021 June 2021



Introduction

Civitas ‘nvesimen: Managemern: _imted ("C/ M7 s the investment Adwviser to Civitas Socal =mousing PLC{"CSE™} and 1s

the leading provider of care-bazed housing in the LK C'M comprises a team of 39 individuals with a range of experase
n specialist suppored housing, real estate management and complex care needs CI'V has ~he capaciry and specialist
knowledge t¢ manage the C5H poriffolio at a granular level and has culuvated sirong professional relationships across

“he sector over the las: decade.

Overview of Results

n the U prior 1o the launch of the Company, equity

and private caprtal played a very gmall parT in the social
housing sector. Over 1me, UK demographics changed and
<he number of aduls with long-rerm. complex care needs
has been sreadily ncreasing.

Thig 18 reflecred in a number of ms:itunonal investors
mncluding aspects of social housing within their
INVestment siraegies.

Results Highlights

e 3ix years of consisten: rental growth and progressive
chiwvidend paymen:s tha: have increased from anamnal
3.00p per share to 5./0p per share for the yvear ended
31 March 2023

e Aretamed high-guality invesimen: credit rating from
-1rch Ratings of A secured and A- unsecurad since
March 2021, which CSE was the firs? 1o secure in
“his sector.

e Anacuvely managed portfoho of operastonal real
estate with a sector-leading ream of professionals
assisung and enabling high quahty and longevity of
homes and income.

e Orofessional suppor: 1o enable Approved 2roviders o
enhance the quatity of their delivery and demonstraze
long-term financial and operational inmdependence.

e Targeung investmen:s and homes which enable
-he delivery of higher end care as this 1s where the
greatest need exists and where the apphcabilizy of
exemprt rents 1s clearly demonsrazed.

e Anactive and continuing programme working
with Z.ON 1o permanenly reduce carbon emissions
across the porifolho. leading to lower energy cos:s for
residents and a more carbon newrral parfoho

e Sector-leading partnerships with nauonal and local
charies delivering real change and continuing o
enhance CSH'e reputanon as the mos: experienced
imvestor in social infrastractire in the L4

e (I has a highly experienced asse” managemen:
ceam which has overseen some £25 million of physical
improvemen:s to the poriffolio since wmcep:ion. largely
paid for by the vendors of the properties.

Sector-Leading Social Outcomes
ESG

ur 558G Pohcy s located ar wwwoelvitassocialhousmg.com.
t provides an overview of the Company's inves:men:
procedures and sets out the 3oard’s commuiment 1o a
CONNJoUS improvemen: process in 118 approach o
S5Gniegratiorn,

ESG Rating Providers

C'M engages with the leading =5G raung providers to
set out the activinies tha: are undertaken by CS=2 and

0 ensure these are profiled and evaluated correcily.
Notably, active participation in the 2022 GRESB Pabhc
Disclosure Assessment has resulied in C3= retaining

an A score previoasly attained in 2027, whilst the peer
group average score has moved up o B C5H isup

0 second position within 11s Companson Group (UK
Residennall. Meanwhile, the Risk Rating Score for C5= by
Sustamnalyucs remains at 4.8 (Low Risk) as was reported
1 Febiraary 2023,
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Investment Adviser’s Report
Continued

The latest iIndependen: repor: by The Good Zconomy
on C8H was published in November 2022 and notes
CEH's continued progress in delivering measurable
social impact. Social vahiae analysis by The Good
Economy, carried out in March 2621, found that, overall,
the portfolio generated £.27 milhien of social value

per year, inclading fiscal savings to public budgets of
£759 million per year.

Of particular nowe with respect to the portfoho:

. % of CSH's 697 properties have been brought o
the specialist housing sector for the firs: ume

e SH continues reqular engagement with 1ts Approved
Providers 1o moniior the quality of 118 stock

s ‘'mprovement works have enhanced the energy
efficiency of homes

e 87% of respondents to the survey of residents carrned
out by CVn March 2021 reported that they were
satighed with the quality of thelr home

s CSH Approved Provider partners have reported 99%
statutory comphance — considerably berter than the
wider affordable housing sector.

Environmental: Carbon Reduction/
Energy Cost Savings

C M conunues to work with =.ON (a leading U< energy
and solutions company) under a nanional framework
agreement in parnership with €55 tenan:s, 1o iimprove
‘he environmental performance of he porifolio ‘the
"fabnic firs:approach o reducing the porifolio’s
carbon foopnnt includes the ins:allation of cavity wall
insulanon Ioft insulauon, external wall Insulatnon, air
source heat pumps and solar 2V and barttery storage o
idenified properties within the porifoho. The ins:allation
of these energy efficien: measures, unlising availlakle
governmen: gran:s and other funding sources, will
opumise value for the Company, our counterparties
and our shareholders The collaboration with 0N s
dehvering sigmifican® environmeantal enhancemen:s
without any cos: o our Approved roviders

The Phase 2 rerrofit surveys will help *o refine the
mmplementation programme and 1dennfy the bes:
method for reducing the o1al carbon dioxide

emissions {and fuael cosis) associated with individual
properties over the medium or long term. The overall
energy performance of the porifolio, as1denified

on znvirconmen:al Yerformance Ceraficazes ("52C7)
reportsg data has improved over the las? 12 months, The
proporaon of properues with =2C Rating A C1s currently
c.55% and the carbon foowpsnn: {estimated from propery
characzenstics! has reduced by 2% per Civiias tenancy
(from 2,63 onnes of CO fenancy in March 2022 -0

2.6 tonnes of CO /ftenancy). The whole social housing

sector, and indeed the whole housing sector, coninues
10 require significant public invesiment if 1t is to mee: the
current government guidelines on achieving net 7ero
carbon emssions by 205C.

Government Policy and Regulation
Reforming the Mental Health Act

Cuarrent mental health legislation resul's in many people
with meantal heal:h 1ssues or learning disabihty needs being
detamed in large institutions that are often inappropnate
for :he individuals. Ttis estimated by NHS Digital that there
was a rise in anndal menzal health detentions from 45,861 1n
2016/20°7 10 over 83239 1n 2020/202L

Once people are seciioned 1IN0 an Ns1nUton 0 becomes
very difficult and cos:ly 10 move them 1inzo a suppored
ing community sering.

As a result of these concerns, the Governmen: commissionad
an mdependent body chaired by Professor Sir Simon
Wessley in 2017 Currently in drafs form in the Eouses

of Parliamen, the Mental Health Reform Ac: seeks to

raise the threshold for deraiming people with a learmng
disabihty and/or aanusm unless they have a coexisting
psychuame disorder

We believe that This Act will drive even more demand for
communiy housing and care sertings which are already in
shor: supply, furher securing the value and impor:ance of
“he C38H portfoho.

The C8H portfoho will further benefit from the following
broader marke: dynarmics:

Social Housing Regulation Bill 2023

The overall regulaton of social housing 1s under review
with the main obiective of dehvenng transformational
change for social housing residents and fulfiling -he
Governments 2079 manifes:o pledge ‘o "empower residen's,
provide greater redress, better regulation and improve the
craahy of sooal housing™

The imphcation of this review for C8H's por-folio s
expacted to be positive as i aims 10 bring landlords closer
10 therr ~enants and more focused on addressing their
needs quickly Our Approved ?rowviders are very close 1o
their residents needs and work 1n parnership with care
rroviders (o ensure good cquality service ouscomes, all
supported by the granular asse: management provided by
C ™ every day.



Investment Adviser’s Report
Continued

Supported Housing (Regulatory Oversight) Bill

This bill. which 1g under review. seeks o improve

the regulauon and outcomes of supporied exempt
accommaodanon. This follows repored cases, particularly
of temporary housing. tha: should no: qualify as

exemp: accommaodation.

Financial Review

As at 31 March 2023 the Net Asset Value of the Company was
£66.9 million, being 10926 pence per share, a .03% decrease
on the 70.30 pence per share at 37 March 2022, A net

fair valile gain on mvestmen: properues of £2.6 million

12022 £22.5 mullion) was recorded in the year

Operational cash flows increased moderately 1o

£295 rmllion (2622 £39.1 rmilion). Ongoing ren:al collections
‘hroughous the year suppored the Company's healthy
operanng cash flows despre furher increases to the cos: of
debt as all facilines were put onto a fixed basis.

Rental Growth and Dividend

The porfolio generazed renial income (excluding
any insarance and service charge rechargeables)
of £531 mullion. represening ¢.5% increase over the
corresponding pernod last year.

The contracied ren: roll now increases through indexanon
only as no new eqaity has been raised and therefore no
new imves ments have been made in the period.

During “he year, the Company declared and pand four
dvidend distnbunons inclading one drvidend of T 3875
and threes ingzalmenss of 242500,

Debt Fixing and Reducing Risk

C. M arranged the following debt facihties which fixes deb:
on “he por:folio ar an average rate of £92% untl Augus: 2024
as 1s pmdeni IN the CUrren: Mnerest rate environmean:.

Remaining
Term at Lean
31 Mar 23 Principal
L ENA&YR e _ racnuay yrears) _ EDLw Abln rate
Scorish Widows Fixed 4.59 52.500 2.99%
De.sche Bank Fixed 1.85 70875 5.69%
AC, London
Branch
HISBC Fixed by 267 10G.000 4.50%
[nteres:
ramo canp
Na:Wos: Fixed by 1.38 5C.0C0 2.6C%
In:eres:
ra.e swap
M&C Fixed 491 84.550 3.14%
3.92%

3.67 367,925

We have recerved terms from lenders 1o refinance the
Natwes: facihsy which s due to expire in Amagas: 2024

Governance

C.v coninues (0 engage acively with the Company’s
Approved Provider parners and care providers, offering
adwvice and shared teaming.

The Board. comprniged of five independen: non-executive
Directors, carnes out an annual 3eard performance
evaluation exercise and hoss penodic strategy sessS10ns
i addinion 1o regular planned 3ocard meenngs

Summary

CIV continues o closely and proachvely asset manage
the larges: poridfoho of specialis: care-hased housing in
the UK.

There is demonsirable demand in excess of supply
and significan: further legisiation thatis hkely o
coniinue to increase demand for the properties in ~he
Company'’s porfolio.

We contnue to underiake our work with a view 0 both
enhancing the value of the porffolio and protecing the
inserest of our underlying tenants

Civitas Investment Management Limited
nvestment Adviser

28 Tune 7023
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Asset Management Initiatives

The Asset Managemen: Team understand the value of a good home. With nearly 100 yvears' experience between them
working in the housing field, there 1s a o7 of knowledge we can share.

As par: of our acave asse: management of :he CSH por:folio. we work with and support our partners tackling 1ssues and
finding solutions o help sus:ain the tenancies of the most vulnerable people hving in our homes.

A recent example of this was with Cole Street and Jampden oad. These properues are managed by Trninity Housing
Asgsociation and are popular properiies with long standing residenss. Fowever, Tninity had struggled 1o meet 118 housing
benefi: potential. Officers from he team worked closely with Trinty and suppored them to put the informanoen and
evidence together for inbunal Trinity won the tnbunal and the maner was resolved with a full backdate and rent
agread. This was a great result for the team and for the tenants at the schemes

Case Study

York Mews, Clacton-on-Sea

A detached two storey block of seven self-conained flatg
constructed arcund the 1950s. Some external works wers
wdentified as being required and a review was underiaken

Before } After

at “he asse:. Assessmen: repor:s obiained sugges:ed Has 2
that replacing he heaters within the flats and other

minor works would improve the energy efficlency and. a3
N MOosT cases, improve the EPC ratings at the same ime. Ma: 4
We therefore tendered a programme of works over two

phases — the first phase just before the previous Winter Ma:t 5

penod to replace the exigiing heazers with ligh hear
retenton storage heaters — the second phase during the
following Spring/Sumrmer period was 0 undertake “he Flaz 7
exiernal works o remove the existing render, teplace and
decoraze somprove the extenor of the buillding.

CIVITAS SOCLAL HOUSING PLC
RLPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2023
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Corporate Social Responsibility Report

Sustainability

The business model of the Company 1s w0 provide long-
serm suitable homes for individuals with care needs;
acing in a sustainable manner 1s key ‘o achieving

shis aim. Properies thar are owned by the Company
are taillored to meet the future needs of the tenan's
and. where required, are acuvely asse: managed

10 provide long-term funchionahty and valde 1o the
wider community.

Environment

During the investment due diligence phase, the Company
looks closely at the environmenial impac: of each
potenial acquisiuon, and encodrages a sustaimnable
approach for maintenance and upgrading propersies.
Through collaborating with speciahst developers and
vendors, the high siandards the Company expects from
each investment 1n the care-based housing sector 18
adopted by other compames in the sector

Onee within the porifolio, the properties of the Company
are actively managed. and the 'nveziment Adwviser
assesses whether there are opportunities 0 improve the
environmental efficiency of the properaes, in addiiion o
other asser management ininasives. The Company has an
Environmen:, Social and Governance Policy which can be
found cn the Company's website This goes into further
detaill abour the Company's ESG approach and how 1t
iniegrates with invesumnen: straseqy. Further details on the
Company's =5G approach ¢an also be found on pages 37
0 46,

The Scard has considered he requirements 1o disclose
“he annual gquanty of emmssions: further detail on thig s
mncluded in the Repaort of the Direciors on page 52

Diversity

The Company does not have any employees or office
space and, as sach, the Company does no: operate a
diversity policy with regards to any admimstranve and
managemen: funclions.

Whilst recognising -he impornance of divergity in the
boardroom, the Company does nos consider 17 *o be

n the interest of the Group and 11s shareholders to set
prescnpave diversity criiéna or ;arge:s. The 3oard has
adopted a diversiy policy 1in respec: of appoinimen:s

0 be made ¢ the Board and will contunue 10 montor
dwversity. taking such steps as 1t considers appropriaze
t0 main:ain I's posinen as a merocratic and diverse
business. The 3oard’s objecuve 1s 10 mainiain effecuve
decision making. mcluding ~he impac: of succession
planning. All Board appoin:mens:s will be made on mern:
and have regard o diversity regarding faciors such as
gender, ethmclry. skills. background and experience
This includes Director appoimntments o the Audi and
Managemen: zngagemern: Commiites and Nomnaion
and Remunerauon Commiztee. See Corporate Governance
Sratement on page 5b.

The Board comprnses three male and two

female non-execunve Directors. Throughout the year,
the Company complied with the Hampton-Alexander
Review's target of a minimum 33% representanon of
wornern on ['TSE 350 boards.

The 3o0ard 18 aware of the recommendanons of the
Parker Review, which will be taken into consideration as
par: of the Board's succession planmng. See Corporate
Governance Statemen: on page Hb,

‘The Board of Jirectors of the Company’s subsidianes.
which are non-operatonal, each comprise one female
and up o four male Directors.

Human Rights

Given the Company's turnover for the year under review,
1t now falls within the scope of the Modern Slavery

Act 20°5 The Company published its modern slavery
statemen: on 22 Sepiember 2021

‘I'ne Board s sansfied thart, to the best of its knowledge.
‘he Company's principal adwisers, which are histed in
“he Company Informanon section, comply with “he
provisions of the UK Modern Slavery Act 20°5.

The Company's business 1s solely in the UK and therefore
18 considered 1o be low nsk with regards to human
rights abuses.

Community and Employees

The Company's proper:ies enable the provision of care
-0 some of the most vulnerable people in the commumry,
ensurnng safe and secure accommodation, tallered o
meet individual care needs. The Company has increased
-he provision of care-based housing. bnnging new
supply ro rhe sector and providing homes o over 4500
people. All of the Company's properues enable the
provision of high levels of care, generating local jobs and
helping o suppor: local economias.

The Company has no employees and accordingly no
requIrament to separately repor: on this area.

The ‘nvesimen: Adwviser 1s an equal opporunitues
employer who respec:s and seeks 10 empower each
individual and :he diverse culiures, perspeciaves. skills
and experiences within its workforce.



Section 172 (1) Statement and Stakeholder Engagement

Overview

The Directors’ overarching dury 1s to act in good faith and
g way that 1s mos: likely 1o promote the success ot the
Company as set outin secion 172 of the Companies Act
2C06. 'n doing so, Directors must take 1nto consideration
the mmterests of the vanous stakeholders of the Company,
the impac: the Company has on the community and the
environmert:, take a long-term view on consequences

of ‘he decisions they make, as well as aim to maintain a
reputation for high standards of business conduc: and
fair treatmen: between the members of the Company.

ralfilling thas dusy naturally suppor:s the Company

In achleving s investmen: objective and helps ‘o
ensure that all decisions are made in a responsible and
sustainable way. 'n accordance with the requiremen:s
of the Companies (Miscellanecus Repornng) Regulanons
20°8, the Company explains how rhe Jirectors have
discharged theu dalies ander section 772 below.

To ensare thatthe Mreciors are aware of, and
understand, thetr ditties, they are provided with “he
pertinent informanon when they firgT join the Board

as well as receving regular and ongoing updates and
traming on the relevan: matters. induction and acceass
<o sraming 15 provided for new 2irecrors They also
have continued access 10 the advice and services of
the Company Secretary and, when deemed necessary,
the irectors can seek independen: professional advice
a: the Company's expense The Schedule of Vaters
Reserved for the 3oard, as well as the Terms of rReference
of 1ts commutzees, are reviewed regularly and further
descnibe Directors responsilzilicies and obhganons and
include any statatory and regulatory dunes. The Aadn
and Managemen! "ngagemen: Committee has the
responsibiliry for the ongoing review of the Company's
risk management sysiems and internal controls and,
rothe extent thatthey are applicable, nisks related o
the matters set our In section 772 are included 1n the
Company's nisk reqister and are subjec: o penodic and
recralar reviews and monronng.

Long-term Success

The srateqgy of the Company can ke found on pages

26 10 29. Any devianon from, or amendment to. that
swrategy 18 subject 1o Board and, if necessary. shareholder
approval. The Company’s business model, which can be
found on page 26, provides that the 3oard considers the
long-zerm consequences of 175 invesimen: decisions.

The Company grants long-zerm leases, generally 20 years
n length, to 178 tenants. The Company seeks 1o mainiain
lasung relationships with its tenanss and sappor:s 1ts
tenants In adaptling properies 1o mee: their needs,
particularly improving and enhancing properies. "urther
detalls can be found on pages 3710 16

Stakeholders

A company's stakeholders are normally considered to
compnse 11s shareholders, 178 employees, I's CURTOMATS
and 1ts supphers as well as the wider commuanity in
which the company operates and impacts. The Company
15 different in that as an mvesiment ris: 1o has no
employees and, 1n terms of supphers, the Company
recelves professional services from a numizer of differen:
providers, principal among them being the nvestmens
Adviser,

Through regular engagement with s stakeholders,

the 3pard aims ‘o gain a roanded and balanced
unders:anding of the impac: of s decisions. feedback
from s:takeholders 1s gathered by the nvestmen: Adwiser
in the first instance and communicazed to the 3card 1n 13s
regualar quarterly meelings and otherwise as required.

The impor-ance of stakeholders 1s taken into acecount

a: every 3oard meeung, with discussions imvolving
careful consideration of the longer-term consedquences
of any decisions and sheir implicatons for stakeholders,
The following secnon explamns why these stakeholders
are considered of importance to the Company and the
actions taken to ensure that their interests are taken 1Into
account by the 3oard as part of 1ts decision making.
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Section 172 (1) Statement and Stakeholder Engagement

Continued

Our stakeholders

Key areas of interest

Shareholders
Continued
shareholder
support and
engagemen: are
crisical to the
existence of the
business and the
delvery of the
long-term strategy
' cf the business.
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e Current and
future finanaal
performance on
both a NAV and
share price basis

s Strategy and
business model

e Corporate
governance

e ESG performance
and sustainability

e Chimate Change

s Dividend

How we engade

The Board we.comes sharenolders’ views and places great imporiance

on communica:ion with the sharenolders of tne Company. The Board is
responsible for tne content of communicaton regarding corporae issues
and for communicating its views to snareholders. The Board aims o ensure
that sharenolders are provided with sufficient information 1o understand
the risk/reward balance o which hey are exposced by the nolding of

shares in the Company. Active engagement witn shareholders is carried out
‘hroughout the year and regular communication is undertaken 1o ensurc that
ney understand the performance ol ine business. The Board is committed
10 maintaining open channe's of communication and 1o engaging witn
sharcho.ders in a manner waich they find most meaningful. in erder to gain
an understanding of the views of snareholders. These channels include

Annual General Meeting - The Company welcomes and encourages

arendance. voling and participation from shareno:ders at the AGM. at which

shareholders have the opport.nity 1o meet the RDirectors and [Investment i
Adviser and 1o address guestions o them direc.y. The Investment Adviser

atlends the AGM and provides a presen:alicn on ne Group's performance and

its future ouwtioox. The Company va.ues any feedback and questions it may

receive [rom sharcholders anead of and during the AGM and :akes action.

as appropriate. The Board was pleascd (o note that all resolulions proposcd at

the Company's AGM on 15 Seprember 2022 were approved by shareno.ders.

Publications - The AnnuJal Report and Half-Year Resul's are made avaianle

on the Company's wepsite These reports provide shareholders with a clear

anderstanding of the Group's porifo.io and financial position. In addition o e

Annua. and Half-Year Reports, reguliarly updated information is available on

the Company website. including quarterly facisneerts. ey policies, the invesior

relations policy and deialls of ine invesimen: property porfolio. Feednack and/

or questions :ne Company receives from ne sharcho.ders help the Company ,
evolve its reporiing aiming to render the Teporis and updates ransparent and

Jndersiandable.

Shareholder meetings - Sharcho.ders are aple 1o meet with the Invesiment
Adviser and the Company's Joint Brokers throughout tne year and tne Invesumen:
Adviser provides information on the Company on the Company's websre.
Fecdiack from al. sharenolder meetings wi'a the Invesiment Adviser and/or the
Ioin: Brokers. and shareho’ders vicws. are shared with the Board on a reguiar
pasis. The Chairman and oiner members of the Board, including :ne Senior
Independent Director and Chair of the Audit and Managemcnt Engagemen:
Committec, are available 1o meet with shareho.ders to wndersiand neir views on
governance and the Company's performance where they wish (o do so.




Section 172 (1) Statement and Stakeholder Engagement

Continued

Qur stakeholders
Shareholders
Continued
shareholder
suppoert and
engagement are
critical 10 the
exigtence of the
business and the
dehvery of the
long-term stratecy
of the business,

Key areas of interest

Current and
future financial
performance on
both a NAV and
share price basis
Sirategy and
business model
Corporate
governance

ESG performance
and sustainability

Clima:e Change
Omidend

liow we engage

Shareholder concerns - The Board ¢gives due consideranon to matiers

raised by shareholders. In the event shareholders wish 10 raise 1ssues or
concerns with the 3oard or the ‘nvestment Adwviser, they are welcome to
write 1o the Company a: the registered office address set ou: on page 131

n line with increasing shareholder focus on Environmenztal. Social and
Governance ("8G matters, the Board requests regular updates from the
investment Adviser. The Board re:ains overall responsibility for ESG issues
and the Company's operational performance. Implementaion of ESG
matters are under:aken by the Investment Adviser on behalf of the Board.

turthermore, 25G reporting has been disclosed on pages 37 10 46 in the
Annual Report and the Board is open o discussion with shareholders on
this topic if requested.

Investor relations updates — The 3oard regularly monzttors the
shareholder profile of -he Company. With the majonty of shareholders
being a combination of institutional investors and private chen: brokers,
the Board receives regular updates on mvestors' views and atutudes
from the Company's Brokers and the nvesiment Adviger. The results of
these meeungs are reported to the Board as part of the formal reporting
underzaken by both the Investment Adviser and Brokers.

Included 1n the Repor: of the Directors on page 5. are details of
substantial shareholdings in the Company.

On a regular basis (sometimes weekly) and a: Board meenngs, the
Directors recelive updates from the Company's Brokers on the ghare
rrading acrivity, share price performance and any shareholders’ feedback.
as well as an update from the Company’s [nvegior Relanons adviser,
Buchanan, and the Investment Adwviser on any publicaiions or commen:s
by the press. 'To gain a deeper understanding of the views of 1ts
shareholders and potential investorg, the Investment Adviser mainiains
regular coniact with them and also undertakes investor roadshows.

Any relevant feedback 1s taken into accoun: when Directors dlscuss any
possible fundraising or the future dividend policy.

Following the year end. the Board recommended an offer 1o shareholders
of 8C pence for each share held in the Company from Wellness Unity
Timited {a wholly owned subsidiary of £ Asset Holdings Limited). During
‘he Takeover Offer process, the 3oard engaged with sharehoelders and
recelved their views on the Takeover Offer which 17 zook into account
during 1ts discussions. I'urther informaton on the Board's decision in
relation to the Takeover Offer can be found on pages 245 and 52
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Section 172 (1) Statement and Stakeholder Engagement

Continued

Curstakeholders

Xey areas of interest

Investment .
Adviser

Hdolding the
Company's shares
offers investors

an investment
vehicle through
which they can
obtain exposure

10 the Companv's
portfolio of hd
properties. The
Investment

Adviser’s
performance -
15 critical for

the Company

ta successfully
deliver 1ts
nvestment

strategy and

meet 178 objective

<0 provide
shareholders

with an atracrive
lavel of iIncome,
rogether with

the potenual for
capital growth.

Other service .
providers
:norder o
funciion as a REIT
with a premium
hsting on the
~ondon Sock
=xchange, the
Company relies on
a diverse range of
reputable advisers
for support

In meeting

all relevant
obhiga:ions.

Curren: and
future financial
performance

Shared
commercial
objectuves with
the Company
Operational
excellence
Long-term
development of
its business and
resources

=5G performance
and sus:ainability

Current and
future financial
performance

Shared
commercial
objectives with
‘he Company

Operanional
excellence
ong-ierm
developmen:
of the service
providers’
businesses

Sustamnabilizy

How we endage

The asse: management of the Company's por:folio 1s delegated to

the Investment Adviser, which manages the assets in accordance

with the Company's cbhjecuves and policies. At each Board meeting,
repregentatuves from the Investment Adviser are in artendance 1o present
reporg to the Directors covering the Company's current and future
activities, portfolio of agsets and 115 investment performance over the
preceding period.

Mantaining a close and construcuve working relationship with the
mvestment Adviser 1s crucial as the Board and the Invesiment Adviger
both aim 10 continue to achieve consistent lang-term renrns in line
with the Company's investment objective. Important componernts of the
culture of both the Company and the Investment Adwviger are:

operating 1n a fully supportuve, co-cperative and open environment
and maintaming cngoing communicaion with the Board between
formal meetings;

e encouraging open digcussion with the Investment Adwviser, allowing
sime and space for onginal and 1nnovative thinking,

¢ recognising that the im:erests of stakeholders and the ‘nvestmen:
Adwiser are for the moes: par: well aligned, adopting a tone of
constructive challenge;

e drawing on Board members individual expenence and knowledge 10
suppor the nvestment Adwiser in 135 monitoring of and engagemen:
with other stakeholders; and

s willingness o make the 3oard members expenence availlable 1o
suppor: the ‘nvestment Adwiser in the sound long-term developmen®
of 17s busimess and resources, recognising that the long-term health
of the Investment Adviser 1s in the interests of shareholders in the
Company.

The Company's main functuons are delegated 0 a number of service
providers, including the Administrator, the Company Secrezary, the AirM,
*he Regnstrar, the Corporate Brokers and the Jepositary, each engaged
under separate comntracts. The Board maintains regular contac: with its
key external providers and receives regular reporting from them. both
*hrough the Board and Committes meetings, as well as cusside of the
regular meeting cycle. Their advice, as well as their needs and views,
are rouunely taken into accoun: Through 1is Auch: and Management
Engagement Commaiitee, the Board formally assesses their performance,
fees and continuing appomtment at least annually 1o ensure that the
key service providers continue o funcion ar an accepable level and
are appropriately remunerated to deliver the expected level of service.
The Audr and Managemen: sngagement Commitiee also reviews and
evalua:es the control environmen: in place at each key service provider.
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Continued

Qur stakeholders

Care providers

Tenants

Key ateag ol interest

How we engage

Current

and tuture
perfarmance
Welfare of
tenants

Lease obligations
Voiud
managerment

Greater
independence

Maimntaimng high
level of care
‘mproved
personal
OUICOMes

At the outset 1t 18 imporiant to note that the Company does not have

any legal or operational responsibility for the dehvery of care in the
properides within the portfoho. Eowever, the Board and the Investmen:
Adviser have taken the view that they wish to have a dezailed
undersianding of the delivery of care and the interaction with the major
care providers who deliver this care. Accordingly, the Investment Adviser
maintains an active dialogue with many of the care providers o build
constructive and informed relancnships.

At the same ume, as part of transaction due dihigence a the ume of
acquisition of properties, “he Investmen: Adviser undertakes due
dihgence with respect 1o ‘he operational and financal performance of
all care providers who are proposed to deliver care mnto the parucular
properties, This inchades the financial standing of the care provider, its
CQC rating and “he nature of the SLA agreemen: covering voids between
“he care provider and the Approved Provider,

The [nvesiment Adviser 1s noted as having demonstrated considerable
experise and understanding of the care taking place within 1's
properties.

long-erm care needs within a communuty setunyg with the specific
aim of achueving betrer personal cutcomes and independence for the
indrnduals.

The sector in which the Company operases 1s regarded as having
achieved significant success in delivering these posiive ouscomes
compared o long-term older style remote instiutional care.

On a regular basis, members of the Investment Adwviser visi: properties
accompamed by Approved Provider and care provider parners -o see
first hand the naure of the housing and care provision that 1s being
delvered. Whils: this process has slowed as a result of the pandemic,
the ‘nvestmen: Adviser has continued to engage with 11s tenants. This
15 supporied by the regular Approved Provider seminars at which the
wellbeing of tenantg 1s digcussed 1in detail

In addinion, the Company underakes residen: case studies and surveys
through careful and considered interaction via the care provider te
assess the posiive impac: our properties and associated specialised care
have had on the individual and their wellbeing.
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Continued

Qur siakeholders

App:;)ved
Providers

Regulatofwof
Social Housing
(RSH)

Key areas of interest

How we engage

e Current
and fuwnre
performance

e Sustainability

¢ Compliance
and property
management

e  Welfare of
tenants

e ease obligasions

s [inancial and

operaional
viaivy

* QGovernance

e Compliance with
heal:h and safey,
and regulatory
standards

e Safery and
wellbeing of
underlying
tenants

The Company's Approved Provider partners are an important part of the
investment model as the responsibility for collection of housing benefit
and subsequent paymen: of rent, the maintenance of the properties
under the full repainng and insuring leases and, mostimpertan:ly, the
safeguarding of the underlying tenants through the above means, lies
with the Approved Providers,

The Investment Adviser warks closely with the Company's Approved
Provider pariners to improve standards and governance and 1o introduce
pracuces and procedures that make the Company's investment processes
ever more robust,

‘The invesiment Adwviser has a regular open dialogue with the Approved
Provider pariners. haising monthly on comphance, health and safety,
maintenance and future-proofing schemes, as well as hosting quarierlty
serminars to discuss curren: thernes/trends affecting the sector and to
troubleshoot. This serves as an opportanity to bhuld relatonships and
share bes: pracuce.

The ‘nvestment Adviser ig supponed by the establishmens of The Social
Housing Family CIC, a not-for-profis community inzerest company
operated independently of the Company whose stated aim 15 10 enable
Approved Providers holding the Company's leases 10 increase skills and
experience and 0 provide funding to promorte enhanced performance.
Mermbership is open 10 any Approved “rovider that holds Civitas ieases
and the effec: of membership 1s 1o ransfer ownership of the Approved
?rovider 1o the social housing family. Auckland Homes Solutions was the
first Approved Provider to join and has now recruited a very expenenced
and senior execunve team and board of management. Qualitas
community benefit society has also joined the CIC.

The Company 1s not itself regulated by the 254, bus it 1s important 0
maimtain ocpen and regular dialogue o ensurs that the Company and the
RSH are working together to improve ‘he sector.

The nvesimen: Adviser has a reqular and ongoing dialogue with the RSH
and with the Approved Provider partners regulated by the RSE.

The Company also pablishes responses to the regulaory judgements of
the RSE regarding the Approved ?roviders working with the Company as
part of the RSE's general review of Approved Providers engaged n the
provision of property services for vulnerakle people as announced

mn May 20°8 This demonsirates the Company’s desire ‘o malnan a
dialogue with the 5= and its desire 10 see thar the posimons improve
where needed.
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Continued

Dur slakeholdets

Xay areas of inlerest

Other requlatory
autllivtilies

The Company can
only operate with
‘he approval of

1ts regulators who
have a legiumae
mnteres: in how
“he Company
operaes in the
marke: and treats
1ts shareholders.

Local authorities e

Lenders
Availability of
funding and
ligudity are
crucial o the
Company’s ability
to take advan:tage
of investmen:
opportunities as
they anse

Comphance
with gratutory
and regulatory
recuITements

Governance
based on best
practice guidance

Setter reporting
10 shareholders
and other
s:akeholders

Provision of
safe and secure
properties of a
high quality
Sustamabihty
for leng-term
placemen:s

Current and
future financial
performarnice of
the business

Openness and
ransparency
Proacrive
approach o
communication

Operational
excellence

How we engage

The Company regularly considers how it meets various regulazory and
statutory obhigatoens and tollows voluntary and best pracuce guidance,
and how any governance decisions it makes can have animpact on

1's shareholders and wider stakeholders, both in the shorter and 1in the
longer-term.

The Board receives quarterly regulatory complance monitoring updates
from the Investment Adviser.

The Board recerves quarterly comphance updazes from the AIPM regarding
rhe Company's compliance with iis investmen: policy and the Investmen:
Adwvisers complhance with the ‘nvestment Managemen: Agreement.

The Board also has access to the advice of the Company Secretary who
provides updates and advice on regulatory, stanitory and governance
ma:ers for consideranon by the Board at 17s quanerly meetings and as
and when reguired.

Iz ig importan: for the Company to build and maintain relationships with
local authontes as they have an imporntan: role inidenufying areas
of high demand. agreeing rents and referrals to the Company's asset

managemern: inittatves.

The Company will engage with the local authority commissioner erther
direc:ly, or through specialist consuliants, Approved Provider and care
provider partners as part of the Company's due diligence o ensure that
each property being acqutired has been commissioned by the relevant
local authonty and that ren: levels have been discussed and agreed.

The Company has arranged debt facilhities from a wide range of lenders
and engages with these on a regular basis through regular meeungs and
presentations o ensure they are informed on all relevan: areas of the

busimess. The contsnual dialogue helps to support the credi: relanionships.

The Company has reatfirmed 1:s ‘nvestment Grade Figh Credit Quality
Raung from ritch Ranngs Limited of "A" (senior secured) and a ".ong-Term
10R {ssuer Default Rating) of ‘A-"with a Stable Outlook.

This will enable the Company 0 pursue 1ts sirategy i relation o debt
funding, in addinon o continuing 1o work with the Company's exisung
lenders, with whom the Company has built strong relationships.

Dunng the year, the 3oard considered and closed a five year term delt
facilizy with Deutsche Bank AG. Further informasion can be found on
page 25
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Section 172 (1) Statement and Stakeholder Engagement

Continued

Our stakeholders Key areas of interest How we engage

Communities & Acceptance A key component of the Company's portfolio 1s that the properzies within
The Company's of care in the 1t are set within community environments so that individuals are able as
assets rely on g comnmunity part of their care plan to interac: with the local community rather than
SIrong, pesiive e Availabilry of being isolated.

connrection

local facilities for ;
with the lacal renants This 1s achieved in consultauon with local authonues in determining

commurities in that the iminial setungs are appropriately diversified within the respective
which 1ts business community and are not clustered in a way that would lead 10 1solation.
operaes. This assists the individuals and also ensures appropriate inegranon
within the community. On a day-:o-day basis. care providers and
Approved Providers operate policies to ensure posgitive relationships
with rieighbours and surrounding dwellings. The actvittes within the
Company's properties create employment withint the local community for
both housing and care workers.

Charity partners e Delivenng ] The Company suppor:s a number of organisations whose ob]‘écnves
needed support  are to provide improved ocutcomes for vulnerable adults affecred by
w0 vulnerable homelessness and other care needs.

adults
The Company commuits targe:ed financial support to fund specific

programmes which help those affected by homelessness by teaching
hem gkills and offering support o preven: them from being n that
position again.

* mproved
wellbeing of
vulnerakle adulis

e E3G performance
and sustainability The Company engures regular calls and meelngs with our chanty
partmers to update on progress and projects being undertaken, as well as
attending events in suppor: of their work.
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Continued

Principal Decisions

Pnincipal decisions have been defined as those that have
a material impact 1o the Group and 118 key stakeholders.

n raking these decisions. the rectors considered their
duties under secnon 72 of the Act Principal decisions
made dunng ‘he year were as follows:

New Regulatory Clause [nitiative

‘n 2022, the 3oard considered and agreed a new
Aapproach fa*he Company's lease model with “he goal
of supporing addiaenal requlatory comphance and
addressing percepions of risk. The new regulatory
clause enables Approved “roviders -0 achieve greater
alignmen: hetween income Teceipts and lease habihines.
ser achievable capral solvency requnrements agains:
lease obligauons and demons:rate a further degree of
risk sharing.

The new lease clause has, following detalled negotlanon
including legal inpat receved approval from “he boards
of -wo innaal housing associations with whom it had
been discussed. The Company had previously sough:
and ohtamed formal wnen confirmanon from s
valuers that the mclusion of a clause of this type within
the Company's new and exisung leagses will not of 17self
causze a diminunion in the value of thase leases orin the
underlying assets.

Takeover Offer

As annouanced on 9 May 2023 the 3oard made the
decision o recommend o shareholders an all-cash offer
of 80 pence for each share of the Company by Wellness
Unry amrired (@ wholly owned subsidiary of CK Asse:
“oldings Limized).

Although the Board believes the offer undervalues

the long-term prospects of the Company, the Board
recogrnises tha: -he Company and the secior in which

11 operates faces a number of challenges 1n hght of the
current macro environment and ouzlook. This imcludes
the considerable negative senumens: 1n the puklc
markets towards the Company and the sccial housing
sector which the Board beheves are unhkely 0 be
overceme n the shor: to mediam term and will continae
16 have a matenal impac: on the Company's share price
prospects. In addition, despiie delivering on revenue,
NAY and dividend grow:h since 120, the Company's
shares have traded for some nme ar an entrenched
discount 1o NAV,

On 23 June 20723, the Offer hecame unconditional.

Updates to Debt Arrangements

During the vear, the 3oard considered and closed a new
five year ‘erm deb: facility of c. £/ million with a major
European bank lender.

The facility was deployed n full to redeem the
Company's exising facility with Lloyds Bank of

£60 milhon as well as providing addimonal hgudiy. As a
result, all of the Company's deb: facilities are at "00% fixed
or capped rates.

Buyback Programme

Junng the year the 3oard monitored the decline in the
Company's share prnce and 1n response, the Board agreed
he implementanon of a share buyback programme
Jnder cerrain parameters, which 1s being operated by the
Company’s Join: gdrokers.

Turther informasnon on the Company's buyback
programme can be found on page 50,
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KEPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2023

Strategic Overview

Purpose of the Company

The Company was established 1n 2076 with the purpose
of dehivering long-term responsible, stable returns o
investors and achieving positive measurable sccial
impact and ESG benefits on a large scale. it should
achieve this as a resul: of introducing long-term equity
capizal into the social housing sector with a particular
focus on care-based community housing. 3y doing so,
this would form a bridge between eguity investors and
‘he social housing sector and bring together aspec:s of
healthcare with social housing.

The Company has since developed the larges: portfoho
of care-hased commurnity housing in the UX that provides
long-term homes for more than 4.500 individuals across
half the local authorities in =ngland and Wales.

As a result of this success, the Company extended its
mandate 10 be able 1o enter \nto ransactions directly
with the NHS and with leading charimeg with an interes:
in the provigion of specialist housing thas: has a strong
care or suppor: element, is consisten: with pubhc pohcy
and whose costs are me: by the public purse for which it
offers value for money

Investment Objective

The Company's investmeant oblective 15 to provide
shareholders with an atractive level of income, -ogether
with the potennal for capizal growh from invesing in a
portfolio of Social Eomes, which benefits from inflation
adjus:ed long-term leases or occupancy agreemern:s with
Approved Providers and o dehver, on a fully invested
and geared basis, a "argeted dividend vield of 5% per
annuam-, which the Company expects ‘0 increase broadly
i hine with inflation.

Investment Policy

The Company's invesiment policy 15 10 INves: 1IN a
diversified porifoho of Soclal —omes throughou:

‘he United Kingdom. The Company intends ‘0 mee:

the Company’s invesimen: objecrive by acquinng.
wypically indirectly via Special Purpose Vehicles,
por:folios of Social Homes and entering 1n:o long-Term
inflasion adjus:ed leases or orcupancy agreements

for terms primarily ranging from 10 years to 40 years
with Approved “roviders, where all managemens:

and maintenance obligazions will be serviced by the
Approved “roviders. The Company will nor underake
any developmen: acuviry or assume any developmen: or
consiacion nsk. “owever, the Company may engage n
rEnovallng or CUSIOMISING exising Nomes, as Necessary.
The Company may make praden: use of leverage o
finance the acqguisiiion of Social Homes and <o preserve
capital on a real basis

The Company is focused on delivenng capital growth
and expec:s 10 hold s Portfolio over the long term and
“herefore it 1s unhkely tha: the Company will dispose
of any part of the Portfolio. 'n the unhkely event tha: a
par: of the Portfaho 1 disposed of, the irectors intend
w0 reinvest proceeds from such disposals 1n assets in
accordance with the Company's investment policy.

Investment Restrictions

The Company invests and manages the forfolio with the
abjectuve of delivening a high-quahty, diversified 2ortfolio
-hrough the following invesiment resiricions:

+ he Company only invests \n Social Jomes located in
“he United <ingdom;

e he Company only invests in Social Homes where the
counterparty o the lease or occupancy agreement 1s
an Approved 2rovider;

« nolease or occupancy agreemens: shall be for an
anexpired penod of less than 10 years, unless the
shorter leases OT OCCUpancy agreemenss reprasent
rart of an acquisition of a portfolio which the
nvestment Adviser intends o reorganise such thas
the average term of lease or occupancy agreement 1s
increased 10 15 years or above;

e the aggregate maximum eXposdre to any single
Approved Provider is 25% of the Gross Asset Value,
once the capital of the Company s fully inves:ed;

+ noinvestment by the Company 1in any single
geographical area, 1n relation 1o which the houses
and/or apartmen: blocks owned by the Company are
located on a conngniods or largely contiguous basis,
exceeds 20% of the Gross Asser Value of *he Company;

e the Company only acguires completed Social Z“omes
and will not forward finance any development of new
Social Zomes:

e the Company does not inves: in other alternanve
mvestmen: funds or closed-end invesimen:
compantes; and

e the Company is not engaged in shor selling.

The investmen: limits dezarted above apply at the fime of
the acquigition of the relevan: invesimens: in the 2orifoho
once fully invesied 'The Company would no: be required
0 dispose of any invesimen: or to rekbalance the 2ortfolio
as a result of a change in the respecuve valuauons of us
aggerts.

Gearing Limit

The irectors seek to use gearing to enhance equty
resurns. The level of horrowing 1s set on a prudent basis
for the asse: class and seeks to achieve a low cost of
funds, whilst mamraiming the flexibihity in the underlying
securlty requirements and rhe siructure of boh the
Sartfolio and the Company.

1 The chividend yield 15 based on the orginal 1PO price of 100 penee per Ordinary share The rarget dividends are 1argets only and do not Tepresent a profit lorecass
There can be no assurance 1hat the targets can or will be met and should not be 1aken as an mdwanon ot the Company s expectod of aciual tutre resuls
Accordingly potental investors should not place any fellance on these targets 1n decding whether or not to investin the Company or assume that the Company
witll make any distnbunons at all and should decide tor themselves whether of nof the target dividend yvields are reasonable ar achievable



Strategic Overview
Continued

The Company may. following a decision of the 3oard,
ralse deb: from banks and/or the capital markes and the
agyregate borrowings: of the Company = always subjoct
to an abscolute maximam of 40% of Gross Asset Value
calculated at the nume of drawdown. Current gearing 18
35.61% (2027 34.135%)

Debrtis gecured atr asset level, whether aver a particular
property or a holding en:ity for a particalar series of
properties, without recourse 16 the Company and algo
potentially ar Company level with or without a charge
over the 2orifolio (but not agamst particular asge:s),
depending on the optimal structure for the Company and
having considerauon to key metrics including lender
drwersity, cost of debt, debr type and manunty profiles
Orherwise there will be no cross-financing between
inves:ments in the Porifolio and the Company will not
operae as a common treasury funciion between the
Company and 178 Investmen:s.

Use of Derivatives

The Company may choose 1o utilise denvatives for
efficien: pertffolio management. In parucualar, the
rectors may engage in full or paraal miterest rae
hedging or otherwise seek 1o mitigate the risk of interest
rate increases on borrowings incurred in accordance
with the geanng limits as par: of the managemen: of the
Par-folio.

Cash Management

The Company mnves:s 1n cash, cash equivalents, near
casgh ingiruments and money marke: INsSramen:s.

Key Performance Indicators (“KPIs™)

REIT Status

The Directors conduct the affairs of the Company so as 1o
enable it to remain qualified as a REIT for the purposes
of Part 12 of the Corparation Tax Act 2070 {and the
regalations made ~hereunder).

Culture

The Directors agree ‘hat establishing and mainzaimning

a healthy corporate culture among the 3onard and 1n 1ts
interaction with the ‘nvesiment Adviser, shareholders
and other stakeholders will support the delvery of 1ts
purpose, values and strategy. The 3oard seeks (o promoe
a culture of openness, debate and integnty through
ongoing dialogue and engagemen: with 1ts service
providers, principally the ‘nves:ment Adviser.

As deralled in the Corporaze Governance Statement,

the Company has a number of pohcies and procedures

In place to assist with maintaming a culture of good
governance, inclading those relaung to drversity and
Orectors’ conflics of interes:. The 3vard assesses and
monitors comphance with these pohoies ag well as the
general culiure of the 3oard through 3oard meenngs and.
in particialar, dunng the annaal evaluaion process which
15 undertaken by each Director (for more mformanion, see
vhe performance evaluaiion secion on pages 56 and 57).

The Board's culture 1:gelf is one of openness,
collaboration and consiructuve debaze 10 ensure the
effecaive conmmbuanon of all irectors. paracularly in
respect of the 3oard’s decision making. Consideration
of our stakeholders is embedded 1in the 3oard’s decision
making process, Please see our seciuoen 177 5iatement o
pages Vo 25

Measute Explanation Bt;sull R
‘nerease in NAY - Targei 1o achieve capial appreciation whilst NAV mcrease of 11.2p per share 11.4%
pershare mamtainmg a low nsk sirategy from enhancing  from PG (2022: "23p per share 126% from [PO).

the qualiy of cash tlows from invesiments, by

physical improvement of properties and by

crealng a sigmbcancly diversihed, high-qualey

Por:{q_ho,

Jwvidends per

share targeted & dividend of 5.70p per share.

Zor the yeéir ended 3] March 2023, the Comp:any

Tetal dividend of 5.70p per share declared for ke
year to 31 March 2023 (2022: 5.55p).

Namber of iocal
aathories.
Approved
Providers and
care providers

Lean o

Targeted total debt drawn no rmore than £0% of
Gross Assets gross assets.
{Leverage)

Targe: risk mitgation through a diversified
portfclio (once fully invested) with no mare
than 25% exposure o any one local aathority or
single Approved Provider and no maore than 20%
expuosdre 10 any single geagraphical area, once
the capital of the Company is fully invested.

As at 3 March 2023

e 178 ‘ocal authority partners (2022: 178 :oca.
authority pariners)

¢ 19 Approved Providers (2022 18 Approved Providers)

e 131 care providers {(2022: 130 care providers)

The Company's largesi single exposure i1s (¢ Falcen
Housing Association CIC and currently stands at 15%
{2022: 19%). The largest geographical concenraionis
in the South West, being 14% (2022: 16%)

Leverage as &t 37 Marchk 2023 of 35.61% of g-ross
assets (2022: 34.43%).
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Definition
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Performance

Strategic Overview

Continued

EPRA

The Company is a member of the European 2ublic Real kstate Associanon ("ZPRA". 5PRA has developed and defined
~he following performance measures to give ransparericy, comparabiity and relevance of financial repor:ing

across entitles which may use different accounting standards. The Company 1s pleased to disclose the following
measures which are calculated in accordance with EPRA guidance. These are all Alternanve Performance Measures of

“he Company.

EPRA Earnings

Earnings from operational
acuvities.

A key measure of a
companys underlying
operating resul:s and an
imdicanon of *he exent *o
which current dividend
paymen:s are suppor:ed
by earnings.

EPRA Net Reinstatement
Value (“NRV™})

EPRA NAV me:nc which
assumes that enuties never
sell asse’s and aims o
represent the value required
-0 rebuild the entity.

EPRA Net Tangible Assets

(“NTA")

EPRA NAV metnc which
agsumes tha: entizies buy
and sell assets, thereby
crystallising certamn levels of
unavoidable deferred tax

EPRA Net Disposal
Value (“NDV")

ZPRA NAV metnic

which represents the
shareholders’ value under
a disposal scenario,
where deferred “ax,
financial insiraments and
certain other adiusimen:s
are calculated o the full
exten: of their hability. ne:
of any resulting tax.

The =PRA NAV set of metncs make adjustmen:s 1o the NAV per the financial statemenss o
provide srakeholders with the mos: relevan: informanon on the fair value of the asses and
lhakihinies of a real estate invesimen: company, under differen: scenarios

EPRA Earnings EPRA NRV EPRA NTA EPRA NDV
20053 AT ;
653,780,000 653,780,000 673,645,000
673,416,000 673,416,000 678,191,000
A a2G71 SGal Kl
30,630,000 674,042,000 674,042,000 671,476,000
EPRA Earnings per share EPRA NRV per share EPRA NTA per share EPRA NDV per share
Masicand D Lo oeney Wl el e e e nos wll s e e
s PN s )
4.82 109.96 109.96 110.74
jS{ea) 2521 WAl AG21
4.93 108.38 108.38 107.97

Past performance 18 no: a rehable indicator of fature performance. ['or detailed workings reconciling the above
measures o "he 7R3 resulis, please see Appendix | Yo these financial siatements on pages 22 10 25
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EPRA Net Initial
Yield (“NIY™)

Annualised rental
income based on the
cash rents passing
a: the balance
shee: daze, less
non-recoverahle
DIOpEerty operating
expenses, divided
by the marke: value
of the proper:y
with (esnmated)
purchasers’ cos:s,

EPRA Topped-up Net
Initial Yield (“NIY™)
This measure
incorporates an
adjastment 10 the
ZPRA NY inrespec:
of the expiration of
ren:-free periods

{or other unexpired
lease ncentives such
as discounted rent
penods and siepped
ren:s).

A comparable measure for porifolio
valuations. These measures should make 12
easiar for investors (o judge themselves, how
the valuanon of porifolic X compares with

rorfoho Y.

EPRA Costs Ratio

Admirustraive and
operaing cos:s
(ncluding and
excluding cos:s

of direct vacancy}
divided by gross
rental income.

A kay measure 1o
enable meanngful
measuremernt

of the changes

n acompanys
operaing cOsts,

EPRA LTV

Debt (including net
pavyables but ne:

of cash balances:
divided by ‘the marke:
value of propery
{including ne:
recelvables).

A key (shareholder-
geanng) meinc

o determine the
percentage of deb:
companng to the
appraised value of
“he properies.

EPRA Vacancy Rate
Estimated Marke:
Renzal Value ("ERV") of
vacant space divided
by LRV of the whole
por:folio,

A ‘pure’ (%) meagure of
mnvesiment propersy
space that 1s vacan:,
based on ERY

EPRA NIY

Jast performance 15 not a reliable inchcasor of futare performance. For detalled workings reconailing the above
measures o the TR3 results, please see Appendix @ to thesge finanoal statements on pages 22 1o 125

EPRA Topped-up
NIY

B!

EPRA Costs Ratio!

(R

™
o
Y
o

Y}

EPRA LTV

OGS

33.91

1 The tanos imelusive of vacancy casts are the same as the ato exclusive ot vacanay costs lur 2022 2021 and 2020

EPRA Vacancy
Rate
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Principal Risks and Risk Management

The 3oard considers that the risks de:ailed below are the principal risks facing the Group curren:ly, along with the nsks
detailed 1n note 5.0 1o the financial statements, These are *he 1isks tha: could affect the alility of the Company to deliver
118 strategy. The 3oard confirms tha: the prnincipal risks of the Company, including those which would threaten its future
performance, solvency or liquidity, have been robustly assessed throughou: the year ended 31 March 2023, raking o
accouan: the emerging risks such as the longer term, chimate change nisk, cyber securiy nsk and recruiiment of staff at
counterparties risk, and that processes are 1n place to continue this assessment.

The Audit and Managemen: =ngagement Commitee has divided the Company's nisks into the following risk wype
Cateqgories

e  Sirategy and Competiniveness;

e Operanonal, including Cyber Crime;

& nvesimen: Managemern: and

e Accounting, Legal and Regulatory.

mach nsk con:amed in each category 18 reviewed for its impac: and probabkility by the Audi: and Managemen:
~ngagement commitee at least twice dunng “he year.

The Audit and Vanagemen: =ngagemen: Commiiiee takes responsibiliny for overseeing the effectiveneass of nsk
managemen: and internal control systems on behalf of the Board and advises the 3oard on the principal nsks facing
the busimess.

Sarther detaids of nsk management processes that are in place can be found in the Corporate Governance Statemen:
on pages 57 and 58 The principal and emerging risks and unceriainties relanng o the Group are regularly reviewed
by the Board along with the internal controls and nisk management processes that are used (o mingate these nsks.
‘I'ne 3oard acknowledges ‘hat the Takeover by Wellness Umty Tamited may resual: in increased nisk both during the
ransmon and subsecquently Specifically, the Diwrectors have not had desalled wvisibiliy of the offeror's pos: completon
funding for the group or the detailed plans behind the intentions stazements included within the announcemen:,
Oversight and momtonng durnng this penod will take on enacal imporiance The 3oard hasidentified one new
principal risk durning the yvear (as ge: our in the list of principal nsks and uncerrainties). The nisk assoclated with a
disruprion o share price due o negative sentment In the social housing sector was identified as having the highes:
impact and hkelihood. The nisk associated with promoiing the Company 10 generate mvestor demand was removed
as a principal risk by the Board dunng the year as the Takeover Offer by Wellness Lnity _imited has reduced the need
fur the Company 0 generate additional investor demand. “urther detalls on *hig and the other principal nigks and the
managemen: of those risks are descnbed below:

Impact

Very
unlikely

Very

Unlikely Possible Likely Likely

Probability



Principal Risks and Risk Management

Continued

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

1 Swrategy and Compeullveness tisk Tmpact
The Comrpany's share price

is disrupred due o negative
sentimrent towards the socia!
nousing sector foliowing a
targeted attack by a snort se:ler
and polluation from olner events in
the sector,

The Company is targe:cd
oy 4 ghort geller or acuvis!
sharenolder .eading o

a fall in the Company's
ghare price and a
widening of tne discouns:
0 WAV,

Tnis risk remained at @he samce
level as the year ended 31 March
2022

Significant numpers of
shares may necd o oe
repurcnased eading o
a fal. in the sive of (:ne
Company and liquidiy
implicaions

Impact
Any change in 1ne

ws, regLlations and/
Or governmenl po.oy
aflcciing “he Company
and its operanons may
nave a materia. adverse
etlect on the abdi iy ol e
Company 0 suceasstu,.y
Darsde its INvesimens
poldey and meetis
invesiment objective
and on ae value of (ne
Company and (ne saarcs,

2 Stralegy and compehtiveness risk

The Company and 1is operations
are s : L.atons
onacied oy naiona. and local
governmen:'s and governmen:

policy.

This sk remained at the same
leve!l ag the yeoar ended 31 March
2022,

wa_tw_a_r_\_d compeunveness risk
A3 a res. . of competttion from
other purchasers of social housing
properties. the Company's apiiy
~o0 dep:oy capital clicciive.y within
a reasonabic limciframe may be
resiricied or the net initua. yiclds at
which the Company can acquire
oroperties may decline sucn tna:
larget returns cannot be met.

Impact

™erale of capita.
deproymean: would drop,
decreasing reiurns 1o
sharenclders.

This ris< remained art the same
ievel as the year ended 31 March
2022.

How 1{;dnaqed,ﬂ‘m|l|qated

Tne Board is committed 10 maintaining
open channe's of communication with
snarcholders and engaging in ways
snarenoiders find most meaningful, in
order to gain understanding ol shareholder
views. Further information on the Board's
engagement with shareno'ders can be
found on pages 17 to 28

Probability:
Likely

Tne Board seexs o provide full disclosure
on the counterparties and the suructure of
[ransacuens so tnat al stakeho.ders are
kept reliab.y informed on the Company’s
business dealings.

Tae Board regularly reviews the
Company's buybacx policy 10 ensure this
iy alignment wih ;e intcrests of (ne
Company and shareno!ders. The Board

is a.so mindful of the possinility o igsue
sharcs and reguiarly reviews iis policy in
this area o ensure tha: it is consistent with
the Company's stirategy. It receives regular
updates from :he Company's broxers (o
he.p inform its decisions in this regard.

How managed/mingated . . .
The Company focases on niche real estate

seCiors where it pe.ieves the regulatory

frameworx and underlying demand

dynamics 10 be robust

Tmpact:
Very high

Probability:

Tae Invesimen: Adviser has sirong mdustry Unlikely

contacs and nas good know edge on
pclicy opinion and direction.

Tne Board optains regular wpdates
from vrofessiona. advisers (o monitor
deveiopmen:s in reg..aiion and (egislanon.

How muanaged/mingated o
Tne Company nas s:irong lings witih vendors
and a robus: pipeiine of future acquisitions.

Impact:
High

Tne Board regllarly reviews the pipeiine
of notential acguisitions and monitors the
marxel ‘andscape.

Probability:
Unlikely

The Board is aware of the current
competitive social nousing market and
recogniscs the impact tnis may have on
Lhe Company's api.ity to deploy capital
elfective)y.

§ZOZ SLNNODIV (INV J40d0H
I SNISAOH 'TVIDOSE SYLTALD

(5]
ety



=z
z
5
-
=
¥
o
&
z
=

Principal Risks and Risk Management

Continued

4 Investment management rsk
Tenant defaulting under (ne terms
of a lcase.

This ris< remained a: the same
‘evel as the year cnded 31 March
2022

§ Investment management sk

Impact

How managed/mitigated

.income in
erm

Loss of rent
e shon

Impact

~he value of the invesiments made
by the Company may change trom
rime 10 tme according to a variety
of factors. including movements

in interest ra:cs. inflation and
general marke: pricing of simi:ar
invesiments.

This ris< remained at the same
ievel as the year ended 31 March
2022.

6 Invostment management tisk :
The current macroeconomic
environment has increased the
leve. of risk around :he Company's
financing arrangemcin:s regarding
poITOwWIng erirnts and covenants.

This was identified as a new risx
during the year.

Impact

Tac valaation of e
Company's asseis wolld
fal.. decreasing the

NAV and yie:ds of ine
Company

The portfolio is highly diversified 1o reduce
the impac: of default. Extensive diligence is
underta<en on ali asse's. which is reviewed
and challenged by the Board.

The Invesimen: Adviser wotks proaciivery
wiih Approved Providers 10 address any
potential concerns.

""1e Board is provided with regular updates
on the tenants with any concerns raised for
discussion.

The Board has noted that the Company's
nistoric level of defaulis has boen
imma:erial.

H(’l" indnaged/mitigated R o
The Company invesis in proje
stable, predetermined, long-term leascs in
place with CPl or CPI pius 1% indexation
and 1ts stra‘egy is not focused on sa.c of

properties.

“he Board recejves regalar updates on
facnors tnat mightimpact investiment
vali.ations.

How managed/mingared

Less favoutan.c horrowing
erng increase ne
financing costs red.Jcing
retarns to snarcho.dors,

? mgslmenl I’nangeln&‘nt risk R
Due diligence may not reveal ail
fags and circums:ances 1nal may
ne reievant in connecicon witn an
investment and may not preven:
an acquisition neing matena:ly
overvalued or ren:al sireams being
al risk.

This risx remained ai 1ne same
‘evel as the year ended 31 March
2022,

e
Tne Company wouad
overpay for assey
impairng snareno der
vai.e red.cing renal
income and tnerefore
re1LIns

risx has increased.

How managed/mitigated

The Tnvesimen: Adviser, AIFM and
Deposiary moniior covenan:s in place with
debr providers and presen: 1o the Board on
a quarter.y basis.

The Investment Adviser leverages the
re.azionsnips i already has in the marxzet
o torm 'ong term pattnerships with deot
oroviders at rates it already has achieved
OnN simLar projec:s witnin the same
macrd marset

The Invesunen: Adviser reports @0 the
Board on discussions witn panks which wiil
nigaight atihe eardest cpporiunity i this

Tae Company under.ases de:ailed due
diligence on ne properiies. :neir condition,
e propesed rental leve:s - bencamarking
againsl comparap.e schemes using noth
exlernal consuiants where required and

is own proprietary database - and on (ne
Approved Providers and care providers
involved in each property .o ens.re tha: the
purchase price is rooust

Tne Board congiders the due diligence

undertagen when approving acquisitions.

Impact:
Medium

Probability:
Likely

~ Impact:

High

Probability:
Possible

Im péct:
Medium

Probability:
Possible

Probability:
Unlikely



Principal Risks and Risk Management

Continued

8 Investment mandgement risk Impact

How managed/mingated

Loss of ey stall at tne [nves:men:
Adviser.

Negative iInvester
sentiment .eading to a
reduction in share price.
Reducnon in apility 10
souree off marke: and
favourao.c deals

This risk remained at the same
leve. as the yvear ended 31 Marach
202z,

9 Jategy ahd competitiveness Impact

The Company falis 1o respond (0 Decrease in the value of
issues related to climate change.
either direc:ly as ennancements
10 properties or indirect.y via its
c.imate change reporing.

a negative impant on na
Company's snarc price.

This risg remained a: the same
leve. as the year ended 31 Marcn

2027,

1 Operanonal including cybet crime
Scrious accident or poor
managemen: amongst Approved
Providers d.ue (o staff shortages
and lcss of compeience

Impact . I
Rcp.taiiona damage for
the Company.

This nigx remained a: the same
level as the year ended 31 Maran
2022

Emerging risks

tmerging rnisks are considered dunng the regular

risk review, and would ke specifically discussed and
evaluazed as they anse dunng the year. ‘nput from the
nves:ment Adwviser on emerging rigks g considared by
the Audiz and Management Zngagemen: Commitiee.

Key emerging nisks identified and considered dunng the
vear include:

e _ong-Term Chma:e Change - the impac: of chmaze
change, aver the longer-term on the business. The
Company 18 committed ro understanding E3G nisk,
inchuding the paricularimpac: of chimate change
on the buginess. Climate change poses an indirect
risk o the Company's operations, the environment:
and society, and the 3oard 18 aware tha: appropriate
acuon 1s required to reduce its impact. The Board
uses the updates from the nvesiment Adviser as “hey
relate to the performance of the company and the
impac: of Jong-rerm chmate change to help manage/
mitigate this nsk.

the Company's assats and

The Board considers the risk of (e Impact:
Investmen: Adviser losing xey staff and e High
suecesgion plang the Investmen: Adviser
nas in place
) Probability:
The Board has noted ‘he angoing .
: N Unlikely
expansion of tne Inves:ment Advigers
SLPDOTT leam.
How managed/mitlgated o
Regular review and consideration by Impact:
the Board including the inpuar: of climate High
change specialists at the Invesiment Probability:
Adviser Unlikely
Advice received fron: exiernal professional
advisers.

_How managed/mitigated . .
Reporiing from Approved Providers and Impact:
monitoring of Approved FProviders by the High
[nvestment Adviser. Probability:

Unlikely

e Cyber Secunty — the impac: of a cyber securiy breach
within the Company or 178 gervice prowviders, The
Audlr and Managemen: =ngagemen: Commises
reviews and maoniiors the cyber security controls of
‘he Company's service providers on a regular basis t©
manadgs/mitigate this nsk.

Please see the Company's ESG Report on pages 3/ 10 46
for farther details.

The Listing Rules require premium-hs:ad commercial
comparues o disclose in their annual report whether
shey have reported on how chimaze change affects

“helr business in a manner consistent with the
recommendanons of the Task if'orce on Climate-relazed
Smancial Misclosures {(TCIDY, and to provide an
explanaton and other informauon if they are unable

10 do so. \n addirion, the UK Governmen: intends 1o
introduce mandatory chmate-related disclosures o
supplemen: the requirements under the Listing Rules. The
3nard has chosen notto adop: the requirements early
and expects these to be apphicable ¢ the Company in the
financial year 20724,
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Going Concern and Viability Statement

Going Concern

The Board regularly reviews the position of the Company
and 1ts ability to continue as a going concern at its
meetings. The financial statements set out the curren:
financial posinon of the Company.

As at 31 March 2023, the Company held cash balances of
£35.6 milhon (ne: of operaing and financing amounis
due). The Board has evaluated the financial posiuon

af the Company which has maintammed 17s premiuam
wwvestment grade raung from “1ich Raungs “od — a well
established raung agency with a sirong familianty with
the alternauve healthcare real estate space, which gives
rhe Company confidence in the abilivy 1o raise fusure
debr and/or equizy capual in order 0 fund the Company's
investmern:s for the long *erm and :o facilitate the
payment of chvidends to shareholders. 3ased on these,
the Board believes tha: the Company 18 1N a positon o
manage 1ts financial risks.

vanous forms of sensitivity analysis have been
werformed, 1in paricalar the financial performance

of renan:s and a reducion N passing rent. As at

3. March 2023, the passing rent would have to drop by
approximately 12% before any of the Company's ineres:
cover covenants are breached. The propery values
would need 1o fall by aroand 135% before breaching the
lean to value covenan:.

The Company's performance in the even: of severe
hut plausible downside scenanos used for vialnhty
are equally appheable for going concern. At the date
of approval of this repor:, the Company has sufficien:
headroom within 1ts financial loan covenan:s, The
Ccompany also benefiis from a secure mcome sTrearn
from leases with long average unexpired term leases.

_everage 12 prudentdy maimnamed a:z a level of legs than
40% of Gross Asser Value.

The Company's arsicles of assacanon inchide a
redrnrament for the 3card o propose an ordinary
resolutton at the annual general meenng following “he
fifth anmiversary from the iniiial pubkhe offering of the
Company for the Company o conimuae i 1:s curren: form
(-he Conunuanon Resoluioni On !5 Seprember 2024, at
“he Anndal General Meelng, shareholders represening
298 478.435 vored n favour of she continuatan of the
Company being 98.85% of hose who vored

0On 9 May 20723 an announcemen: was made to *he marke:
for an all-cash offer of the Company from Wellness Unity
imted, a wholly owned indirect subsidiary of C{ Asset
Foldings Limited (CKA). On 25 June 2023, when the offer
became uncondinional, CKA subsequently became the
ultimase conwrolhing party of the Company. and a relaed
parcy under [AS 24, The Group's exisung commitzed deb:
faciliues contain a standard change of control clause
which has now been mmggered due :6 the offer becoming
uancondriional. Thig could resulzin the existing committed
debr facilines being withdrawn. The Group does not have
visibility of the post complenon funding for the Group at
this rime. Therefore, this could create some uncertainty as
w0 the Group's going concern position. The Directors note
‘he detalled inzentions staremen: included within the
announcemen: on 9 May 2023 which states that CXA does
nat envisage making any changes to the managemen:
team nor any disrapuon To any counierparties or

0 “he uanderlying tenan:s. The condimons outhined

above indicaze & matenal uncer-ainty which may cas:
significant doubt upon the Group and “he Company's
akality to continue as a gomng concern. The financial
statements do notinclude the adjus menss that would
resul: 1f the Group and he Company were unable o
continiue as a going concerr,

Faving considered all of the above, the Board 15 of the
opinion that the going concern basis adopied in the
preparation of the consolidated financial statemen:s
15 appropriae.

Viability Statement

The Direciors presen: the Company's viabilizy statement
which summanges the resuls of their assessment of
‘he Company's curren: position, 175 principal nsks and
prospects over a penod 1o 37 March 2028

The Company aca.ires high-quahty propersy with a
paricilar focus on property providing care for the long
serm. The properies acquired are on long-term full
repainng and insurnng leases 1n a sec:or of ‘"he marke:
with very high levels of nead The cost base of The
Company 1s proporionately low compared o revenie
and :here 1s a high level of cerainty over cos: 0 be
incarred. On this basis, the Company 18 expecied 0 be
viable well beyond the five-year term considered 1n the
Company's resing below.

The assumpnons underpmmng the forecas: cashflows
and covenan- compliance forecasis were sensitised

~o explore the resthence of the Company o the
porenial impact of the Company's principal nsks and
anceramnes.



Going Concern and Viability Statement

Continued

The prospects were assessed over a five-year penod for
“he following reasons:

iy e Company's .ong tcrm forccas: covers a live
penod,

oar

ii) the length of service level agreements between
Approved Providers and care providers is wypically five
years; and

iii) the Company’s leases are typically 25 years on fully
repaiting and ins.iring leases. cnabliing reasonap’e
certainty of income over the next five years.

The Company's five-year forecast incorporazes
assumprians relatad ta the Company's invesimen?
swrategy and pnnapal nigks from which performance
resul:s, cash flows and key performance indicazors are
forecast. The pnncaipal risks are se: our on pages 30 1o 34
Of these nsks, those which are expected o have a hugher
impact on the Company's longer-term prospec:s are
those related to the curren: macroeconomic environment,
which has increased the level of nisk around the
Company's financing arrangemenss regarding borrowing
terms and covenants. The rnisk associated with a
disrupuen o share price due to negalive Sentimen: in
“he sccial housing sec:or hemng identified as having

the highesi impact and hikelihood. The Company has
considered 1ts sitategy over a longer rerm and. in hght
of the inheren: demand for the Company's properties
and the vulnerable nature of the ultimase renan:. the

risk of change in fuzure housing pohey s considered

1o be limized. The prnincipal nisks are miugated by the
Company's nisk management and mnrernal conirol
processes, which funcion on an ongoing basis.

The Board, via delegation to the Audit and Managemen:
rngagement Commiteée, moniars the effectiveness of
the Company's nsk managemen: and internal control
processes Oon an OHngI‘lg basis. The MOontoring acuviues
are described n the Repor: of the Audir and Managemen:
Fngagemen: Commitee on pages 64 1o 62 and

nclade direc: review and challenge of the Company's
documented nsks, nsk raangs and conzrols, and review
of performance and compharnce repors prepared by

she Company's key supphers and the independen:
exernal audiors.

The 30ard of Directors has carned our a rolyust
assessmen: of the principal and emerging nisks facing
“he Company, iIncluding “hose that would “hreaten 1
business model. future performance, solvency and
liqguidity. Where appropniate, the Company's forecas's are
subjec: to sensrivity analysis, which invelves applying
severe (bu: plausible) condirions and flexing a number of
assumpuons simalianeously.

The sensiuvities performed were designed to provide
the Directors with an understanding of the Company's
performance n the event of severe bu: plausible
downside scenarnos, raking full account of mugaing
actions that could be taken 0 aveid or reduce the1impact
or occurrence of the underlying risks outhned below:

e 10% of tenan:s defaulting under a lease. The oucome of
-his scenario reduces profits on average over the five
vear forecas: by 18% per annum and reduces cash by
£20 million. Sowever, the Board remains comforable
thar dividends could be paid and any liabilhities could
be settled as there s still a suthcient level ot cash 1n the
busimess. Therefore the business remains viable over
“he five year penod and

e detenorauon in economic oazlook, or a change in
governmen: housing policy which could impact the
fundamen:als of the socuil housing sector including
a neganve impac: on valiauons and a 5% reducien
in annual rents. The ouwcome of the 'severe downside
scenano was that the Company's covenan: headroom
on exisung debt {the level ar which the invesiment
propery values would have o fall hefore a financial
breach occurs) reduces by “3%. prior to any miigaing
acuons such as asse: sales, which indicazes tha:
covenants on existing facilinies would no: ke breached.

The remaimng pnncipal risks and uanceraintes, whils:
having an impac: on the Company's usiness, are

not considered by the Directors (o have a reasonable
Likelihood of impactng the Company's viabiliy over the
five-year penod, therefore the scenanos outlined above
are the only ones thar have been speafically tested.

3ased on the resulis of their assessmean:, notwithstanding
~he ma-eral uncerzainty ansing from the offer from CXA,
“he Direciors have a reasonable expectation thast the
Company will be able 1o coninde 1n operation and meer
1ts habiities ag they fall due over the five-year period of
thelr agsessment.

Michael Wrobel

Chairman

28 June 2023
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The Portfolio’s Carbon Footprint
For the year ended 31 March 2023

Tonnes (TCO,) per Civitas Tenancy

March 2023 March 2022

2.61 2.65

Source Civias relamned EPC data

Energy 2erformance Certificates (E2Cs} are 1ssued All rental properties are legally required to have an ZPC
following the energy survey of a property by an energy in the LK and a good energy rating indicazes that the
assessor. =PCg {llusirate the energy efficiency of properties residenss of the propersy wil] benefi: from:

and give a property an energy raung from A {very e« Lower energy bills - energy efficien: properties will
efficient) o G Ginefficieny. zach 2P'C1s valid for 10 years and result in comparably lower residen: consumpnon and
mcludes a hist of recommmendations that provide guidance therefore reduce energy bills

on how the energy efficiency of the property could be

e Lower carbon footprint - increasing the energy
mproved to reduce energy hills and carbon emissions.

efficiency of the properties wiil lower carbon emissions
e Improve property value — improving the energy

rating will also likely enhance the value and ensure

consistently low void levels at the propernes,

Civitas EPC Distribution (Domestic/Non-Domestic) — March 2023

Non-domestic/Higher Acuity Il Domestic/Homes

A| 08%
5 39.8%
431%
¢ 40.9%
o 11.4%
36.3%
E

1n.7%

Seuree vitas tetained EPC data

Domestic/Homes
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Energy Performance/SAP Ratings

Carbon Reduction — EPC/SAP Ratings
Civitas Pordfolio wlomes i andd non domastc. Farigy Pearformanes
merithie atesy CEPC - Marn b 2323

Civitas continues to improve the overall energy performance, with a
continued focus on properties with EPC ratings D and E, through active asset
management, including property improvement works, renovations and
scheduled post-completion works.

EPC Distribution across the Portfolio at 31 March 2023

A 02

Civitas $§H properues tend o offer larger accommaodauon for tenans than conventuonal social housing or other private
dwellings The properies are predominantly sireet properues bl pre 1940 with solid walls.

As shown 1n “he rable below. the energy performance of the Civitas portfolio compares favourably agaimst the
performance across all housing tenures as reported in the 2020/2 ~nghsh Fousing Survey (£E53). Civitas S3H properiies
have a larger propoeraon of detached and semi-derached properiies compared o social rented and private rented
dwelhings.

Comparable EPC/SAP Ratings
by tenure (%) (domestic/homes only)

Energy Performance Certification Band

Mean

e A/B C_ 2] E F G Ratsiﬁ;

Owner occupied 29 400 468 7.8 2.2 03 657

Private rented 3.0 415 417 88 37 12 649

Social rented 55 652 281 23 07 02 _ 701

All tenures o 30 445 42.7 71 22 05 663

Civitas domestic (March 2023)  11.0 409 36.4 117 00 0.0 671
Sauice Enalish Housing Survey (2021) Anmex Tanle 28 Enewgy efliiency 1aing bands by 1enure 20218 Annex Tubls 27 Mran SAP t1inq, by tenare 202




E.ON Partnership (Phase 2)

‘ON

The collaboration with EON has been based on the
adopton of a ‘fabric first' approach to reducing the
porifolios carbon footprint. Detalled retrofit surveys
identify The potenial 1o install cavity wall insulatoen, loft
nisulaiony, exendl wall msalalion, i soarce hedr pumps
and sclar PV and bat:ery s:orage at targeted properties.
The installation of these energy efficient measures (where
considered viable), utiising available government grants
and other funding sources, maximises value for the
Company and for cur counterparties. The environmental
enhancerments are being delivered at no cost to our
Approved Providers.

Bracken Hill, Mirfield

Working with Approved “roviders, the ongomg

Phase 2 retrofit surveys are being undertaken o refine the
implementanon programme and identify the bes: merhod
for reducing the :gial carbon dioxide emissions {and

fuel costs) associated with individual properties over the
mediurm or long term. The overall energy perfoermance of
the porfoho, as idenufied on =nvironmen:al Perforrnance
Cernficates (-2C) repore data, hag improved over the last
-2 moenths. The proporion of properties wiath £PC Rating

A Chs currently .55% and the carbon footpnint (estimated
from properiy characteristnes) has reduced by 2% per Civitas
renancy (from 265 tonnes of CO2/tenancy in March 2022 o
.67 tonnes of COG/tenancy).

A single storey cottage built dunng the late 1800s. Capital works were required to make some improvements to the
general appearance of the property and deliver energy rmprovements o create an uplift in the energy raung.

CSH mitiated two professional surveys - the first to unders:and the requirements to undertake necessary repairs and
improve the asset condition - the second to understand the energy improvernent options available. The works were
carefully planned and resulted in an overhaul of the asset with some of the works listed below:

New UPVC windows and fron: docr installed
External wall insulation
Repairs to roof and loft space

* ¢+ 0

Addiuonal insulation into the loft space

e Replacement modern kirchen

s Decoration throughout including flooring upgrades
« [nstallation of high heat retention storage heaters

¢ Additional ventilation installed

The EPC rating has improved from a Gto an E.

CSH is in the process of installing a dual tariff electncity meter which will continue to improve the £PC rating to D.
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Social Impact

Social Impact — Publication of The Good Economy Report — Published

November 2022
The Good Economy (TGE) — November 2022

TGE. independent social impact advisory firm, assessed Civitas’ performance against its stated
impact chjective and the target outcomes to which the Company aims to contribute.

TGE considers that
Civitas has made a
meaningful contribution
to increasing supply

to meet the high

level of demand from
commissioners for

“The portfolic continues to
provide homes for people
with a range of supporn

needs, including learning

disabilities, physical

supported housing
across the country.

9

Social Need

Provide housing
that meets an
identified social
need

40% of residents
living in Civitas
properties receive
over 50 hours of
care per week.

82% of residents
aged hetween
20 and 49

disabilities and mental
health diagnoses.”

Impact Objective
Supply Quality
Increase the [mprove the

supply of
social housing
across the UK
particularly
for vulnerable
people

41% of properues
new to social
housing at the point
of acquisition

69% of properties
in the 40% most
deprived local
authonties

quality of social
housing

Civitas have worked
with Approved
Providers, signing
off on adaptions to
cnsure praperties
continue to meet the
changing needs of
residents

87% of respondents
reported that they
were satisfied with
the quality of their
homes

THE
GOOD
ECONOMY

“Civitas is systematically
improving the energy
efficiency of older stock
by running a retrofit
programme alongside
energy supplier EON.”

“Civitas has consistently
praovided support for
charitable ocrganisations
whose activities align with
the Fund's core mission to
deliver positive outcomes
for individuals with
support needs.”

Outcomes

Contribute
Towards

0Qo

Wellbeing Value

Improve the
wellbeing of
residents

Offer value for
money for the
public purse

83% of respondents
reported an

£3.91is created
in social value

irmprovement in for every £1
their independence of annualised
between Investment

their previous
accommodation and
their current home




Social Impact
Charitable Partnerships

The Company has suppored and worked with the following chanzies since 1PO:

The House of
St Barnabas

LUNDON

a)
y

i
|
VW
[HE NE|WORK FOR WOM=%
WORKING N SOLIAL H0US NG

Little..
Sprouts

the

care
workery
charity

The Choir with No Name

The results of an anonymous 2022/25 survey akbou: the expenence of cholr members at choir

demonsiraze the consistently positve impact and the value of CWNN work i improving the

lives of people impacied by homelessness

= B9% reported a sense of belonging at choir

= 90% feel valued at choir and said choir improved their confidence

= 85% have made meaningful friendships a: choir

v 84% sald chenr helps them feel less 1salared

+ 88% said choir helped them feel more optimuisuc about hife

= 8%% reporied a greater sense of purpose and fulfilmen: as well as feeling monvated o ry
new things

= 80% reporned improved mental healh

The House of St. Barnabas

The House of 5t 3arnabas is a social enterprise member's club that helps London's homeless
people back inio work, through 1ts Empleyment Academy

Employmen: Preparation rogramme;

« 100% of working graduates are satisfied with their job hoyrs

= 95% are sausfied with their job security

+ 52% are satisfied with their pay

= 95% have overall job satusfaction

» 97% say our men-ars have had a positive impac: on their quality of hife

WISH

W S= 18 a membership-based network for women working across every disapline of UK housing.
with a focus on championing posiave outcomes for women working 1n the sector Civitas suppor:
conribyates (0 the chammoning of pesiive ouicomes for women working in the seciorn

Little Sprouts Health and Wellbeing Charity

lLittle Sprouts =ealth and Wellbeing Chanty 1@ dedicated o improving the health and wellbeing
of our community through cooking workshops, recipe bags, community food shops. "check
and chamer” programmmes and surplus food collection and distnbution. Civitas suppor:s

Little Sprouts with the operastonal costs of the charty, particularly duning COVI5-8. The funds
were used 1o open a further community shop which uses food as an engagemen: 100! to help
address physical, social, mental and financial 1ssues,

The Care Workers’ Charity

The Care Warkers' Chanty (CWC) exis:s to help care and suppor: workers through crisis using
financial suppor: and suppor: centres, Civizas suppor: fands raning of mental health "iirs: aiders’
to provide each CWC member company. with the training and tools 1o provide beter men:al
health suppoer: to the care workers.
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Charity Partners Case Studies

The Choir with No Name

The Choir with No Name (CWNN) has been running choirs
involving people impacred by homelessness since 2008,
growing from a first rehearsal in London with just five
people, to six thnving choir communities, singing with
over 700 pecople and performing for tens of thousands of
people acress the LY every year. We currently have choirs
n ondon. Taverpool, 3righten, 3irmingham, Cardiff and
Coventry, with plans to launch more choirs over the next
few years.

The Choir with No Name formula 1s stmple, but s works:
weekly choir rehearsals all year rouand followed by a

hot meal together, and exciting, aspirazional gigs for
everyone to work towards and look forward :o. Our choirs
are supporiave, safe spaces for people gaing through a
-ough tirne, empowenng them to feel more able o tackle
~he challenges they face. We are curren:ly evolving our
way of working into a more co-produced and culturally
democratic approach, with choir members getting more
mvolving i the design and delivery of thewr choirs, which
18 a really exciung transformation for the organisation.

Creauve programmes are exiremely effective in achieving
posiiave outcomes for people impacted by homelessniess.
They tackle inedgquality, increase social inclusion and
challenge prejudice. [t can help people To progress

‘heir wider interests, which 1s espemally imporran: in
reducing anxiety and loneliness that can often affec:
people impac:ed by homelessness, even when “hey
move on o0 independent accommodation We supporn
members -0 make friends, improve thelr wellbeing. bhuld
confidence and skills, and posimvely impac: their zersonal
circumstances outside of choir

In our most recent 2025 member survey, 89% said they
fel: a sense of belonging a: chotr, 90% said 1t helped
ncrease their confidence, 85% said bewng in chour gave
rhem an increased senge of purpose and fulfilment and
/h% repar.ed that their participation 1n choir has helped
them achieve at least one positive ife change ouiside
choirn including secunng housing, finding work or bever
managemen: of addictiions We are extremely proud of
these results,

We established our parnership with Civizas Social
Houstng Ple in 2027 and have been extremely grateful
reciplents of ongoing sappor: for the cos:s of delivening
wdr weekly rehearsals and foo: stomping gugs every year
Thanks 0 Civitas, we can keep our doors gpen, the music
playing and our members singing: providing somehing
0 look forward to every week and gugs o work rowards; a
chance 0 socialise with their friends, ea® a ho: dinner, and
Jiumately feel zeen and heard.

A word from our choir members:

Ruthie’s Story

66

When 1 first started singing with CWNN I was really
nervous just standing there in the group singing.
Then, by the Christmas concert, I was grabbing

the mic and singing solo! My confidence has really
improved. I think it's because you just feel like you're
in a really safe space and that people genuinely care
about you, It just feels very loving and authentic.

There's been s0 many unforgettable moments and
s0 many emotional moments. It’s amazing seeing
other people transform as well. I've made friends
and connections and, the hig thing is, trust. It's been
a real big deal to me that people actually care. They
genuinely care and notice when you're missing. It
sounds a bit extreme, but people care if you're alive
and that you're alive and well. It's been consistent. It

doesn’t stop. ”

Richard's Story

66

I've sung all my life so when I heard about the Choir
with No Name I thought it could be for me. I was
living at the Salvation Army at the time. The best thing
ahout cheir is the confidence it gives me. I've broken a
25-year cycle with drugs — I don’t think I could've done
it without choir. When I talk to people who aren’t sure
if CWNN is for them I say, ‘Come along once, I'll sit next
to you and if you don't like it you don’t have to come
back’. I've encouraged a few people to join and so far,
they've all come back! I'm so happy to have found
CWHNN. In my first rehearsal 1 was so nervous, but by
the second I was singing my heart out. It's made such
a difference. I'm not existing anymore, I'm living, and

that's huge. ’ ’




Charity Partners Case Studies

House of St Barnabas

The House of 5t 3armabas 1s a social enterpnse and charnty
tha: works o supporn peaple affecred by homelessness
back into long-term employment. Our vision 1s of a furure
where lasting good work, a secare home and a supporive
nework are a reahty for those affected by homelessness.

Underpinnead by our vibrant members’ ¢lub in Sohao. our
mployment Academy provides on site employmen:
and skills training for people who have expenenced
homelessness,

We work with around 100 people every vear and 79% of
graduates repor: their ¢ualty of ife has improved since
paricipaiung in the Employmen: Academy

Qur mentonng component 18 the key "0 our success

and, thanks 1o suppor: from Civiias, we are closer 1o
succesding 1in our mussion of 'Good Work, Good Home” for
ali our graduazes.

Mentoring at the House of 5t Barnabas 1s no: traditional
it the way tha: professional mentoring requires a sitmilar
set of knowledge and experiences. [t 15 relanonship-based
mentoring which is based around inzerpersonal skills

and communmcaton The purpose of the role s to work
sogether with =mployment Academy staff 1o suppart
people into work and help them progress.

Our men:ors have had a positive impac: on quality-of-hfe
changes for 97% of responden:s.

Jill and Ellen

Ellen Legan her journey as a menier by participaing

1 odr two-day sraming, which provides extensive
preparanon for This very special role. She quickly followed
ap by azending the mentonng ‘speed daung’ event
where she me: several recen: graduates looking "o be
pared with a mentor. Sowever, she was contacied by

“he Mentornng Team o ask If she would be interested in
mentoring someone she hadn't had the chance to meeat
because they couldnt attend the 'speed daung’ event due
w0 childcare responsibilines.

This is how Ellen met Jill

JM and her yvoung daughter found themselves homeless
n 2020 il didn's have a 1ob and didn’s know wha: she
wanted 0 do either. Unsure of where 10 go or what to

do. she wurned o a social worker for heip, who arranged
semporary accommodation for il and her daughter.

Then il was putin touch with House of 5t Barnabas, Afler
graduatng from the ~mployment 2reparation 2rogramme,
she had the opporunity 1o be paired with a mentor.

sllen and hll met for thelr first mentonng session at the
3nush Library They quickly connected over the fac: that
Il had a five-year-old daughter and Ellen has experience
of bringing ap young children in ondon. =llen had lots
of suggesuons for free actvities for children. Thus butlt
JII's confidence o attend galleries and museums with her
daughter, which she had never done before.

As they developed their mentoring relanonship, Bllen
also helped hll to update her CV and cover letter. She
also encouraged il to sign up for free compater literacy
courses and provided suppor: with [l s application tor
a win:er fuel allowance as well as making sure that she
recerved her Chngimas benefit bonus.

NIl has since secured a job as bans:a ar a Soho members’
club on a part-ume basis so she can balance her childcare
responsibilities.

Jill's Story

(14

1didn’'t know what to expect from the House of St
Barnabas. On the first day of the course, I thought it
wasn't really for me, But after my first week, I loved it!
Everyone there understood what I was going through,
day by day I felt more confident and more comfortable
being there. It felt like being with family. You get

used to waking up and having no one to talk to, but
suddenly I had people to talk to! It gave me a reason
to get up in the morning. Being at the House was a
lifesaver for me, it’s definitely more than just a course.

’
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Governance
Frameworks

which don't issue a grading.

IMPACT
MANAGEMENT
PROJECT

Impact Management
Project

The mpact Vanagemean: 2roject

+ 22 global forum for bunldimg
conigensus on how o measure,
manage and reportimpac:

= 1S a pracuionar comimamy of
owsr 3000 orgamsanons and
Invesiors

» Provides a set of norms
and a sharaed and hohsne
nde ncdineg of impact

= —ag five core dimensions of
mp.acs What? Whao? =ow much?®
Contnibunon and sk,

Sector Specific

Operating Principles for

*— Impact Management

The Operating
Principles for Impact
Management

The Opearaineg Sroaplss are s
framework for inves:ors for the
design and wnplementaton of their
NP ACT MANGgemsn’ sys ans.
« snzunng thamirnpact
CONSIdBranon s are mTegriaTed
shrougiung “he mvemens
lifecyale
raptemented through chfferens
s of gyetems
=ach of which can be designed
=0 017 the neede of anondindanal
ST LN
oot prescnbe specific tools
and approaches, or specife
IMacT me
» ncdustry parn
exacTed Toconin

%

aremmens frarmewerorks

SITITE ATe

laartt from ench other as “hey
mpb=mens the rin:siples

« Over 90 signed up adopiers and 20 endorsers
= 2 themes and 48 crizena for -3G reporang by housing associations
= Oualiratve and quanazanve and aredennfied as core and enhanced requuremen s 20 demonsirie

grong -8G performaneea

aal and governance (o8

tagral Sarkes

ASECCIATION: rnemlee,

mocrations, banks lenders and inwves

SUSTAINABLE
DEVELOPMENT

GOALS

United Nations
Sustainable
Development Goals

m 200 UM countries adoptad
“he 2030 Agenda for Sustaimable
Developmen: and s 1/
Sustamahle Developmen: Goals
{8 3Gs"
= “the 30Gs call for worldwude
ACTION AMONG Jgovearnmenss,
busimess and civil socey 10 end
povery
a hife of dignisy and
oppormamty for all, wirhim the
Loundanes of “he plane:
Compames are encouragad o
select which goals are aligned
with their business activimes
and repors on how they are
working o achieve “hem

e Credrt

U= an early adoprer of <he Sastamabilivy Reporing Standard for Social —ousmyg (the Standard . The Standard,
developed through a collaboraiion between hosing .
s1igned ap early adoprers and endorsers

-ory, has over 100

Will helys the secror gstablhizh a crechBle, meamngtul. and consistent approach o rteporing 178 eNvVITrenmEntal,
E yperformance
Allgmed tomrernanonal framewrorks and standards melading the Unred Naniens Sustamable Developmen: Goals
Global Reporang moanve (G2 3A33 Susamabihny Accountng Standards Soard), OV A nternanonal
wrationt and oS A Loan Sarks




United Nations Sustainable Development Goals
(“UN SDGs”) Alignment

Impact Objectives UN SDGs
Provide high-quality, energy efficient homes " .
Acqguire High-Quality Homes incorporating adaptations for people with .
lifelcng care needs T

Target properties which address the needs,
and improve health and wellbeing of
vulnerable individuals requiring a high level

refurbishments and care providers on
responsible employment terms. including
living wage

- AR
of care 3 WAL 8 mn:mm
O Local 1ok creation during construction
O =Q  satisty Social Need i iders /”/
@ atisfy Social Nee Employment via Approved Providers/ "

Offer local apprenticeships and contribute to
local community events

% Provide Value for Money for public care and
. housing budgets by enabling vulnerable
Val for M o . S
Provide Value for Money individuals to move out to institutional and
residential settings

Buy and convert existing and newly
Increase Supply caompleted properties from private to social
housing sector in perpetuity

Ensure Approved Providers and Care
Providers have the capability and capacity
1 PANTNERSHERS
FOR THE BOALS

to deliver high-guality service and outcomes
@U Build Quality Partnerships for residents over the long term
Green lease terms to he agreed with the @
counterparties
Adopt sustainability policy at governance level

Governance

Counterparty Governance

CIM. the Company's Investment Adviser. has engaged actively with its Approved Provider partners througheut the last
year, providing shared advice and learning through:

U {0 0 U
Weekly meetings with Monthly compliance Monthly and quarterly
: 1 meetings to review

key operational staff mormnitoring
strategic priorities

and key performance

indicators
This counterparty engagement has ensured that CIM is able to proactively work with its Approved Providers with any
matters arising to support a continued high level of operational performance. This support builds on our
long-term relationship with the senior management and helping to build resilience within the organisations.

Regular seminars

Monthly Seminars

C A hag connnued to underiaks monchly governance OV hosts guarerly Approved Crovider seminars on qd
and health and zafery morusonng across “he porffolio. r=gpalar Base The nexs seminar 1y expacied o be held

1 Summer 2003
Avproved rtoviders have demonsrated resiience

and connmued lngh levels of comphance with health
& osafery standards
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Governance
Indices

CIM’'s implementation of the Board's commitment to continuous improvement in its approach to ESG integration
remains core to the investment strategy. Over the last year, we have engaged with ESG Rating Agencies such
as GRESB (formerly Global Real Estate Sustainability Benchmark), MSCI (Morgan Stanley Capital International},

Sustainalytics, and EPRA sBPR.
What is it?
GRESB is ‘he ]eadm(] ustamakihity bhenchmark

for the global real estata secior Assassmen's ake
-_ place anmially and are quded by faciors thar

" L mves ors and the indusiry consider to be matenal
1351123 in the sustainability performance of real
G RESEB assetinveas:men:s The benchmark assessmen:
covers more ‘han 850 propery companies, 2z:1's,
funds and developers
MSCI ESG Ratings provide insigh-im:o o
e nzks and opporamTies wrhim malt-ns
MSCH LA por'f()lh‘m VSO rate 75600
' Ther exposura “oo sty <1(11|1f1um' R50G nsks
cUlf.i “herr alnley so manage Those nisks relanve to
sty peers,
Sustainalytics measure how well comparies
) proacively manage the envitonmental, soaal and
. SUSTAINALYTICS gqovernance 1sses That are mos: matenal 1o ther
T stamag coneay RESlaTES 3 bhased on a sractured, olb¥ecnve and

Trang
an a
rsk

A

nT mehodology The 053G ranngs provide
somern: on companies abihly 1o mitigate
and caprahse on opporminies

EPRA BPR Guidelines foris onomaking the
finanai4l statements of pubho real estae
companes clearer and more comprarable
E _P._R A BT sarope s s designed “o enhanee he
read BT o ransparency and coherances of The sector as a
whole arcd play o mnporian tolen
Jlobal floe teaptral o the surapean |
Propery « T.

EPRA sBPR Guidelines >rovide o ronws:
of meazunng =g amalnhs performanc

ﬁ PLoare rarneg the zrandards and o
paring for Ligte
STOpRe

d real estan

norecograton of propery compames shat have
fally adoprad - s 402 or =307 Gandelnies
invdd wrhieh have subimotied anoas e f ~heir
serformance agams he quudshm Ry
ararial SR s A and 2 Gaaect G
ATT=T10 prerhiorm ros e mdependens
=rral parner “he gurveyed companiies are
1‘f¢3rrlcw1 a1ther a Gold, Silver or dronge Sovard,

Al

PIATC

How is CSH rated?

S retamned rs A score followimg
he (22-58 abhe hsclosure
Ansesgment 20 ‘)

.
Loy

« Ceer Group f‘wemqe grore of 3
o CR=mup o2 prostion within es
Companson Groap L < Residantall

+ O8= V5O
« (7 has made relevan: policies
avallable o MSC, and ather rasing
agencres shrough hosing on

the CVowebsiie on behalf of The
Company,

This shoadd Le reflec
FATING ALZessEnT

=5G raning of BB

=dn future

o OE= Tas an =36 ek it seare
i+f 14.9 {(Low Risk) on e analyies

« 5= recewved a Gold Avrard for
524 3P reporang i W0%2 This
1= an improvemen® on The Sillver
Award receved i 2077

« 8% submismon for SPRA 8328
agFesEment remaing ander
conscderanon
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Board of Directors

The Directors of the Company who were in office during the period and up to the
date of signing the financial statements were:

Michael Wrobel, Chairman

Michae has over 40 years expericnee in the invesurent
indusiry as a porifo.io manager and of rinning insittutional
nusinesses and retail businesscs at Fidetity and Garimore, He

serves as a lrustee director of lhe BAT UK Pension Fund, ine Male 60%
De.usche Bank UK pension schemes and as a trusiee of the
Cooper Gay (Hoidings) Limited Retremen: Benefits Scheme, Female 40%

Michael has previpasly served as a non-execcnve Direcior of
scvera. invesiment irusis and a numbper of indusry associaions.
Micnae. has an M.A. 0 Economics from Cambridge University

Michac, was apoointed to the Board on 24 Octoboer 2016 and has
served as Cnairman since his appoinuren:.

Caroline Gulliver, Director

Caroline is a cnartered accountant with over 25 years cxperience a: Ernst & Young LLE. During tha: ume.
she specialised iniae assel managemen: 2ecior and deve oved cxiensive experience of invegimen:
trusts. She was a memoer of various technical comrmiitees of the Association of Invesiment Companies,
Sneis also a non-executive director and a.adit commiztee chair for JP Morgan Gooba: Emerging Markels
[ncome Trust p o International Biolochnology Trust ple and anrdn Furopean Logistics Income p.c,

Caro.ine was appointed 1© the Board on 24 Ociober 2016 and nas served as Audit and Managaomen:
Engagemen: Commitiee Chair since her apuoinimen: .

Peter Baxter, Director

Peler has over 35 years expericnce in the invesimaent managemrent indusiry. He 1s a direclor of Snowpa.:

Tmpac: Managemen: Lid. a socla) impact invesimen: organisa:ion, and a trustee of Trus! for London. a

charranie foundazion. le is aiso a non-execuive director ol B.ackRook Creater Turopean Invesimen:

Trds: gle. Previous.y. ha served as Chief Execuiive of O:d Mat.al Asser Managers (JK) [:d, and has

wor<ed for Schroders and Hil Sam.ae. in a variety of invesimen: roies He holds an MBA tron London

B.sinaess Schoo, and 18 an associate of 1ne Soctety ot Invesinten: Professiona.s, i

Peter was appointed 1o the Board on 24 Qcioper 2016 and is (0o Senior Independen: Direcior and
Nomination and Rem.neraion Commitee Chalrman

Alastair Moss, Director

A.astair is a propery deveiooment awyer with over 20 years experience and 12 a pariner at Fhl
Dickinson He was a non-execitive direcior of Notuang Hii Genesis Trast He s also a former Cnairman
of 1ne Invesiment Commitiee of the City of London Corooratiion. its Propertly Investmen: Board and its
Planning and Transportaion Committea e is a Trugice of Marsha..'s Charity He has also been a noard
memoer of om0 Housing Association and was a memnocr of (e Arca Board of CiiyWes: tlomes He was
a Counci_or at Wes:iminsier City Counci. for 12 years, inc..ding mis endre as Charrman of 7ae P anning &
Ciity Developmen: Commriitae

Alastair was appoinied 0 ine Board on 24 Qaiober 2014

Alison Hadden, Director

Acison has over 30 years expcerience in the nodsing indusry and nag ne.d a namoer ol Executive
DOSHIONS 4l SCVETd. Ma ol No.Lsing assoclations. inc. ading CRO at Paradigm Housing. In these roles, sne
aas worked witl many of 10 s;akenoders m (he indasiey. ine sding :he Reg.alaor of Socia. Housmyg
Sne s currenyy Vice Chaalr and a wemper of e Governance Comminee of Peags and Pains Housing
and Chair of Heyford Regeneranon. a for-oroii Ho.sing Association operasing in the Cherwe.. arca

Alison was appoinied to tne Board nn 21 Novemoer 2019



Report of the Directors

The Directors present their Report and the audited consolidated financial statements

for the year ended 31 March 2023.

Principal Activities

The Company s a clesed-ended inves:ment company
and 15 a R=IT which wag incorporated 1n England and
Wales on 29 Seprember 2016, The Company 1s the holding
company of a number of subsidianes and 1s Ordinary
shares were admiited to rading on the Mam Market

of the L.ondon S:ock txchange on 18 November 2016.

The Company mvests 10 properies or property-holding
$52Vs, ether directly or via a wholly-owned subsidiary.

n accordance with the Company's inves:mernt objecive
and pelicy.

Business Review

A review of the business and future developments 1s
contained 1 the Chairman's Statement and investment
Advisers Report The principal nsks and unceramnties are
deralled on pages 30 to 33, See note 330 for a summary of
the post balance shee: events

Results and Dividends
The resalis for the year are shown on page 4

The following dividends were pald on the Ordinary
shareg dunng the yean

Fourth quarteri;r 1.387 5;5 perish are

dividend paid on 28 June 2672
firsii'quarterly_ - ~428p per?éﬁ
dividend paid on 9 Sepiember 2072
Secéndguanieﬂyi o '._4?.Tp ﬁer“share
dividend pad on 9 December 2022
Vﬁirdiqdaﬁierly o ".?4?.517 per share
dividend paid on 20 March 2025

Since the year end, the Company has declared the
following dividend:

Fourth qTJ;arterly
Mividend

4??1) p?shsre
- __pad on 9 June 2025
No final dividend 1s being recommended on the Ordinary
shares.

Directors
The members of the Board are listed on page 48.

All Jirectors served throughourt the period under review.

The Board congists solely of non-execunuve Directors.,
each of whom is independent of the nvestmen: Adviser
The Company has no execuluve Drectors or employaes.

‘n accordance with Board pehcy, all Jireciors will retire
and, being eligible, will stand for re-elecuon at the AGM.

Performance evaluation of the 3oard, 128 Commuitiees and
indrnidual Directors 1s carned outin accordance with the
procedure sot our on pages 56 and 57,

No Director 1s under a contract of service with the
Company and no 2Irector or any persons connected
with them had a matenal inzeres: in the ‘ransactions
and arrangemen:s of The Company. Jetatls of Directors’
remuaneratlon are se: our in the Directors’ Remuneration
Report on pages 61 10 BY

The beneficial inzeres:s of the Directors in the gecunnes
of the Company are ge? out in the Directors’ Remanerasion
Repor: on page b7

Through heir Letiers of Appoinimen:, the Company

has provided indemnines '0 the Directors, to the extent
permitzed by law and the Company's Articles. in respect
of habilities which may anse 1n connecion with claims
relaung o their performance or the performance of the
Company whilst they are hirectors. There are no other
guahfying ~hird-pary indemmnues i force.

The general powers of the Directors are contained
within the relevan: U< leqisianon and the Company's
Arucles of Associanon. The Directors are enitled to
exercise all powers of the Company, subyec: 1o any
himzanons imposed by the Articles of Agscanon or
applicable leqislanon. As ser out on page 50, the Arucles
of Associanon may only be amended by way of a special
resolution of shareholders.
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Report of the Directors
Continued

Capital Structure

Issue of Shares

At the AGYW held on 15 Septemnber 2022 the Direciors were
authonsed o 1s3ue equlty securliles up ¢ an aggregate
nominal amount of £610,736 (being approximately 0% of
‘he1ssued Ordinary share capuialy

The Company was also authortsed o disapply
pre-ermption rights in respect of equity secuntes and
t01ssUe equity secunues for cash up to an aggregate
nomingl amount equal 16 £610,736 (being approximarely
0% of thessued Ordinary share capital).

Purchase of Own Shares

L the AGM held on 15 September 2022, the Directors were
graned the authonty to buy back up to 91.549,383 Ordinary
shares, reing 14.99% of the Ordinary shares in issue a- the
ume of the passing of the resoluton.

During the year, the Board mamntamned the Company's
share buyback programme, ander which a -otal of
6,050,000 shares have been purchased into rreasury for an
aggredate amoun: of £4,624,.947.50 (nominal value £60.500,
represening $.97%) as at 31 March 2023

The authorty 10 buy back up 1o 31,549,583 shares will
expire at the conclusion of the nex: AGM of the Company
or on 30 September 2023, whichever 1s earher, when

a resolution for its renewal will be propogsed “urther
mformasnion will ke containead in the Notuce of AG™M which
will e circulazed to shareholders in due course.

Current Share Capital

As at 37 Varch 2023, there were 622467380 Ordinary
shares inssue, of which ‘6,075,000 shares were held 1n
rreasury, represeniing 1.6% of the Company's :o1al 1ssued
share capual The total voung nghts of the Company as at
31 March 2023 was 606.386,580,

Shareholder Rights

Ordinary Shares

zach Ordinary shareholder 18 enatled 1o ane vore

on a show of hands and. on a poll, =0 one vo:e for
every Ordinary share held. The nigh: o anend and
vote at general meeings of the Company may be
reswicted where a shareholder has farled o provide
informasion pursuant 1o a notce served under secnon
793 of the Compantles Act 2006, The Ordinary shares
carry “he righ: -0 recewe dividends declared by “he
Company. “rovided the Company has sausfied all of
s liabiliies, dunng a winding-up of the Company,
‘he holders of Qrdinary shares are enutled w all of the
surplus asses of the Company.

Transfers of Shares

There i1s no resiricuon on the wransfer of the Company’s
shares oher Than ransfers o maore than four jormn:
-ransferees and transfers of shares which are no: fully
pard up or where ~he wransferor or any other person whom
‘he Company reasonably believes ' be imnzerested in the
-ransfaeror’s shares has been duly served with a nonce
puarsdant o secnon /95 of the Companes Ac: 2006,

There are no special rights with regard 1o control astached
“0 secuniles; o agreements between holders of securiues
regarding their 'ransfer known to *he Company; and no
agreements which the Company s party o tha: might
affect its control following a successful takeover bid.

Articles of Association

The Company's Articles of Associanion may only be
amended by a special resolution a: a general meeuanyg of
‘he shareholders.

As at the date of signing this Report, the total voung
rights of the Company was 606,386,380

Management Arrangements

Investment Adviser i

The 3oard has appointed *the ‘nvestmen: Adwiser, Civizas
nvestment Managemens: _imited, 1o provide imvestment
adwvice and to agset manage the preoperty por:folto and the
associated day-ro-day acuvities, including management
of :enanzed properties and marketing acuviies C Vs a
specialist inves or In social housing property. with a focus
on specialist social housing, and has exiensiwve expenence
In soclal housing and real estate investment.

The duties of C’M nclude the sourcing of investmen-

opporaanities that meet “he invesrmens: critena of the

Company, controlling the acaguisiaon of approved

properies, asset managemen: of all properues within

“he pordfolio, ongoing monitoring of the properies and

enants, maintaining compliance with all relevant riles

and regulatons, and providing markeung and investor

relations services o the Company |

Dezalls of the fees payable 10 the nvesiment Adviser are
described innote 86 of the finanaial statements. The
basis for the calculation of the investmen: Adwviser’s feas s
based upon the [TRS NAV.

The agreement with C2Mas terminable on not less than
“2 months notce by erther party, such notice not o expire
aarlier than 30 May 2025 |

The performance of the ‘nves:men: Adviser has

been reviewed on an ongoimng basis “hroughour the

penod by the 3oard ar 1is quarterly meesungs. A formal

annuaal evaluaton ig also carmed pur by the Audiz and !
Managemen: tngagemen: Commies.

The 3oard considers a number of factors inclading
investmens: performance, the quality and quancity of
invesimen: opporzaniues presen:ed, the skills and
expernience of key gtaff and “he capabihty and resources
of the inves'men: Adviser ‘o deliver sanisfactory
performance for the Company. The 3oard s sansfied with
“he performance of the ‘nvessmen: Adviser and conswlers
18 connued apponimen: o be in the best intereste of the
Company and 17s shareholders.

The Board has noed the ineniion of Wellness Unity
amrred (@ wholly owned subsidiary of C< Asser Foldings
simrred) o mamsain Civitas nvestmen: Vanagemen:
aimited as onvestmen: Adviser to the Company once the
Takeover 1= completed. On 23 June 2023, “he Takeover Offer

became uncondiional



Report of the Directors
Continued

AIFM

G0 Caprzal Limited ('G10" or the *"AT"IM") has been
appom:ed as the Company's ATV with effec: fram

24 Auguast 207/ The APV carteny receives a monthly
fee of 2.7 basis ponts of the Company's total NAV for its

services and the agreement s rerminable on *hree months’

notice by either party,

Depositary

Indos Nnancial ltmuted was appointed as the Company's
Pepositary with effect from @ June 20°8 The Depositary
prowvides cash monronng. safekeeping and asset
verfication and oversight funcions as prascribed by the
Alternatve investmen: Jund Managers Jirecuve. The
Deposiiary rece1ves an annual fee of £59,.000, net of VAT,
plus C.006% of the firs: £350 milhon of any new equity
capital rawsed per annum and 0.0038% of further equity
raised per annum, subjec: to a maximum fee of £.50,00C
per annum. The agreement 1s terminable on six months’
nottce by eirther pary.

Administrator

The Company has appomnied Link Allernanve ~unad
Administrazors amited ("Link” as the Admimistrazor

of the Company and 115 subsidiaries, with effec: from

28 “ebruary 2078, so under-ake the accountancy and other
administrative duies of the Company. lank is a speclalig:
admimstrator for invesumen: fands, providing suppor:
funchions and experise talorad for this indasiry

The Admimsitator recewves a fixed base fee for the
proviston of 11s services o the Company as well as an
enttlement to addinional variahle feaes for dunes relasing
0 corporate acuviies The agreemens 1s terminal:le on at
leas: s1ix months notce by ether parry.

The dunes of the Administirator include "he mam:enance
of all Company and subsidiary books and records,
excluding those mamzained by the Investment Adviser,
monitoring comphance with apphcable relevant rules and
regulanons and other admimistranive duties as required.

Company Secretary

link Company Vatlers Limited was appoinied as the
Company Secretary to the Company with effec: from

28 March 20.8. The Secretary recewes a fixed fee for the
provision of 17s services o the Campany. The agreemen:
was for an utial pertod of one year and thereaf:er

adtomatcally renews for successive penods of 12 months.

danless terminated by ether party on at leas: six months’
noice,

Review of Service Providers

The performance of *he service providers 15 reviewed

on an ongoing basis througheus the period by the

Audir and Management Fngagemen: Commit:iee and
formally once a year. The Commitee considers a number
of factors inchuding performance of dusies, the skills

and experience of key s:aff. and the capabilizy and
resources of the service provider ¢ deliver sansfaciory
performance for the Company

The Board s sausfied with the performance of the service
providers appointed by the Company and cansiders their
continued appom:ment 0 be 1n *he bes interests of the
Company and 135 shareholders.

Substantial Shareholdings

AT 3L March 2623, he Company had been mformed of
‘he following disclosable interests in the share capital of
the Company:

Numbet of Percentage of

Ordinary Tolat Voling
. . B . o . 5lla(e§ Rights
nvestec Wealth & nvesimen: Limited 62,653,877 10.33
Skandinawviska =nskilda 3anken A3 60661 567 000
(publ
Standard afe Aberdeen 30192544 L03
1\:‘Ias:s:achusexts Jnancial Services 40,500,114 500
Company
Tiney Smith & Wilhamson Limited  28.844.325 476
Legal & General Group 21¢ (Group!  18.2535.74¢ 300

BlackRock, nc Zelow 5%

Continuation Vote

n accordance with 1:s Aricles, the Board proposed an
ordinary resohinion that the Company should coninuae
n s curren: form o shareholders at the AGM held on
5 Seprember 2022, As the resolution was approved by
shareholders. the Company will therefore connnie s
husiness as presently consutated and will propose a
further connnuanon resolation at the AGV n 2027 The
Board 15 mimdful *hat, as the Takeover Offer by Wellness
Lnuy imized (a wholly owned indirec: subsidiary of
C< Asser Eoldings amned) has on 23 June 2023 been
declared uncondiiional, the resolutions propoesed and “he
forma: of the Company's future AGVs may be impacted.

Listing Rule 9.8.4

The hisiing rule 9.8.4 ouzlines a series of requuirements
for hszed companies to discicse certain ttems, The
Direcrors confirm that the Company 18 required to make
a disclosure 1in respect of the diversity requiremen:s
odatlined 1 Listing Rule 98 6 (9). This disclosure can

be found on page 56. There are no further disclosures
required i relation 1o astng ule 9.8.4.

Financial Instruments

The Company alliges financial instramen:s in 1ts
operations. The financial insiruments of the Company a:
31 March 202% comprised rade receivables and payables,
o:her debrors, cash and cash equivalents, non-current
borrowings, current borrowings and denvatuves.

Other than itg fixed interes: rate debt facihues, 1118 the
Direczaors' opimion that the carrying value of all financial
insiruments on the Consolidared Statement of [Ninancral
Position 18 equal o thetr fair value.

“or a more detalled analysis of the Company's financial
risk managemerns, please refer to note 31.0 of the
finAancial staTements,
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Report of the Directors
Continued

Greenhouse Gas Emissions

The 3oard has consgidered the requiremenss 1o disclose
the annual quantty of emissions in tonnes of carbon
dioxide equivalen: for activities for which the Company
15 tespongible. The 3oard believes that the Company
has. from a formal reporting perspective, no reporable
emissions as this reporung falls under the lessees’
responsibility as part of -he terms of their fully repainng
and insunng leases: emissions produced from either

‘he requsiered office of the Company or from the offices
of other service providers are deemed o fall under he
responsibility of other parues: and the Company has no:
leased or owned any vehicles which fall inside the scope
of the GG Protocol Corporate S:andard. 'nrelanon o
the Streamlined Energy and Carbon Reporung (S2CR),
implemented by The Companies (Directors’ Report) and
Tamred Labilry Partnershups (Energy and Carbon Repors)
Regulanons 2078, for the year ended 3! March 2023 the
Group s considered to be a low energy user.

Regardless of the obliganons of other paries. the
Company takes the 1ssue of environmental enhancement
and emissions seriously as par: of 115 overall R5G sTrategy
and 1s evaluaung the porifoho working with housing
managers, 1o consider where 1t can bring abouat further
enhancements and improvemen:s,

Further detalls can be found inn the Environmen:al, Social
and Governance repor: an pages 3/ 70 46

Political donations

No pohtcal donatueons were made by the Combany or 1's
subsichanes dunng the year or the prior year

Charitable Donations

n addinen to s direct imvesiments, the Company plays
a broader part within the communiies in which 17
works Whilst recogrising the pracical imeations tha:
all fiinancial iInvestors face, Civitas suppors voluntary
organisatoens that are acuve within the broader housing
and homelaessness envircnmen: Civitas also intends, as
part of 1's broader financial and operataonal repor:ing, o
provide a commenrary on the poginive soclal change
and impact that results from the inves:men:s tha: have
been made.

The following chantable donations were paid dunng the
veur:

Chariy nonauon
Choir with No Name o £7.350
“ouase of 3t 3arnabas F30.728
WS~ F6.690
The Care Workers' Chariy £0.000
ol - | Fe1768

Independent Auditors

‘n “he case of each Direcior in office as the date the Repor:

of “he Direciors 1s approved:

e 350 far as the Dwector s aware, there s no relevan:
audlr mmformanon of which -he Group and Company's
auadizors are unaware, and

e they have taken all the steps tha they ought to have
taken as a Dwrecior In order 1o make themselves aware
of any relevant audit information and o establish tha:
the Group and Company's auditors are aware of that
information.

“rnicewa‘erhouseCoopers 1.7 has expressed its willingness
to conunue to act as auditors of the Company and a
resolution for its re-appoinimen: will be proposed at the
2023 annual general meeting. The Board 18 mundful tha+,
should as takeover offer by Wellness Unity limated (a
wholly owned indirect subsidiary of CK Asser Holdings
rimred) has on 23 June 2023 been declared unconditional.
-he resolutions proposed and the format of the Companys
AGV may be impacied.

Takeover Offer Process

On 9 May 2023, the Company announced that the Board had
reached agreemen: with Wellness Unity Limated (a wholly
owned indirect subsidiary of CX Asser Holdings Timited)
(zhe 'Offeror” on the terms of a recommended all-cash
offer for the enure 1ssued share capi:al of the Company. to
ke mplemented by a Takeover Offer (the "Offer”}

Under the terms of the Offer, each shareholder will be
en:led to receve 80 pence i cash for each share held

in the Company. n addiaon, shareholders who were on
*he reqister at the close of busmess on 19 May 2023 were
entrled wo recerve and retain the fourh quarter dividend
of 1425 pence (n respec: of rthe periad * January 2023 <0

3 March 2024

rurther on 22 May 20235, the Company 1ssued a circdlar o
shareholders with respec: 10 the recommended cash offer,
which sat out that for sharsholders wo accep: the Offer a
“orm of Acceptance must be received by the 2ecewving
Agent no later than 27 July 20235 Subsequent 1o this, the
date for shareholder Form of Acceptances to be recerved
by the Receiving Agen: was broughr forward 1o 23 june
2023 0On 23 June 2023 he offeror announced that the offer
was declared uncondional.

The Board, which has been advised by the Company's
Joint 3rokers {(Panmure Gordon and Liberum) as o the
financial :erms of the Offer. considers the rerms of the Offer
<0 be fair and reasonahble

The Offeror has indicated 11s intenton (subjecs to *he Offer
being declared uncondrional with the Offeror obtaiming
75 per cent ¢or more of the vening nghs of the Company®:
<o delist the Company from ~he London S:ock mxchange
Vain Marke: for histed secunties and thereaf:er re-register
*he Company as a pnvate imized company as soon as
praciicable following the cancellanion of lsiing and
-rading of the Company’s shares. This process will 1ake
place follownng “he release of the Annual Repor.

Corporate Governance

The Corporate Governance Statemen:, *he 2epor: of the
Auadiz and Vanagemen: sngagemen: Commiiee and the
Jrectors’ Remuneranon Repor: form part of the epor: of
“he Direciors

Approval
The Repor: of the Jirectors has been approved by the 3oard
3y order of the 3o0ard

Link Company Matters Limited

Company secretary
28 Fuane 2023

FOR AND ON BEHALF OF LINK COMPANY MATTERS LIMITED
COMPANY SECRETARY r? c '7-~L_,—



Corporate Governance Statement

Background

The 'CA Z1suhg Rules and Disclosure Gudance and
Transparency pules roequire histed companics wo discluse
how they have applied the principles and comphed

with the provisions of the corporate governance code

to which the 1ssuer 1s subjec:. The provisions of the UX
Corporate Governance Code (‘UK Code’), as 1ssued by the
FRCn Jily 2078, are apphcable 1o the year under review
and can be viewed at www.frc orguk.

The Board has considered the principles and
recommendasions of the AIC Code of Corparaze
Governance {"4iC Code" as1ssued by the A/Cin “ebruary
2009. The AC Code addresses all the principles set out in
the UK Code, as well as seing our additional principles
and recommendarions on 18sues tha: are of specific
relevance 10 the Company as an Investment company.
The "RC has confirmed thar A’C member companies
who report against the A/C Code will he meeting their
oblganons i relation o the UK Code and the associated
disclosure regruirements of the “CA. The AC Code can be
viewed at wwwhealc.couk.

The 3oard considers tha* reporung agains: the principles
and recommendanons of the AlC Code provides
shareholders with full details about the Company's
corporate governance compliance.

Statement of Compliance

Zxcept as ser oul below, the Company has comphed
with the provisions of the A'C Code throughous: he vear
ended 37 March 2073

Provisien 23: nirectors are not appointed for a specified
term. as all rectors are non-execuatve and the Board
Lelieves that a Directar's performance and heir
continued contnbution 1o the runmng of the Company
1s of greater importance and relevance 0 shareholders
than *he length of ume for which they have served as a
Oirector of the Company. Fach irector 1s subject to the
election and re-election provisions get out in the Aricles
which provide that a Dwrector appom:ed duning the year
15 requuired 16 retire and seek election by shareholders

at the next annual general meenng following their
appommiment, Thereafer the Directors intend to offer
shemseives for re-election annuaally and will aim 1o not he
on the 3oard for more than mne years.

The UX Code mncludes provisions relasing to:

e therole of the chief executive; and

e  execullve diTeciors remunerainon.

The Board considers that these provisions are no: relevan:
to the posizion of the Company, being an exernally
managed investment company. !n partcular, all of the
Company's day-ro-day management and admunstrative
funchions are outsourced to third parties. As a resuls,

the Company has no execuuve DIreciors, employees

or internal operatiens. The Company has therefore na:
repored (Jritherin respect of these provisions.

The Board

Under the leadership of the Chairman, the Board

1s responsible for the effective stewardship of the
Company's affairs. including corporate strazegy.
carporae governance, risk assessment and overall
invesimen: pohcy. The Directors have overall
responsibilicy for the review of invesimen: acthivizy and
performance, and the supervision of the invesiment
Adviser which 15 responsible for the day-io-day asser
managemen: of the Company's por:folio
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The Board consists of five non-executive 2ireciors. .-
seeks to engdre that 1t has an approprate balance of
skills and expenence, and considers that, collectively, 1
has substanual recent and relevan: expenence of pubho
company managemens:, the UX real estate sector, social
housing and 1nvesiment companies, All the Ditectors are
independens: of the investmen: Adviser and the Al

The 3oard has adopted a schedule of maters reserved
for deciston by the 3oard, including inter aha,
determining the Company's mveastmen: okjecuve and
pohcy. and geanng and dividend pohicies. This schedule
of matiers reserved for the Board s available on the
Company's webksie

The Directors ensure that nsks are effecuvely managed
chrough robust policies and procedures, supporied hy
‘he night values and culqure The 3eard's pnimary focus
18 the sustainable long-term success of the Group to
dehver value for shareholders, taking in:o accoun: other
srakeholders.
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Corporate Governance Statement
Continued

The 3oard 1s responsible for imvesimen: decisions, other
than 0 the exten: delegated o the A TM and/or the
‘nvesimen: Adviser, and the appoltmtmens, supervision
and monitoring of the Company’'s service providers,
inchading amongst others, the AlFM and the ‘nvesimen:
Adwigser The Board 1g responsibie for the intenim and
arirtual financial staterments of the Company and. in
conjuncuon with the AFV, also approves the periodic
calculation of the Net Asses Value

The Chairman, Michae! Wrobel, was independent of

the Invesiment Adviser at the ume of his appoimn:ment
and 1s deemed by his fellow Direciors 1o coninue to be
independent in character and judgement and free of
any confliciing relationships. He leads the 8oard and

is responsible for 1is overall effecuveness in direcung
the Company. 1 haison with the Company Secretary, he
ensures that the Jrectors recewve accurate, timely and
clear informaton. Mr Wrobel considers himself -0 have
sufficient tmie 1o commit 10 the Group's affars. Fe has no
gigmficant commitmen:s other than ‘hose disclosed In
his hiography on page 48 The role and responsibilies of
the Chairman are clearly defined and se: our 1in writing, a
copy of which 1s avallable on the Company's websie

Peter Baxteris the Senior ndependen: Director of

the Company. He provides a sounding board for

the Chairman and serves ag an intermediary for the
other Dwrec:ors and shareholders. =e also provides a
channe! for any sharehoider concerns regarding the
Chairman and :akes the lead 1in the annual evaluauon
of the Chairman by the other Jireciors. The role and
responsibiliiies of the Sentor ‘ndependernt Director are
clearly defined and se: out in wrnuing. a copy of which is
available on the Company's websie

The 3vard has no set policy for the leng:h of tenure of
Orectors although 1t keeps 1in mind the recommendations
of the AC Code dunng succession planning. 715 the
3oard’s policy for all Jirecrors to grand for re-election
annaally Recommendanons for election/re-elecuon of
Directors are made on an individual basis following
rIgorous review, Mrectors are appointed uander leters of
appowmntmen:, coples of which are available for inspeciion
a7 the requsiered office of the Company and at the AGN.

Board Operation and Culture

‘The Board meets formally at least quarterly, but also
meets on an ad hoo kasis for the purpose of considenng
potential ransactions and associated due diligence.
The Board will mee: 1o consider and, 1if appropriate,
approve the acquisihon of properies recommended

by the nvestment Adviser. The Investiment Adviser
prepares an ‘nvestment 2roposal Paper (1PP7 n regpect
of the proposged acqguisinons which includes details

of the transacuon and due diligence repors Lpon
review of the 1P2 the Board contemplates the structure
of the transacton, any risks attached ‘o the proposed
rransaciion and haw these would be miiigated/managed,
and “he unpac: of the wransacton on the value of the
Group's progerty portioho, following advice from

the valuers,

“or the purpose of monitonng the por:ifolio, the 3oard
recelves periodic repors from the Al-M and the
Investmen: Adwiser, detailing the performance of the
Company. The Board delegates ceriain responsibilities
and functions o the Audi: and Managemen: ingagemen:
Commiitee, which has written terms of reference.

To assigt the 8oard in *he day--o-day operanions of the
Company. arrangemers have been put in place o
delegate authonty for performng cerrain operalnons 1o
the ATTM, the nvesiment Adviser and other third-party
service providers, ssich as rthe Adminstrator and the
Company 3ecreary.

The Chairman demonsirazes objecnve judgemen:.
nromores a culiure of openness and debate, and
facihitates effecnive contributiions by all Direcrars. The
nrectors are recqiired 1o act with imzegniy, lead by
example and promore thig culture within “he Company.

The Board seeks 10 ensure the alignmen: of the
Company's purpose, valdes and sirazegy with the calure
of openness, debate and integrity through ongoing
dalogue, and engagemens: with the nvestment Adviser
and the Company’s other sarvice providers. The 3oard
and the nvestmen: Adviser operate ln a supporuve,
co-operaave and cpen environmen:.

The 3oard gchedules yearly meenngs with the board of
‘he nvesimen: Adviser. one of the purposes of which s
o recewe an nsight ino the ¢cuitare of the ‘nvesimen:
Adwviser.



Corporate Governance Statement
Continued

The culiure of the Board 1s considered as par: of

the annual performance evaluation process which

is under:aken by each Director. The culture of the
Company's service providerss also considered by the
Audit and Managemen: tngagement Commitiee during
ke annual review of their performance and while
considerning their contmuing appointment.

The Company maintains Direciors’ and Officers’ halbility
nsurance on pehalf of the Directors a: the expense of
‘he Company. which was 1n force during the vear ended
2. March 2023 and remains in force as at the dae of this
report. The Joard has agreed arrangements wherely
Directors may ake independent professional advice

n the furtherance of their dunes. The Company has

also indemnified “he Directors 1n accordance with the
provisions of the Aracles of Association.

Independence of Directors

The independence of all Jireciors 1s reviewed as part of
the annuaal assessmen: of the Board.

The Board has determined tha: each irecior remains
independent in characrer and judgemen: and s free of
any relationships or circums:ances tha: threazen their
independence of the Company or 17s 'nvesiment Adviser.
‘n paricular, none of the Directors have ever been
execuives of the Company or the nvestment Adwviser,
have had a matenal direc: or indirect relasionship

with the Company or 11¢ gtakeholders, have received
disproporiicnate fees, have close family relanionships
with stakeholders or represent significant shareholders.

Board and Committee Meetings

A formal agenda 18 approved by the Chatrman and
circdlatsed by the Company Secretary in advance of

each meeung ¢ "he non-execunve hrectors and other
attendees. A ypical agenda mcludes: an analysis of
porifolio performance and exposure; an update on

the investmen: pipelineg; the Company's financial
performance; updates on investor relations: statusory and
regulatory comphance; and any corporate governance
matiers, Relevan: papers on the izems included on the
agenda are circulated in good ime 1o the members of
the Board and s Comrmilitees, In advance of the meeting.

The Investmen: Adviser arends the Board meelings
rogeher with representatives from the AITM and
Company Secretary Representatives of the Company's
other advisers are also mmvized 1o aztend Board and
Commiziee meelings from ime o tme.

The number of 3card, Audiz and Management
Engagement Commitee and Nominaton and
Remunerason Committee meeings held durning *he year
ended 31 March 2023 along with the artendance of “he
Directors 18 set 0out below:

Auditand
Management Nomumation and
cruarterly Board Engagemenr Remuneranon

77777 Mectings Committee Comimittes
Number Number Number
entitled MNumber entitled Number entitied Mumber
Biﬂond atrended  roattend  attended  1oatiend  atended |
Micnae.
Wrobe 4 4 3 3 1 1
Alaslair
Maoss 4 4 3 3 1 1
Allson
Hadden 4 4 3 3 1 1
Caro.ine
Guaver 4 4 3 3 1 1
Peier

Raxier 4 4 3 3 1 1

The Board s scheduled to mee: on a quarterly basis.
naddimon to these meetings the 3oard also met on
‘hree occasions to approve the NAY and dividend
declarazions and on a further | occasions on an ad hoc
basis.

Committees

The Company operatas through the 3card and 118 two
3oard commiziees, namely the Audit and Managemen:
sngagement Commizree and the Nomimmaton and
Remuneration Commisee (the *Commitiees™). The 3ecard
evaluates the membership of the Committees on an
annuaal basis.

Audit and Management Engagement
Committee

The Audit and Managemen: Engagemen: Commiitee
compnses all Jrectors. Caroline Gulliver, the Chair of
the Audlt and Managemen: mngagemen: Commitiies,
15 a Chartered Accountant and is considered to have
recent and relevan: financial expenence. The Audir
and Managemen: Engagement Committee as a whole
has comperence relevan: 1o the real esiate invesimen:
company sector.

The Chairman is a member of the Audit and Managemeans
Engagement Commuitee, but does not chair 1t s
membership of the Audir and Management mngagemen:
Commutiee is consideraed appropriate given the small

size of the Board and the Chairman's knowledge of

the financial services industry. A copy of the terms of
reference of the Audic and Management mngagement
Commitzes 15 avallable from the Secretary and on the
Company's websie.
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Continued

The Committee meets at least three iumes a year and
reviews ‘he gscope and results of the external audit, 118
cost effectiveness and the independence and objectivity
of “he external auditors. including the provision of
non-audi: services.

The Committee alse reviews the terms of the AITM
agreemen: and the :nvegimen: Adviser agreemen:, and
examines the effecuveness of the Company's internal
control systems and the performance of the AII'M.
Tnvestment Adviser, Adminisirator, Deposniary, Company
Secretary and Registrar, and other service providers.

The Repor: of rthe Audit and Vanagement Engagemen:
Committee 1s set out on pages 60 10 62

Nomination and Remuneration
Committee

The Nomimanon and Remuneranon Commisies 13
comprised of all Directors and the Chairman 1s the Semor
Independent Direcior, Peter 3axter. The Nominanion

and Remuneration Commites meeats ag required for the
purpose of considenng recraimmen: 0 and removals from
-he 3oard; levels of remuneration pald “o the Dreciors;
and review of the Direciors Remuneration Report and
Remuneration Policy. A copy of the terms of reference

of the Remuneration and Nominaton Commitee is
avallalzle on the Company's website and is avallable by
reques: from the Company Secreary.

Board Diversity

The 3oard acknowledges the FCA rules on diversty and
inclusion on company boards

The 3oard g comprised of a mixzare of individaals who
have an appropnaze balance of skills and experience o
mee? the faure opportunities and challenges facing the
Company Appointmen:s o the Joard are made prnimanly
an mertt, Though she 3oard understands the imporance
of diversty In cormporate governance and takes into
consideranion a variety of demographic annbates

and charactensnics when making decisions on 1ts
composinion. The 3oard 1z aware of the new Ligting Rule
*hati1s on a comply or explain’ asis which incorporates
the recommendationg of the arker and Rampron-
Alexander Reviews which considered how ethnic.
cultural and gender diversity could be improved on UX
boards. The Board has discussed the new ethnic diversiy
disclosures required, namely, that from accounung
periods starting on or after * Apnl 2022

a)l arleasr 40% of imdrnduals on “he 3oard o he women:

B} atleas: one senior 3oard postiion @0 be held by a
woman; and

¢ atleasr one individual on the Board 7o be from a
minortty ethme background

naccordance with Listing Rule 9 Annex 2.1, the below
table, 1n prescribed format show the gender of the
Owrectars at the year ended. The data below was
collected through self-repornng by “he Mrecters.

Numbcr of
seniot positions
on the Board

Numbet of
Roard members

Men 3 60 2
Womaen 2 40 —

Not specified/prefer
no' t0 say - - -

Percentage on

Gendenidentity or sex the Board (%)

Number of
SenLor positions
on the Board

Number of
Board members

Percentage on

Ethruc background the Board (%}

Wailie British orother
White {including

minoriiy wtite
gro.ops) 5 100 2
Mixed/Mu_tip.e Etanic
Croups - - -
Asian/Asian British

B.ack/African/
Carnpoean/Blacs
Britisn - — -
Olaer ethinic gro.n

including Arab - - -
Not specified/prefer

1o say - - -

The 3oard s mindful thas, at present, it does not comply
with “he new ethnic and gender representation m
senior position diversity requirements and, the 3oard,
via the Nomination and Remuneraion Comimiiee, 1S
“aking appropriate steps to ensure that 3o0ard succession
planning takes thesge diversity redquirements into
consideranion

Induction of New Directors

A procedare for the induchon of new Jirectors has been
estabhshed. mchiding the provision of an induchon pack
contaming relevan: informanon abous the Company.

118 processes and procedures and meenngs with the
Chairman and relevant parsons at the nvestmen: Adwvizer

Performance Evaluation

sor the year ander review, the 3vard undertook

an internal performance evaluation by way of
aquesitonnalres designed to assess the sirengths and
mdependence of the 3oard and the Charrman, individual
Owrectars and the performance of the 3oard’s Commiiees
The areas considered are:

e ‘he frequency and effectiveness of Board and
Commiuiee meeings;

e the size compostion and relevant expenence of -he
3oard,
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e theindependence and performance of the Directors
and the 3oard; and

e thetraimng requurements of each Direc-or

The evaluation process 1s facilitated by the Company
Secretary under the Chairmans direction and siructured
to provide Jirectors with an opportunity to express
their views in addinon ‘o answering specific questions.
Peter 3axter, as the Semor ‘ndependent Director, leads
+he appraisal of the Chairman, The 3oard underiook an
external 2nard performance evaluaationin 2027 and 1s
cogrusant of their advantages, [t will keep “his option
under regular review.

The Company seeks 10 ensdre tha: the Board has a
balance of skills and expenence “hat are complemeantary
and enable ~he Board 10 operaze efficien:ly.

All of the Jireciors have assessed their other ongoing
commitmen:s and are sausfied tha: they can commis the
nume necessary to execdte their duties o the Company.

No significant issues were 1den:ified durnng the evaluatnon
process. The Nomimation and Remuneraton Comimnises
considers that all of the curren: Directors make an effective
coniribation and have the requisite skills and expernience
1o contnue o provide able leadership and direction for
the Company. = was agreed has all Directors should be
recommended for re-eleciion a: the nex: AGM. The 3oard
ts rindful that, should as Takeover Offer by Wellness

Lruty Limited (a wholly owned indirect subsichary of CX
Asger Holdings lamited) has on 23 June 2024 been declared
unconditional, the resolutions proposed and the format of
the Companys AGMV may be impacied.

The 3oard concluded tha* each Director bnings considerable
experise and experience 1 the Beard and the Board
operates with good independent though: and challenge.

All 3oard members have assessed their ongoing
commuiments and are sausfied that they can comrmit the
time necessary 0 execute therr dunes 1o the Company

The 30ard alsc uses ‘he performance evalaanon as an
opporunity 1o review and discuss strateqic issues for
“he Company.

Conflicts of Interest

All Directors have a s:atutory responsibiliy to avold
siruations where a conflict of inzeres: exists, or may

exist, between the Company and an entizy tha: the
Director 1s erther direc:ly or mdirec:ly involved with,

The Board has procedures in place o idenufy potenaal
conflic:s and resolve any that should arise. 'n :he case of
a conflict of interest, the nature and exten: of the conflic:
are asgessed agamnst the existing internal control sTruciure,
and the results of this assessmen: and achions taken to
resolve the conflict are documented in the minutes of
the relevant Board meeanng. No conflicts of interest arose
during the penod.

Health and Safety

Eealth and safety is of pnme importance to the

Company and 18 considered equally with all other
business managemen: activiiies to ensure proteciion of
siakeholders, be they tenan:s, advisers, suppliers, visitors
or others. The 3oard regularly discusses health and safery
1ssues with the nvestment Adviser.

The Company 1s committed to fostening the highest
srandards in health and safety as 17 believes that all
unsafe acts and unsafe condririons are prevenzable All
our szakeholders have a responsibihty to support the aim
of ensuring a secure and safe environment, and all our
stakeholders are :asked with rezpensibility for achieving
this commitmen:.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Directars are responsible for the systems of internal
control relating o the Company and 1ts subsidianes.
and the relabihy of the financial reporung process and
for reviewing their effeciiveness, ensuring “ha: the nsk
managemen: and conirel processes are embedded in
day-to-day operations.

An ongoing formal process, in accordance with the

TRC Guidance on Risk Managemen:, ‘nternal Control

and Relazed Mnancial and 3usiness Reporund. has been
astabhshed foridenifying. evaluanng and managing the
principal and other ngks most likely o impac: the Group
This process, which 1s regularly reviewed, rogether with
key procedures established with a view o providing
effective financial control, has been in place throughour
the vear ended 3. March 2023 and up o the date of this
Report.

The Audiz and Managemen: zngagemen: Commiieea has
n place a formal procedure for performing an ongoing
robus: assessmen: of the Group's risk management

and n:ernal conrol systams. A nisk matnx has been
established against which the rigks identified and the
controls in place 1o miugase ~hose rnisks can be monitored.
The risks are assessed on the kasis of the likelihood of
rhem happening, the impac: on the business if they were
o occar and the effectiveness of the conirols in place

<o mitigate them. In arriving art 118 judgemen: of whas
rigks the Company faces, the Board has considered the
Company's operattons 1n the ligh: of the following factors:

e the nawre and extens of risks which 12 regards as
acceptable for the Company o bear withan 1:s overall
business objecuve;

e -hethrea: of such ngks becoming realiny:

e -he Company's ability to reduce the incidence and
impact of nsk on 1tg performance; and

e -he cos::othe Company and benefits related o the
Company and third parnes operating the relevant
controls
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The rnisk matinx 1s reviewed twice a year by the
Commurtee and at other ames as necessgary. The pnnaipal
risks facing the Company are se: odt on pages 30 to 33 of
this Annual Repor:, together with the processes applied
to mitigate those risks.

On an annual basis, the Committee reviews the contral
repor:s of its key gervice providers and the auditors note
any cdeficiencies in internal controls and processes tha:
have been identified during the course of the audit.

The Audiz and Managemeant “ngagemen: Commitiea s
mindful of these key nsks as well as considenng evolving
and emerging risks such as the impac: of the ongoing
Ukrame-3ussia confhict, leng-term chimase change and
cyler secuarity which have rhe potential 1o affect the Group
The Committee ensures that the 3oard takes appropnate
advice and debates the 1ssues facing the Group.

At each 3card meenng. the Board receiwves repors from
“he Investmen: Adwiser, the Adoumistrator, the A2 and
-he Broker in respect of comphance activines, Company
financial performance and financial posiion.

The cantrols, which are reqgularly reviewed, aim 0
ensure that the asse:s of the Company are safeguarded,
proper accouning records are maintained, and the
financial informanon used withun the business and for
publication s rehable The nsk managemen: process
and Company systems of internal controls are designed
0 manacge rather than ebiminate the nisk of faillure o
achieve the Company's objectaves and can only provide
reasonable, bu: not absolute, assurance against maternal
misstatemens or l0ss

The nrectors have carried ous a review of the effeciveness
of the Company's risk managemen: and internal consrol
sygsrems as they have operazed over he pernod and up 0
“he daze of approval of the Annual Repor. Dunng “he course
of the reviaw “he 3oard has noridenufied nor been adwised
of any failings or weaknessas which it has deermmined o be
significan:.

The Directors have considered the appropriaeness of
egtabhshing an internal audi funcion and, havnng regard
w0 the structure and nature of the Company's acuviies,
hasg concluded “har the funciion s unnecessary. The Audis
and Yanagemen: kngagemen: Commizee will teview
on an annual basiz “he need for “his funciion and make
appropnaze recommendations (o the 3oard.

Financial Reporting

The 30ard opera-es rhe following key conuols 1in relaion
o finanecial reporang:

e “he Board and Commizes members review quarterly
managemen: reports and supporing documents thas
are provided by the nvesimen: Adviser

¢ “he Board has procedures in place for the approval
of expenses and paymeanss to third parnes: and

s he Cormmitiee members and 3oard review all
financial information and announcements prior
o publhicanon.

Corporate Responsibility

The Company regards corporate responsibiity as
integral 1o how it conduc:s 1ts business. t 15 commited o
being a good corporate criizen and behaving responsibly
with a demonstrated transparency of approach.

To achieve hus goal the Company applies the following
principles 1o 1ts operations:

Business Conduct

The Company's invesimen: decisions are made on the
bhasis of generaung shareholder value and ensuring

the long-term success of the business. The selecuon of
supphers will be made independently by the Company's
Owrectors upon advice from the _nvestment Adviser

and m the hest interests of the Company. The 3oard

will ensure tha: approprnae conirols are in place to
qarantee independence from the supply chain

All customers and supphers will e sreared farrly and
responsibly.

The Company will not provide financial suppor: o
pohttcal parues or pohncans

The Company 1s resoluely opposed o bnibery and
corrapion. The Company will not uase any legal or
mproper means o further 175 business interes:s, nor will
11 accept any forms of inducemen:s intended o influence
s Invesimern: decisions.

Governance

The Company will protec: the interes:s of 17s shareholders
and other s:akeholders through compliance with relevant
legal and regulatory environmen:s. and through effecuve
managemen: of business negk and oppormanity.

The Board will ensure thar i:s members are ruly
mdependen:, are compe:en: and have the resources and
suppor: required o perform their duties opamaltly, and
‘hat+he 3oard’s decisions ar2 made in the bestinteres:s
of the Company and 138 shareholders. The performance
of the 3oard will be regularly reviewed, and Direcrors will
renre as and when deemed appropnate by the 3oard n
accordance with best pracice,
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Socially Responsible Investment

The Board aims to ke a socially responsible inves:or
and keheves that 1t 13 important 0 1nvest 1n speciahs:
social housing properties 1n a responsible manner in
regpect of environmen:al, ethical and social 1ssues. ‘The
nvestmen: Adviser's evaluation procedure and analysis
of the properies within the porfolio includes research
and appraisal of such maters, and rakes into accoun:
environmental and social polhicies and other business
1Ssues.

“urther dezails on the social impact of the Company's
mvestments are imcluded in the Social impact repor: from
The Good Economy. a summary of which can be found
on page 40.

The Company recogniges that environmental protectiorn,
resource efficiency and sus:ainable development are
necessary ‘o ensdre tha: environmental damage 1s
hmized and furthermore that, where relevant, postive
acrions should be taken tounprove the exising
envircnmen: for furure generations

Transparency

The Company aums o be transparen:, and to ensure
*hat 1t communicates with 1ts shareholders and
other stakeholders in a manner that enhances their
understanding of 115 business.

The Company main.ains accouaning documentanion
that clearly wdensifies ~he true nature of all business
rransactions, assets and liabkihnes, in line with the
relevan: regulatory, accounting, and legal requuremencs.
Norecord or eniry 18 knowingly false, distored,
Incomplese, or suppressed.

All reporang 18 matenally accurate and complete and

n compliance in all matenal respec:s with siated
accodunung policies and procedures. The Company does
no: knowingly missiate or misrepresent managemens
nformanon for any reason, and the Company expects the
same 10 apply o us supphers.

The Company may be required 1o make stazements

or provide reports 10 regulatory bodies, government
agencies or other government departments, as well as to
~he media. The Company ensuares that such statements or
repors are correct, ;imely, and no: muisleading, and hat
they are dehvered *hrough the appropnate channels.

The Company provides, through s website, 1ts Annual
Report and other statements, appropnate imnmformaticn
to enable shareholders and stakeholders 10 assess

the performance of its business. = complies with

the applicable laws and regulations concermng the
disclosure of informauon relaing e the Company.

Communities

The Company auns o engdre tha: 178 propertaes which
are associated with the provision of health services
provide significan: value-adding facilities in the
communiies where 17 1nvests.

Relations with Stakeholders

Detalls regarding the Company's engagemen: with 1ts
stakeholderg are ser our within the Sraegic 2epor: on
pages 7 w0 25,

Approval

The Corporate Governance $zatemen: has been approved
by the 3oard.

3y order of the 3card

Link Company Matters Limited

Company Secretary

28 lune 2024
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Report of the Audit and Management Engagement Committee

Introduction

The Auadit and Management kngagemen: Committee (the
‘Comrmttee”) oversees the financial reporiang process for
rhe Commpany. with considerauon of the inerma) controls
and ngk management of the Company, and oversight of
“he Company's comphance with accounting standards
and regulatory requiremen:s. T also oversees the
performance of the Tnves:men: Adviser and the Company’s
admirustranive and company secretarnal suppor.

Composition and Role of the Audit and

Management Engagement Committee

The Commteens chaired by Carohine Gulliver and
compnses all the Jirectors The Commities operates within
writen rerms of reference which are avallable on the
Company s websiie as deterrmined by the Board

The principal funcuons of the Commitiee are o:

s overses the finanaal reporang process for the
Company and moniror the imzegrity of the financial
statemen:s of the Company and the Group, including
“heir compharnce with accounsing standards and
regulatory requiremen’s:

e adwise the 3oard, where requeasted, on whether the
Annaal Repor: and financial statemen:s, taken as a
whole, are fair balanced and understandable and
wrovide the informarnon necessary for shareholders
-0 assess the Company's postiion and performance,
business model and sirategy;

e review and moniorthe internal financial control and
nsk managemen: systems of the Company;

e monizor and review anndally whether an inrernal
audit funcuon s required:

e review the nvestmen: Adviser's whistleblowing
arrangements;

e approve the appoIinimens, re-appotn ment or
removal of the external audiors, and approve their
remuneration and terms of engagement;

e manage the relationship between the Company
and the external audrors, including reviewing their
mdependence and objecnvizy and “he effectiveness of
“he audit process;

e develop and implemen: a pohey an the engagemen:
of the exrernal aaditors o supply non-audi: services:
and

e review and maontor the performance of, and
contractial arrangements with, The nvesimen:
Adwviser. the A7V and other service providers.

iz wnrhin the Commitee's terms of reference for 10s
mermbers 1o seek Independen: professional advice, at the
Company's expense, as required in the furtherance of 17
dunes.

Meetings

The Commizee mee's three JImMes a year: oI "wo
occasions par of the meetuing 12 held with the extemal
audrors withou: the nvesimen: Adviser present. The
Comrmiuree mer three 1tmes in the financial yvear and the
meenngs were aended by each member as set our on
page 45

Performance Evaluation

The process for the evaluauon of the performance of the
Committee is disclosed on pages 56 and 57,

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Company has an ongoing process for idenufying,
evaluating and managing The principal and emerging risks
faced by the Group. “urther details can be found on pages
57 and 58

The principal rngks and ancerainties idenufied from the nsk
register and a descnption of the Group's risk management
procedures can be found on pages 30 10 33

Activities During the Year

The Commuiztee considered the Annual Repor:, Falf-Yearly
Report, any other formal financial performance
announcemen:s and any other mat:ers as specified
under the Commizees rerms of reference and repored o
the 3card on how 11 discharged its responsibilities,

The Committee discussed and considered the external
audit performance, oblectivity and independence, the
exernal auditors re-appolrimer:, accodning policies
and Alrernanve Performance Measures, sigrnifican:
accounting judgemen:s and estimares, the need for an
internal audit function and the nisk register,

The Committee concluded that an internal audiz
funcnon would provide minimal addinional comfor:
at considerable extra cost to the Company. ‘nternal
assurance 18 achieved by the exigung sysiem of
montonng and reporiing by ‘hird parties which the
Commitiee views ag appropnate and adequate. The
external audizors are also provided with third pary
internal controls reports and addmonal informanon,
as requested.

Juring the year. the Commizzee also conducied a
comprehensive review of the key agreements with

15s service providers, and a detailed review of the
performance, composiion. personnel, proceszes and
mnzernal control systems of the APV, a review of all of
‘he Group's other corporate advisers and key service
providers. The discussion included an assessmen: of
performance and surtabilicy of the services provided
n “he contex: of the fees paid o each provider, and a
review of the terminauon period of each agreemen:.

The Commuitzee considered *he rerms of the 'nvesimen:
Managemen: Agreemens, to ensuare 1T coninaes o reflect
she commercial arrangements agreed berween the
Company and the nvestmen: Adviser and was satusfied
~has this was the case.

The Commuztee discussed and considered the Takeover
Offer by Wellness Unity Limitted (a wholly owned
subsidiary of C< Asser Holdings Lamized), inclading the
work undertaken by the Company n relation 1o the offer,
1's impac: on the Companys rigk profile and on going
concern.
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Continued

Significant Issues Considered by the

Committee

The Commitiee considered the key accounting estirnaies
and judgemen’s underlying the preparation of the
financial statemen:s focusing specifically on

Valuation of Investment Property
The valuauon of the property portfolio 1s crucial 1o the
statermnen: of financial posinon and repor:ed resulis.

After discussion with the Invesimen: Adviser, the
Committee has determined tha: the key risks of
mussiatemen: of the Company financial statements relate
to the valuanon of investmen: property.

The valuauons of the \nvestimenrt properties a: the end
of the financial year were independen:ly performed by
Jones _ang Lasalle "imited (*]L17), whom the Committee
considers to have sufficien: expernise, experience and
local and natonal knowledge of social housing and
supporied housing to under:ake the valuatons.

J.7 also conducts imnial valuanons of properiies on
acquisiiion. The Oirectors have ensured that [L5 has
appropriate procedures in place to ensure there are no
independence conflicis with the services provided o
~he Company.

The nvesimen: Adviser confirmed o the Commizee that
‘he method of valuation has been applied consigtently
durnng the year .t further confirmed that. durnng she
course of the perlod, I7.), was regularly challenged by
the nvestmen: Adviser on the assuamplong used in the
valuation of the Company's iInvesunen' properies 1o
ensure robust and appropnate methods were being
apphed. The nvesimen: Adviser discusses these areas of

challenge with the Commuttee,

The auditors met separasely wih JL.L and repored back
10 the Commuiziee on its challenge of the valuations

and assumpuons. The audirors were sansfied that

the valauauons had heen prepared using appropnae
methods and assumpnions, and had been prepared 1in
accordance with R 'C8 valuanon - Professional Standards.

As explaimed in note 5.0 10 the financial s1atemenss,
the approach adopted by the Company 1s 1o recognise
invesimen: properieas a: fairr value, with the fair value of

the property being based on valuations performed by J15L.

The revaluaton of the invesiment properiies gave rise o
a revaluation gatn of £2.640000 10 the perod.

Takeover Offer

The Commiitee considered the valuanon work
under:aken by Ji.. (as insmructed to act for the Company,
ranmure Gordon (UK} Limited and Taberum Capiial
Limired) with respect 1o the Takeover Offer by Wellness
Cruty “amized (& wholly owned indirect subsidiary of CK
Asset Foldings Limzed). The valuanon methodology used
by JILI was consistent with that used dunng he valuanon
for the year ended 31 March 2023 and had the same
valuazon date

Maintenance of REIT Status

There are a number of conditions tha® a company {(or
principal company of a group RZIT) needs ro sansfyin
vider 1o become a BT and remain within the regime.
The UX REIT regime affords the Group a beneficial tax
treatment for income and capital gams, provided certain
critenia are met There 1g a nigk that these R=IT conditions
may not he met and additional rax becomes payakble by
the Company. The Board regularly reviews the RE!'T tess
thas are performed by the Administrator.

The Board 1s sausfied that the Company has mainiamned
18 RE.T status throughou: the year

Going Concern

The Committee considered the Company's Going
Concern and Viability S:azement for the yvear ended

41 March 2023 1in hght of the Takeover Offer and 1is unpac:t
on the Company's deb: position. it agreed the wording
ugsed in the .ndependen: Auditors Repor: which makes
reference 10 the matenal unceraimty identhed
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Misstatements

The investmen: Adviser confirmed o the Commitree that
12 was not aware of any ma:enal misgratemen:s macde
incennonally 10 achieve a parucular presentaton.

Conclusion in Respect of the Annual

Report and Financial Statements

Saving reviewed the presentatnions and repor:s from the
inves'men: Adviser. the Commites 1s sausfied that the
financial gtatements appropnately address the crinical
radgements and key estimares, both in respect of the
amoun:s reported and ‘he disclosures.

The Commiziee 1s also sausfied thar the significant
assumprions used for determining the value of assets
and llabiliies have been appropnazely scratinised and
challenged and are sufficien:ly robus: Accordingly. the
Commirtee has concluded thar “he Annual Report and
financial statemenss. taken as a whole, are fair, balanced
and undersiandable and has recommended their
approval 1o the Board on that basis.

Auditors’ Appointment and Tenure

As a result of the Us implemen:anon of the ZU's
mandatory audi: firm rotanon requirements, the Company
18 requnred to ensure that the exiemal audizors contrac:
15 put out to iender at least every ten years, with the
praviso that no single firm may gerve as the Company’s
external auditors for a penod exceeding 20 years.
ncewaterhouseCoopers _LP was firsr appomted as the
Company's auditars with effec: from March 2077 7118
intended tha: the external audit wall be pur out to tender
no lazer than for the financial year commencing ! Aprl
2026, which is ten years after the Company’s imtial listing.

Saira Choudhry s the aud: partner allocated o the
Company by PricewarerhouseCoopers L2 The audr: of
the financial statemenss for the year ended 3% March 2023
18 her second as senior statuzory auditor of the Company.
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Report of the Audit and Management Engagement Committee ‘

Continued

Assessment of the Effectiveness
of the External Audit Process and
Auditors’ Independence

As part of 115 annual review of the effecuveness of

“he external audir pracess, the Commitiee obained
assurance on the gquahty of the external audi: from s
own evaluation, the aud® feedback documentaton and
from correspondence and discussions with the audi:
parner, [Investmen: Adviser and the Admunistrator.

The audizors demonsirated a good undergtanding

of the Group, and had identified and focuased on the
areas of greatest financial reporting nisk. its reporing
to the Commuitree was clear, open and thorouagh,. The
Commattee has assessed ‘he professional scepnicism and
challenge of managemen: judgement by the audiors
and 1g satisfied that the audrors have demonsirated
thege For example, the external auditors conducted a
review of the work conducted by J_L in evaluatnng the
nvesiment propenrty valuanons in which the external
audizors showed appropnate professional scepnicism
and challenge of jadgement. The Commitee assessed
the challenge provided by the external audiiors via the
external auditors repor:s provided ar the year end and
half year end meeungs and questioned The external
audiors as appropnate The Audit and Managemen:
“ngagemen: Commiziee Chairman also me: with the
external audrors throughout the audit and half-yearly
review processes o ensure that the external auditors
were aligned with the Commirrees expeciauons. The
Commiitee considered the advice included in the

TR Practice Aud on Aadit Quality when making this
judgemen:

The "C’'s Audit Qualiy inspecions Repor: on the audis
carned out by PrnicewaterhouseCoopers 1..7 was also
considered Iy “he Caommiee. On the hasis of these
facrors and assessments, the Commites has conclided
thar the external audi: process has been effecnuive

The Committee aszessed the external audnitors’
independence, qualificaions, relevan: experernce,
and effecuveness of audi: procedureg. 'n advance of
each audis, “he Commitree obrains confirmanon from
the exrernal audizors tha: they remain independens
and tha: the level of non-audi: fees are noan
mdependance “hrear,

Non-audit Services

The Commuee has putinto place a palicy for the
provision of non-audit services (o the Company by the
audrrors which (s in iine with the recommendations set
outin the 'RC’s Guidance on Audit Committees (2016} and
“he requiremen:s of the FRC's Revised Ethical Standared
(2019}, The general intennon of the Commutiee is 70 avowd
the provision of non-audit services by the auditors, other
than the review of the half-yearly repor’, ag these have
“he porenaal 1o compromise the independence of the
aadirors. The Committee acknowledges thatin certamn
s111a710ns 1t may be appropnare for the exrernal audicors
s0 provide such services 10 the Company for a variety of
reasons including cogr effectiveness, depth of knowledge
and the ongomg relanionship between the 3oard and

“he exiernal audiorg. Al non-aydu fees are approved by
‘he Commuitee in advance Where non-audi fee levels
are considerad sigmficans. the Commires considers the
appropnatenass of the iIndependence safeguards purin
place by the audnors.

The omal fees pald o sricewaserhouseCoopers L..2 dunng
‘he penod. net of VAT, totalled £44.000 (2022: £A02.G00) of
which £83,000 (2022; £44.000) was concermng non-aadis
services for the review of the half-yearly report and

frul (2022 £62.000 for non-auch: services concerning a
planned 3ond ssue which was postponed).

The audizors were selacted for the non-audit services
relating to the postponed 3ond ssue following careful
consideraton by the Commitiee The Commites
Lehevad *hat the abihity for the audrmors o audis the
Company's financial statements independerntly would
nat be wmpacted by this wark. 71 s standard practice fora
Company’s exrernal audizors o underake this task

Nare 9.0 1o the consohdated financial statements
deatls all services provided and total fees paid 10
PricewaterhouseCoopers L. for the financial yvear
ended 31 March 20235, The Committee considers
Irnicewaterhouseloopers 1.7 1o be independen: of the
Company.

Re-appointment of the Auditors

Taking in:o accoun: ‘he performance and effectiveness of
+he audrors and *he confirmaton of their independence.
‘he Commitee has recommended o the 3oard ~hat a
rescldnon o re-appomn: SricewaterhouseCoopers L_2 as
“he Company's auchiors be put "o the shareholders a: -he
forrhcoming AGY

Caroline Gulliver

Charrman, Aude and Vanagemen: mngagemen:
Commiee

28 June 2023
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Report of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee

Introduction

The Nomination and Remuneration Commitiee presents the
Report for the year ended 31 March 2023

Composition and Role of the Nomination

and Remuneration Committee

The Nominanon and Remuneraiion Commiiee comprises
Seter 3axter, as Chairman, and the entire Board, all of
whom are non-execuuve Directors. Terms of Reference
have been established by the 3oard and are available on
the Company's website.

The Normination and Remunearanion Committee’s principal
duties are as follows:

Nomination

e o review the siructure, size and composiiion of the
3vard, including s skills, knowledge, experience and
diversuty, including gender and ethnicity;

+ o consider the succession planning of Directors,
aking into accoun: the challenges and opporiunities
facing the Company and the skills and experise
needed on *he 3card in the future;

e 0 be regponsible foridenufying and nominaung
candidares to fill 3oard vacancies as and when
“hey anise;

e 0Teview annually the time required from
non-execuive Jrectors,

e o review the results of the 3oard performance
evaluation as 1z relaes to Board compostiion and
succession planning.

e oreview anndally potenual conflicis of interests of
Directors as disclosed 1o the Company and develop
appropriate processes for managing such conflic:s; and

e orecerve and consider updares from the ‘nvesimen:
Adviser O 175 oWl SUCCesslon planmng actuvines.

Remuneration

e 0 deterrmine and agree with the 3ovard, a formal
and transparen: procedure for developing policy
on the remuneration of the Company's Chair, Audi:
and Managemen: Engagement Committee Chair
and non-execative Direciors:

e 0 take intc accoun: all factors when considering
‘he Remuneranon 2olicy which 1t deems necessary,
including relevant legal and regulatory requirements,
“he provisions and recommendartons of the ATC Code
of Corporate Governance and associated guidance:;

e O review the ongolng appropriateness and relevance
of the Remunerauocn Policy:

e ‘0 obtamn rehable, up-io-date tnformanon abour
remuneraon in other compames of comparable
scale and complex1ty and marke: pracrice generally;

e -0 be responsible for establishing the selection
criteria, selecting, appom:ing and seting “he terms
of reference for any remunerasion consulan:s who
adwvise the Commitiee; and

e 'O ensure tha* contracrual terms on termination, and
any paymen's made, are fair to the mmdinidual, and the
Company, tha: failure 15 not rewarded and tha: the
duty o miugate loss 1s fully recognised.

Activities During the Year

The Commities mee:s at leas: once per year. Huring the
vear, the Committee has:

e considered the Board's remuneration mn view of the
responsibilizies and time commitments for overseeing
‘he affairs of the Company, 1in hgh: of the Aracles of
Associaton as well as the level of dividend paid o
shareholders during he yearn
reviewed the Direcror’s skill mainx;
considered the Board's current succession plan, and
agreed tha: 1 would be prudens: for the 2oard 0
phase the recruiimens: of addimonal ireciors going
forward 10 allow progressive rotaton of irectors and
facihiiate effective succession planning;

e appointed a Sub>-Commiiee ‘o ke responsible for
conducting the recraitment process o identify a new
candidare for appomtmen: 1o the 3oard:

e engaged recrantmen: agency, Odgers 3erndston, to
assst with the search for a candidare;

e reviewed the resulis of the 3oard’s 2623 performance
evaluation process, the details of which can be found
on pages 56 and 57 and

e saushed igelf that each non-execunve Director
serving at he end of the year remains independen:
and continues to have sufficient iime o discharge
their responsibihities 1o the Company
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The Company i1s supporive of the new Lisung Rules
bemng igsued by the "inancial Conduct Authonty

on diversity and inclusion on company boards. The
Commiztee 1s considenng a range of candidates from
diverse backgrounds. The Company's diversiry pohcy can
be found on page 56.

The Directors fees were considered by the Committee in
“ebraary 2023, During 11s consideration, the Committes
o0k o accoun: the factors of clanty simphcity, nisk,
predictabihity, properaonaliny and alignmens of Comparny
culture. 1 also abtammed the mos: up-to-date industry
remuneration comparison o aid 1in 12s decision-making.
Please see the Direclors’ Remuneraion Report on pages 64
-0 67 for detalls on Sirector remuneranon.

Peter Baxter

Chairman, Nomination and Remuneranon Commatiee

28 June 2023
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BT AND ACCOUNTS 2023

Directors’ Remuneration Report

Directors’ Remuneration Policy

Introduction

The Remuneraton Policy of the Company 1s se: by

the Board. A resolulon "o approve the Jemuneration
Pohicy wag passed at the AGM aof the Company held

on "5 September 2022, The policy provisions set ou:
below will apply unnl the Remuneration 2olicy is

put to shareholders for approval at the AGY of the
Company in 2025. There are no changes proposed to
she Remuneranon Pohcy. The Remuneranon Policy is
binding and sets the parameters within which Directors’
remuneration may be set.

Policy

The Remuneration *olicy of the Company 1s 10 pay 1is
non-execunve Directors fees that are appropnate for
the role and the amoun: of 1ime spen? in discharging
thewr dunes, that are broadly in line with those of
comparable real estate Invesiment companies and that
are sufficient to azract and retain suitably qualified and
experienced individuals.

Directors’ Remuneration Components

Component Dircctor

Annaal fee Chairman

Non-execuive Irec ors

Annaal fee

Chawr of the Audic and Managemen:
“ngagemen: Commitiee

Addnwn'aniee

The fees paid will be reviewed on an annuaal basis and
may also be reviewed when new non-execusive Jirectors
are recruied o the 3oard. The Jirectors of the Company
are enutled 0 such rares of annual fees as the Board

at 17z discretion shall from time to ume determine. The
Chairman of the Board and the Audit and Managemen:
Engagemen: Commitiee Chairman are entitled to recewve
fees at a higher level than those of the other Jirectors,
reflecung theiwr addmmonal duties and responsibiliaes.
Annual fees are pro-rated where a change takes place
during the financial year.

In addiion to the annual fee, under the Company’s
Artictes of Associanon, if any lirector 1s requested ¢
perform any special dunes or services outside their
ordinary dunes as a Director. they may be paid such
reasonable additional remuneranon as the Board may
from -ime to nme determine.

Rate at 1 Ap1Il 2023

tand 1 april 20225 Purpose of Remuneration

£53.000 Commitmen: as Chairman of a pubhc
company
F£44.000  Comrmtmen: as non-execitive hrectors of

a public company-

5000 “or addittonal responsibihities and 1me
commument’

VAddlrtlona] fee ANl Drectors

SXﬁenses All j)lr-e_c:ors

Discrelonary

Jor extra or special services performed in
“helr role as a Direcror:

n/a Remmbursement of expenses incurred in “he
parformance of dutes as a Direcior

1 The Company s palicy s (ol the Chairman ol the Beard to be paid a higher fee than the aiher Direciors 1o weilect the mare onetous role
2 The Company s Articles ol Assocaton hmit the aggregale tees payable 1o the Board of Directors 1o £250.000 per annum
%3 The Company s pohiey s tor The Char of the Audit and Management Cngagement Commitiee to be paid a higher tee than the other Directors 1o retlect the more

onetous ok

4 This 15 a provision of the Company s Arocles Addinonal lees would only be paid in exceptional 2ircumstances in 1elahon to the performance ol extia of special

SRIVICeS

5 Mirectors are entled to claim expenses In tespect of dunes undertaken in connecnon with their wle as a Dirtecior
The Company has no employees Accorcdingly there are no diflerences in poltcy on the remuneranon of Directors and the remuneranon of emplayees

No Direciorn 15 entitled 10 recewve any remuneration which s perlonmanae related As a resulf there are no performance conditiuns o relauoen 1o dany ¢lemaents of the

Directors femuneIauon In exsience o sei outan this Remuneranon Policy

reciors and Officers habilizy ingurance cover s
mamniamed by ~he Company on behalf of the Directors.

Ihrectors are entwtled 1o be paid all expenses properly
mcarred in atrending 3oard or shareholder meeungs
or otherwise in or with a view o the performance of
‘heir duies.

As all Directors are non-execiiive and there are no
employees, the Company daes no: operate any share
opuon or other long-rerm incentive schemes and the
orectorg fees are not subject to any performance criteria.
No pension or other reiremen: benefi: schemes are
operated bry the Company for any of 1ts Mrectors.



Directors’ Remuneration Report
Continued

Service Contracts

No Director has a service conract with the Company. The
Jrectors are appoiited undern lelers ol dppoinlment
Thelr appainimen: and any subsequent terminaton or
retlremen: 15 subject 1o the Aricles of Association. The
Drectors’ letters of appoimment provide that, upon the
termunasion of a Director's appointmens, tha: Director
mus: resign in wnung and all records remain the
property of the Company. The Director's appolntment
can be zerminated in accordance with the Articles of
Assoclation and without compensanon. There 15 no
noice period spevilied wJdir Atucles of Association for
she removal of 2irectors and all Direc:ors are subject @0
annual re-election by shareholders.

Approach to Recruitment Remuneration

The remuneration package for any new Chairman or
non-execuaive Direc:or will be the same as the prevathing
rates determined on the bases ser our above. The Board
will not pay any imroductory fee or incenuve 1o any
person 10 encourage them to becoms a Mrector, but

may pay ‘he fees of search and recrurmen: specialisis

i connection with the appointmen: of any new
non-execuiave JITeCior

Views of Shareholders

Any views expressed by shareholders on the fees heing
paid o Jireciors would be taken into consideranion by
the Board when reviewing levels of remuneranion.

Remuneration Report

The 3oard presen:sits irectors <ermuneranon eport

1 respect of the year ended 3! March 2023, The 3card
has prepared “hig reporsin accordance with the Large
and Medium-Sized Companies and Groups (Accounts
and Reporsst (Amendmens} Regulations 2075 An ordinary
resoluzton for the approval of the Jireciors Femuneraion
Repor: will be put to shareholders a+ the forthcoming
AGM of the Company.

The law requires the Company's audizors to audit certain
required disclosures. Where disclosures have been
audited, they are indicated as such. The audizors opimon
18 Included in The auditors repor: on pages 7! o 78,

Annual Statement from the Chairman

[ am pleased 1o present the Directors’ Remuneraion
Repor: for the year ended 57 March 2023,

During the year under review, the Board, via the
Nomnation and Remuneraion Commitiee, was
responsible for setting the Company’'s Remuneraion
Policy and Direcrors’ fees.

The repar: from Nomination and femuneararnon
Commiitee can be found on page 64.

The Direcsors are remunerated for thelr services at such
rate as “he Direciors shall from 7tme o ume determine.
The 3card has set three levels of fees: one for the
Chairman, one for other Direcrors, and an additional

fee “hat g paid to “he Director who chairs the Audi:

and Managemen: sngagemen: Commiiiee “ees are
reviewed annually i accordance with the Remuneration
2olicy. The fee for any new Direcior appointed will be
deermined on the same bagis

Oirectors fees for “he year ended 31 March 2023 were

a a level of £53.000 per annum for the Chairman and
£34,000 per annum for other non-execuave Jirectars. The
Chairman of the Audit and Management —ngagemen:
Commizzee recelved an addinional fee of £5,000 per
annum.

There were no other payments for extra or special
services In The year ended 41 March 2073

At the AGV held on 5 September 2019, shareholders
approved the amendment o the Company's Aracles of
Association which increased the maximum aggregase
annual remunerazion payable o Jirectors from £200,000
To F250,0000

The Direc:ors’ Remuneration Yolicy was approved
a: the AG™ held on 15 Sepiember 2022, There will be
na significan: change 1n the way the 2emuneraion
Policy will be implementad in the course of the nex:
financial year.

The IJtrectors’ zemuneration 2olicy will nex: be presented
zo shareholders for approval a: the Company's AGV In
2075,
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Directors’ Remuneration Report
Continued

Directors’ Fees for the Period (audited)

‘The Directors who served during the vear receved the following emoluments:

Ducctor Fees  beein
Michael Wrolel (Chairman ~ £s3000 @ -
Alastair Moss £34,000 -
Alison Hadden £34,000 -
Carohine Gulliwver £39,000 -
Peter 3axter £34,000 -
Total £194,000

The amoun:s patd o the Direciors were for services as
non-execive Direciors Taxable benefits included in the
above table are 1in respect of the amounts reimbursed ta
Oirectors as travel and other expenses properly incurred
by them 1n The performance of their duties There are no
vanable elements in the remuneration payable 1o the
recors.

Lnder the Company's Aracles of Association, he fozal
aggregate remuneraion and benefiis in kind of the
Directors of the Company 18 subject ©0 a maximum of
£250,000 i any financal vear Any change o this would
require shareholder approval.

Loss of Office (audited)

The Direciors do not have service con'racts with the
Company but are engaged ander lezers of appomiment
under which there 15 no enttllement “o compensanon for
loss of office Direciorg are subjec: to annual re-election
by shareholders.

Total Shareholder Return (rebased)

Crvitas 1= o o~ FTSE 350 Real Estate Index

Year ended 31 Match 2023

_Year ended 31 March 2022

~ £194,000

Change Taxable Change

Towl to 2023 Fees  benelits _ Towl __ wanez
£53,000  192% £4S2.000 - 52000 400%
£34,000  2.16% £33280 - E35280  400%
£34,000  216% £35.230 - F33280  400%
£39.000  188% £38.280 - F38380 6.33%
£34,000  216% £35280 - EFI2RC 400%

C F90.120 ~ TFaeonz0

Company Performance

The following graph compares the performance for the
period from (PO on 18 November 20'6 0 31 Yarch 2024
‘he ptal shareholder return of the Company's Ordinary
shares relanive To the I'TSE All-Share Index and TTSE
Real kstate ndex. Al'hough the Company has no formal
Benchmark, theseindices have been selected as the
TTSE All-Share represen:s all companies of a stmilar
captal size, and the constitaents of the 'I'5= $50 eal
ksate Index are UK-based real estate companies and are
‘herefore considerad 1o represent the most appropriate
comparaive,

50 -
18 Nov 31 Mar

31 Mar

2016 2017 2018

CIVITAS SOCLAL HOUSING

31 Mar
2020

31 Mar
2023



Directors’ Remuneration Report
Continued

Relative Importance of Spend on Pay
The table helow seis out, in respec: of the year ended
31 March 3023

a) theremuneration pad o the Directors; and

b) :he disinbunons made o shareholders by way of
dividend.

Yeai: ended

Year ended
31March 2023 31 March 2022
- - R — _ Emon 0 _E000
DreCtors’ remuneraian 194 180
Dividends pard o Ordinary
shareholders 34,459 54,0935

Directors’ Interests (audited)

There 18 no requiremenst under the Company's Aricles
of Associauon or the terms of their appointmen: for
Jrectors to hold shares in the Company.

As ar 31 March 20234, the Jirecrars ancluding their
connected persons) had beneficial interests inthe
following number of shares in *he Company:

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Ordinary ordinary
o I _ shares shates
Michael Wrobel 200,000 120,598
Alastair Moss 11,766 w1766
Alison Hadden 31,937 -
Carohne Guiliver 58,832 B8 837
Jeter daxier 8?2,065_ 82‘{}_5_)3__

There have been no changes to Jirectors share interes:s
beiween 31 March 2023 and the date of ©his Repor:. Zach
nrector has accepted the recommended all-cash offer
made by Wellness Uity _imited for the enturessued
share capiial of the Company {the 'Offer” in respec: of
cheir own beneficial heldings.

None of the Jirectors or any persons connected
with them had a mazenal inierest in the Company’s
ransacrions, arrangements or agreements durnng
the year.

Voting at AGM

The Directors’ Remuneranon Policy was approved at

tle AGM lield un 15 Sepiember 2022 and the Uirectors’
Remuneranon Report for the year ended 31 March 2022
was approved a: the AGM held on 15 Seprember 2022. The
vores cast by proxy on these rasollions were:

Votes fot'  Votes against

% Of voles % of voles votes Total
Resolution __Last cast _withheld voles cast
To approve
the Directors’
Rermuneranan
Repaor: 899.65% 0.35%
To approve
the Directors’
Remuneration
2ohcy

266,554 296,569.243

99.65% 0.37%  2B3.007 296,369.243

1 Votes for include discienonaty proxy voles granied 1o the Chanman by
shareholders

Consideration of Shareholder Views

The Company 18 commisted to ongoing shareholder
dialogue and akes an acuve mieres: 1In voung outcomes,
Where there are substannal votes agams: resolutions

n relaion to Directors remuneration. the Company will
seek the reasons for any such vore and will detail any
resuling actions in the hrectors Remunerallon Report.
3oth the approval of the Direciorg Remiineration Repor:
and the Directors’ Remuneratiion 2ohcy resolutions were
approved by shareholders 4t the AGV on *5 Sepiember
2022, The 3oard recetved no feedback from shareholders
on these resolutions.

Approval

The Direciors’ Remiuneralon Repor: was approved by the
3oard and signed on s behalf by:

Michael Wrobel
Chairman

28 June 2023
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Statement of Directors’ Responsibilities
in respect of the financial statements

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial
statements in accordance with applicable law and regulation.

Company law requires the Direciors 10 prepare financial
statements for each financial year Under that law the
Mrectors have prepared the Group financial statements
n accordance with UK-adopted international accouning
standards and the Company financial statements in
accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice (Umited Xingdom Accouning
Standards. comprising 25 101 “Reduced Disclosure
Framework”, and apphcable law).

Under Company law, Direc:ors muas: nor approve the
financial statements uniess they are sausfied that
they give a irae and fair view of the siate of aftairs of
the Group and Company and of the profiz or loss of
~he Group for tha: penod. In prepanng the financial
statements, the Jirectors are recquired to

e selec: sumitable accounung policies and ~hen apply
hem consigiently;

e siate whether apphoable UK-adopted imternanional
accounung standards have been followed for the
Group financial statements and United <iingdom
Accouning Standards, compnsing RS (0 have been
followed for the Company financial stazemen:s, subjec:
0 any matenal deparures disclosed and explamed in
the financial statemente;

e make judgements and accounting esamates “hat are
reasonable and prudent and

e prepare the finarncial staternents on the going concern
basis unless 11 1s inapproprase to prezume that the
Group and Company will conninue m DUsmness.

The Direclors are responsible for safeguarding the
agsets of the Group and Company and hence for raking
reasonable seps for the preventon and detection of
fraud and other irregulariies

The Directors are also responsible for keeping adequate
accouning records that are gufficient 1o show and
explain the Group's and Company's rransactions and
disclose with reasonable accuracy at any ame “he
financial postion of the Group and Company and
enable them 0 ensure thaT the financal s;azemenss and
“he irectors’ Remuneration Repor: comply with the
Compantes Ac: 2006,

The Mrectors are responsible for the mamnenance and

tegnty of the Company’s financial statements pablished

on the ulimate paren: Company's websie Leqgislation
in the Unied Xingdom governing the preparanon and
disseminanon of financial statements may differ from
legislanon in other junisdicnons.

Directors’ Confirmations

The Directors consider that the Annual Repor: and
Accounts, taken as a whole, 1s fair, balanced and
understandable and provides the information necessary
for shareholders 1o agsegs the Group's and Company's
posrion and performance, business model and sirategy.

Each of the Directors, whose names and funcuons are
histed in the Board of Direciors, confirm that, 1o the best of
“heir knowledge:

s ‘he Group financial statements, which have been
prepared in accordance with UX-adopted internanonal
accouning standards. give a true and fair view of the
assets halnlines, financial posiion and profic of the
Group;

e he Company financial statements. which have
been prepared in accordance with United ngdoem
Accouncing Standards, compnsing T8 100 give a rug
and fair view of the assets, habihies and financial
position of the Company; and

e he Group Srateqic 2eport includes a fair review of the
development and performance of the business and the
posiiion of the Group and Company, :ogether with a
descrnipnon of the pnnopal nsks and unceriainues thas
1 faces

Approval

This Statemen: of Directors’ Responsibilities was
approved by “he 3oard and signed on 1:s behalf by:

Michael Wrobel

Chairmah

28 Iane 2023
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Alternative Investment Fund Managers Directive

As the Company and the Aliernative ‘nvestment "und
Manager {the "A.rM"} are each domicited in the United
<ingdom, the F'CA Handboaok rules require thaz, among
other things. the A7 makes avallable the following
mformanon to shareholders of the Company under the
APMD (as implemented in the UK} and to notify them of
any marerial change to informanion previously provided.

These disclosures can also be found on the Company’'s
websire: www.cvitassoclalhousing.com.

Investment Policy, Leverage and
Liquidity (AIFMD 23(1)(a)(b){(h))

The investment sirateqgy and objecuves of the Company,
the 'ypes of asses 1t may nvest i and “he mvestment
echnuques 17 may employ, associated nsks and any
mvesimen: restrictions are laid our in the nvesimeans
objecnves and policy and other sections of the

Annaal Repors

Jorimformation about the circums:ances it which

the Company may use leverage. the types of sources
permized and the associated nsks and any resricions
on the ugze of leverage and any collateral and asse:
re-use arrangements, shareholders are directed o the
disclosures contained in the inves:men: objecives and
pohcy section of these financtal sratements as well as
specific ACM D related disclosures further below

Inder the PCA's Listing Rules. w0 which the Company is
subiject 1t needs the pnior approval of 1ts shareholders 1o
make a mawenal change to s investmen: policy.

Since the Company is closed-ended without redempion
rigthts, hiquidicy nisk management 1s imited o the
haguidiy required to meet the Company's obliganions in
relation 0 118 financing arrangements. The ATTM utilises
varwuas risk asgessmen: merhods to measure the risk of
por:fohio Uhqudry 1o meet the Company's obligations.
This measuremen: €nables the provision of managemen:
information to the AITV and the 3oard of the Company o
enable these nisks to be monitored and managed.

Legal Relationship with Investors (AIFMD
23(H{c))

The Company g a pubhc hmited company h=ied on the
“ondon S:ock Exchange. The Company 1s incorporated
under the laws of England and Wales. The consiiturional
documen: of *he Company 1s its arscles of asgociation
which may only be amended by way of a special
resolution of 138 shareholders. Upon the purchase

of shares, an investor becomes a shareholder of the
Company. A shareholder's habihty “o “he Company wnll
be hmited o the amount uncalled on their shares.

As the Company s incorporaed under the laws

of Zngland and Wales. 11 may no: be pessible fora
shareholder located outside that junsdiction 1o effeg:
service of process within the local junsdiction in which
“hat shareholder resides upon the Company. All or

a substantal portion of the assets of the Company
may be located outside a local junsdicuon in which
a shareholder resides and, as a resuli 1t may not be
possibkle to satnsfy a judgement against the Company
in such local junsdiction or to enforce a judgement
obtatned in the local junsdiction's courts agains:

‘he Company.

AIFM and its Delegates (AIFMD 23(1)(d),
(e) and (f))

The ATV (G0 Capral Zimied) 1s a private hmned
company with 11s registered office at 3 More London
Rwverside, London $27 2AQ. G'0 Capiral Zarmized s
authonsed and regulated by the Sinancial Conduc:
Aathority {(TRN 648953). 1t has been appeinted by the
Company 0 manage the Company under an A,5M
Agreemen: with effect from 24 August 2017,
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The A.FM is responsible for porfolio management
and rnigk managemen: and momtoring of the assets of
rhe Company and has digcrenonary aushonty over the
acqgusimon and disposinion of the Company's assets,
with power 1o give guarantees and underzake other
rransactions on behalf of the Company sabjec: 1o the
provigions of the Al"M Agreement The AIFM s also
responsible for ensuring comphance with the Al7M .

The AlZM's dutes ander the A'"V Agreemen: are owed
-0 the Company as a whole rather than directly to the
shareholders, whether indmadually or in groups. The
Board of the Company 1s responsible under the AZTM
Agreemens: for representing the Company in 1ts dealhings
with the AiFM.

In order to comply with s regulatory oblhigatons, the
AM holds professional indemnity insarance

Depositary and its Delegates (AIFMD 23(1)
(d) and (f))

Indos Mnancial Limized (the "Depositary™ has been
appom:ed as the Jeposiary of the Company under

a Depositary Agreement 111 accordance with ALV
requnrements. The Jepasizary 15 @ company mcorporated
in tngland ({registered number 08255973 whose
reqigierad office 15 a: 54 J'enchurch Sireet, _ondon

FC3M 3]Y tis authorised 1o act as a Deposiiary by the
FCA (TRN 602528). 'The Deposizary 1s responsible for
safekeeping of the Company s invesiments, including
hotding in custody those invesiments which are reqaired
<o be held 1in custody and verifying ownership and
keeping records of the Company's other invesiments, and
for cash montoring.
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Alternative Investment Fund Managers Directive

Continued

The Depositary’s duties under the Deposiiary Agreement
are owed to the Company as a whole and no: directly to
shareholders, whether indrniduaally or in grous,

The inves:men:s of the Company are not of a kind
required o be held 1n caswody by the Depositary.

Independent Auditors (AIFMD 23(1)(d))

The independen: auditors of the Company for the year
ended 31 March 2023 were PricewaterhouseCoopers L2
The auduors dunes, which are set out on pages 76 and
77 are owed to the Company as a whole. They have a
sranutory responsibility o repor: 1o the members of the
Company as a whole mn relation 1o the sruth and fairness
of the Comparny's state of affawrs and profi: or loss.

Valuation (AIFMD 23(1){(qg))

The assers of the Company are valued in accordance
with *he provisions se: ou: in “he Valuation 2ohcy the
nvestmen: Commiee which has been set up by the
AFMan respec: of the Company and 115 asse's adds a
farther level of oversight to the valuanon process as set
outin the Corporate Governance secuon of the Annual
Repor

Fees and Expenses (AIFMD 23(1)(i))

The Company incurs cos:s in *he form of depoesiiary fees,
custodian fees, bank fees and charges. markeung fees,
addiors’ fees, lawyers fees, fund adminisranon fees,
company secretanal fees and other fees

Fair Treatment of Investors and
Preferential Treatment (AIFMD 23(1)(j))

No preferential righis have been granted o any
existing sharsholder

The Company and the AT7™M are commized 1o ensunng
+has all shareholders are treazed farrly and in accordance
with UK company law They have niot and will no: enter
NTo any arrangement with one shareholder which

could resulr in any overall matenal digadvantage 1o the
other shareholders,

Issue and Redemption of Shareholder
Interests in the Company (AIFMD 23(1)(1))
The Company s cloged-ended and does no: provide for

redempion or repurchase of the interez:s of ordinary
shareholders a® “heir reques:.

Reporting and Performance (AIFMD 23(1)
(k}, 23(1)(m) and 23(1n))

The histone performance of the Company. 10 “he exien:
available. has been disclosed 0 shareholders in “he
Company's Annual and ~alf Yearly 2eports, which

will be sen: 1o shareholders and are avallable from
hupy//arvirassocialhousing com/.

The latest NAV of the Company 1g published in the
latest Annual or =alf Yearly Report or quarterly
NAY announcement.

Prime Broker (AIFMD 23(1)(0o})

The Company does not have a prime broker,

Method of Making Ongoing/Periodic
Disclosures (AIFMD 23(1}(p),23(4),23(5)}

Informazien about the Company's rigk profile and nisk
managemerns:, total leverage and any matenal change to
“he arrangements for managing the Company's haadity,
the proporion of asses (If anyl subject to special
arrangemen:s arsing from hguiduy, the maximum
permrited leverage or the gran: of rights of re-use of
collateral or guaranzees in relanon o leverage will be
provided in the Company's Annial Reports or on the
Company's welbistze htp //faviiassocialhousing.comy/.

Risk Profile and Risk Management
(AIFMD 23(4)(c))

The appom:mmen: of -he A.ZV as the A'"WV of the
Company under the ALV D means that 1715 responsible
for risk management and the ongoing process of
dentifying. evaluanng, monronng and managing

the nsks facing the Company in accordance with the
recnnremen:s of tThe ANV D The 3oard keeps the A.:Ms
performance of these responsmbilities under review as
par of it overall responsibilizy for the Company's risk
managemen: and internal conmrols

The principal risks of the Company are set our in the nsk
manageaemens: secion in the Annual Repors The A7 M's
sk managemen: sys em incorporaes reqular review
of these risks and The es:ablishment of approprnate nsk
hmus and internal control processes 10 miigase the
nisks. The sensiavity of the Company 10 relevan: risks s
further derailed 1n the nsk rmanagemen: section in the
Annual Repor:

Restrictions on the Use of Leverage and
Maximum Leverage (AIFMD 23(5))

Ag specified 1n The invesimen: objeciives and pohcy 1in
*he Annual Repor:, the Company has the abiliy to pas up
o a maximam leverage of A0% of he Company's Gross
Assetl Value and the A7V overzees the use of leverage 10
ensdre tha the use of borrowing 1s consistent with this
requiremen: Levarage 1s calculated using gross asses,
with various adiasimenss, divided by ne: asse:s,

Under AiTMD, the Company 1s required “o calcalate
leverage under the 7wo methodologies gpecified by
~he Dwrective. the 'Gross Vethod' and the 'Commumen-
vethod', the difference bemng tha: the Commuirmen:
Vvethod allows certain exposures 1o be offser or netzed
Osclosures are made on the website of the Company.



Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of

Civitas Social Housing PLC

Report of the Audit of the
Financial Statements

Opinion
N QU opInion

e Civitas Sooial Housing PLC's group finanoal statements
and company financial stazemen:s (the “financial
sratements’) give a rrue and fair view of the state
of the group's and of the company's affairs as at
32 March 2023 and of the group's profit and the group's
cash flows for the year then ended;

¢ hegroup hinancial statements have been properly
prepared 1in accordance with U<-adopred internanonal
accounting standards as applied in accordance with
the provisions of the Companies Act 2006;

e ‘hecompany financial stazemen:s have been properly
prepared 1n accordance with Unired Kingdom Generally
Accepted Accounting 2racuce {Unred Xingdom
Accounung Standards, including 728 101 "Reduced
disclosure Cramework”, and appheable law? and

+ the finanaal statements have hbeen prepared in
accordance with the requiremen:s of the Companies
ACT 2006,

We have audred :he financial siatements. inchided
within the Annual Repor: and Accounts (the "Annual
Repor), which compnse: the Consohidazed and Company
Stazemerns of “inancial Posiion as at & March 2023

‘he Consohdated Sratemen: of Comprehensive ncome,
‘he Consolidared S:atement of Cash -lows, and the
Consolidated and Company S:atemens of Changes

N sgurty for the vear then ended; and the notes 10 the
financial stazemen:s, which include a descrniption of the
significant accounnng pohcies.

Our opinion 1s consigtent with our reporing o ~he Audi:
and Vanagement kngagemen: Commites.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with ‘nternasional
Standards on Audiung (L (7 SAs (LX) and apphceable
law. Qur responsibihinies under [SAs {UK) are further
described 1n the Audirors' responsibilitiies for the audit of
the financlal statemen:s section of our report. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obrained 1s sufficient and
appropnate to provide a basis for our opimon

Independence

We remained independent of the group 1n accordance
with the ethical requirements that are relevan: 1o our
audit of the financial statemen:s in the UK which includes
the “2C’s Fithical Srtandard, as applicable to histed public
interest entiues, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilties in accordance with these requiremen:s.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, we declare
that non-audnt services prohibited by the FRC's Ethical
Srandard were not provided.

Orher than those disclosed in note 9.0 1o the Consohdated
financial statemen:s, we have provided no non-audit
services 10 the company or 1is conwolled underzakings in
“he penod under qadis

Material Uncertainty Related to

Going Concern

‘n farming our opinion on the financlal gtazemeonts,
which 1s not modified, we have considered the adequacy
of the disclosure made in note 2.2 10 *he Consolhdaied
financial stazements and note 2.0 ic the Company
financial s:atements concerning the group's and the
company's ability to coninue as a golng CONgerrn,
respeciively. On 9 May 2023 the 3oard of Directors of
Crwitas Social Housing PLC ("CSFE" or "“he group” and the
3oard of Zirectors of Wellness Urnuty Limited (an indirecr
wholly-owned subsidiary of CK Asse: Foldings Limited}
(collectnively referred o as "CK") announced tha: they
have reached agreement on the terms and conditions

of a recommended all cash offer for the group On

23 June 2623, the offer became uncondinonal. The group's
existing commitied deb: faciliiies contain a standard
change of control clause which, from that pomst forward,
could resultin the exisang commiiied dek: faciliiies
being withdrawn. The Directors have not had dezatled
vistbility of CK's pes: completion funding for the group
and company or the detailled plans behind the mtentions
statements included within the announcemen:. These
condr:ions, along with the other marters explained in
note 2.2 to the Consolidated financial s:atements, indicaze
~he exisience of a matenal uncer:ainty which may cast
sigmficant doub: abour the group’s and the company's
ability ro contunue as a going concern. The financial
sratemen:s do not include the adjustments that would
regulz if the group and the company were unable o
continue as a going concern
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inaudiing the financal statements, we have concluded
“ha: the directors’ ase of the going coencern basis of
accouniing in the preparatnon of the financial siatements
18 appropriate.

Oar evaluation of the direcrors assessment of the group's
and the company’'s abihsy to continue 0 adopt the going
concern basis of accounung included:

«  We ohtained management's lateg: forecas:s that
suppor: the 3oard’s assessment and conclusions with
respect to *he going concern kasis of preparation of
‘he financial statements.

e We checked the mathematical accuracy of
managemen:s forecas:s,

e We evaluated and challenged forecas:s and sensiuvity
analysis prepared by management to ensure they
are refleciive of both the curren: environmen: and
considering the nsk of a severe and prolonged
econormic downourn, We have assessed the extent
and plausibilizy of these scenanos in hght of current
circumstances. We evaluated the directors’ plans
for future acuons 1N relation 10 their going concern
assessment, should these be required.

e We agreed the inpu:s 10 these analyses (o the audied
financial informanon or obtained corroborative
suppor: for key assumptions as apphcalle.
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of

Civitas Social Housing PLC
Continued

¢ We have assessed the deh: covenan:s as well as
management’s assessment of possible breach of
covenants agreeing the iInputs to the audited resulis.
We have evaluated managemesnt's $ress tests on the
Covenarss

* We also congidered wherher Civitag’ deb: financing
would impact the ability of the group and company o
continue as a going concern. Specifically we have had
consideratiion around any debt thats corning due in
the going concern period.

in relanon to the directors’ reporting on how they have
apphed the UK Corporate Governance Code, other than
-he matenal uncertainty idennfied in note 2.7 10 the
financial statements. we have nothing matenal zo add or
draw attention to in relation to the direcrors’ statement
in the filnanoial statements akout whether the directors
cansidered 17 appropnate 1o adop: “he going concern
basiz of accounting, or in respect of the direcrors’
idenuficanon in the financal statemen:s of any other
material ancer;ainies *o ‘he group’s and the company’s
abilizy to continue © do so over a perod of at [east
twelve months from the date of approval of the financial
slatements.

Qur responsibihnies and the responsibihnes of the
directors with respect to going concern are described
the relevant secuons of This report

Our audit approach

Overview
Audit scope

e  We tatlored the scape of our audit 1o ensure thart we
performed encugh work 10 be akle 10 give an opinion
on ‘he financizl gtazements as a whole, zaking into
accoun: the gructure of the groap and the company.
the accouniang processes and controls, and the
indusiry in which they operaze. The group consiss of
a simgle reporable segment,

Key audit matters

e Varenal uncerammy related o gowng concern
e Valuanon of InvesTmen: propery group

Materiality

e Qverall group maternahty: £10.0 milhion
(2027 £'0.1 muilhion) based on 1% of 1otal agse:s

e Overall company matenality: £82 mihon
(2022: £8.2 mihion) based on 1% of total asse:s.

e Performance materiality, £7.5 million (2022: £7.8 milhion)
{group} and £6.2 million {2027 £6.2 million) {company).

e Specific group maenalizy: £ 3m (2022: F1.5m) for
certaln financial statemens: line items *hat impac:
adjusted profi: before tax (APBT) - baged on 5% of
APBT AP3T s equal to profit before tax adjusted for
‘he fair value movemen:s in investment property and
fair value movemens:s on mm:eres: rate denvatives.

The Scope of our Audit

As part of designing our audit, we derermined matenahty
and assessed the nzks of material misstatement in the
financial statemenss.

Key Audit Matters

Ley audit maters are those matiers that, 1n the audizors’
professional judgement, were of mos: significance

m the audit of the inancial statements of the current
period and include the most significant assessed risky
of marenal misstatemen: (wherher or no: due o fraud)
tdennfied by the auditers, including those which had
the greates: effect on: the overall audi: sirategy; the
allocanion of resources in the audis: and direcung the
efforts of the engagemens: team. These maters, and any
commen:s we make on the resuls of our procedures
thereon, were addressed in the conrex: of our audi-

of the financial stazements as a whole, and 1n forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters

‘naddron o going concern, described 1n the Matenal
uncersamnty related 10 going concermn secton above, we
determined he maters descrnibed below o be “he key
aadit matiers o be communicated in our repors This s
no: a complee hs: of all risks identified by our audin.

ALy "o continae as a going concern {Conanuanon
Resalriond, which was a key audis maer las: yeat. 18 no
longer included because the Conunuation 2esoluiion
vore was passed in Seprember 2022, Otherwise, he key
audr maners below are consisien: with las: year.



Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of

Civitas Social Housing PLC
Continued

Key Audit Matter

How our Audit Addressed the Key Audit Matter

Valuation of Investment Property (Group}

Kettet to e Keport of e Audil and Management
Engagemen: Commiiee noe 31 10 the Consoldated
linancia. statemensts. Significan: estimate  va..ation of
investment property and note 15.0 o the Consolidated
financial siateman:s. Invesinent propery.

Invesimen: proper:ies are held a: a fair va.ue of £953.4 mi Jion
ag al 31 March 2023 in inc Consolidated Statemeaen: of
Financtal Position. The vaiuaion of the grouo's investment
property is the ey component of e ne: asse: valuc and
Lnderping e grouo's resa for e year The resall of e
reva. .alion inis year was a gain of £2.6 mi..ion. whicn is
acconnied lor wiltnin ‘Change in {air val.c of invesimen:
propertics’ in the Consolidaied Slatemen: of Comprencnsive
Income. The group’s iNVvesimen! propery porlodo consis:s of
specials: social nowsing properiies ocaled in Eng.and and
Wa.os whicn are let (o Approved Froviders of socia. aousing
on IONG-1Crm ieAses.

Invesurcn property vailalions were carried out by a taird
nary va.uer Jones Lang LaSa..c (TLI) or ine Va..er). The
Valuer was engaged oy the Direciors and perforimresd et
wWork in accordance wita e Roval Institae of Charered
Surveyors (RICS) RICS Va:Lation  Prolessiona. Standards and
ne reguiremenss of [Inernationa, Azeownung Sandard 40
Tnvezinient Pronperty’

In determining the va.ue of a property, the Va.uer has

“aken into accoun: propery-specifiic information ing'.ding
the ease torm and rena: inconma Davap e Thasy appied
ASFAMOiong (o arrive a: the dIsco.ni rale wnich 1s anolaer
2oV NPT 0 e va wation, This has reference o not initia
yic.d and CPT growin rate which are inf. onced by orevar' ing
marke: ronditions and comparasie sransacions where
aporopriale

The va.Lation of (e group’s investmen: property portfodo
was identiticd as a <ey asdit mader giwen the vaualion

15 innerenty subjeciive due 1o, among other faciors, the
individuar naiire of each property. i:s location and 1ae
cxpecied Luidre renta. sreams [0 that paricuar provey.
The significance of the esumaies and jadgemen:s invo.ved.
cowp.ed witn the fact that only a smal. nerceniage difference
in individ.a. property valaations, waen aggrega'ed. could
res..ait i a maters. rassiaement, warranted soocific audit
focuas in tnis arca

Given ne inherent s.hectivicy invelved in the valuation

ol tne proper.y porto io, and therefore ine necd tor decp
markct snow.cdge when delermining the mos: appropriate
assumptions and the rechnicalites of vaiuation methodo . ogy.
we engaged our interna: valdaion exoper:s (qua.ilied
chnartered surveyors) lo assist s in our audit of this area,

Assessing the Valuers' Expertise and Objectivity

We read tne Valuer's repor: and conlirmed tha: the appreach
used was congigien with e RICS guidelines We assessed
e Valuer's qualtfications and axperise and read their terms
of engagement with the group, determining that inere werce
no ma.ers that affecied tacir independence and oopjeciuvity
or imposed scope limitalions upon them. We aiso considered
fces and other conraciua. arrangomenss that mignt oxist
petween ne grouo and the Va'uer. We found no ¢videnae o
s.ggest tha: ne ogeciivity of the Va,.er was comnromised.

Assumptions and Estimates Used by the Valuer

In our tesiing, waich invoved (he wse of our interna. rea.
17e Valuallon oxpers. wa aongideaered 1e assamotions
ullised oy the Va Jer witnin tae vauaton. ina.ading
underzranding how 1ese ass.mplions were developed.
We a'so performed benchmar<ing wnere opsarvan e
marxe: evidence was avai.abic We chalienged the Valuaer
regarding e impac: of the regulatory environmen: on
investor senumen: and assct va.ues We atended meetings
with managerren: and ;ae Va.wer a: whicn (he valuaion
meodology and the key assamoions werae discussed
We cna..engod tneir approach to ine valuations. and 1ne
rationa.c benind ne more significan: va. .adion assumotions
adonied Waere assumptions were o.side ine expected
rangc we Lndeniook farinerinvesigations, naid furiner
ctiseussions wita e Valueor and optained evidance 1o
sLODON explanations reccived. We a.50 ¢na.lenged the
Va.Lers as o 1e exen: they have aken into accounl the
imopac: of camac cnange and re.ated E3G considerations
witn (he va watons. The resoonses provided py the
Va..er and sapooring evidenae, enasled us to consider
e property specihce faciors that may nave nad animpact
on vaiue. inciuding recent comparable ransaciions
where appropriac. We concluded that he ass.mpions
Lsad ny e Valuer were consisien: wilth our expeciaiions
and comparab.¢ benchimarking and marke? (ransactuon
information for ine asset lype

Data Used by the Valuer and Legal Title

We vaiidatod 1ne data Lsed py tne Val.er and found that it
was consisien: wizi The informration we audited, Thig daza
included inpuis such as carrent ren:, rent indexailon {CPI or
CPI+1%) and ease (erm. wnich we have agreed on a samp.e
hasis 1o execd.ed (case agreements as part of our audn
work, We verified iega. ownerghip of oroperies throagh
independen: tit'e deed conlirmations on a samp'e pasis

We concilded that tae assumpions used in ine va.salions
oy the Va.iers were supporanle in light of tne evidence
ob:ained and e disc.os.res within tne Annaa. Report arc
sufficien: and apopropriate. We have no iss.e8 1o report in
regoect of 1his work,
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of

Civitas Social Housing PLC
Continued

How We Tailored the Audit Scope

We tallored the scope of gur audut to ensure that we performed enough work ‘o be akle to give an opimion on the
financial statements as a whole, aking into accoun: the simicture of the group and he company, the accouning
procegses and controls, and the indusry in which they operate

The group's praoperties are spread across 159 statatory entiiies with the groap financial statemernss being a
conzolidation of these enuues. The group's propeny portfolio represents a coheren: and diversified poridfolio with
similar economic charac:ensics and, as a result, the whole poriffoho of propernes represents a single operating
segmen: or componen:, and we have scoped our work accordingly. All work was carned ou by the group audis :eam
with addisional procedures performed on the consohdasion o ensure sufficient coverage and appropriate audit
evidence for our opinion on the group financial statements as a whole.

The Impact of Climate Risk on our Audit

In planmng our audut, we made engiunries with managemen: io understand the exten: of the potenaal impac:

of cimate change nsk on the financial statemensts. Qur evaluaton of this conclusion included challenging key
judgemenss and estimates in areas where we considered that there was greatest potental for climate change

wnpac: We paracularnly considered how chimate change nsks would impact the assumpnons made in the valuanon

of investment properies as explained i our key audit matier above. We also considered ~he consistency of the
disclosures in relation 10 chmarte change made within the Annaal Report and the knowledge obtammed from our audin
L=ing our knowledge of the buginess, we evaluated management's rigk assessment and resulning disclosures where
sigmficant

Materiality

The scope of our audit wag influenced by our appheaton of materiality. We se: cerfaimn guantirauve thresholds for
matenaliy. These, together with quah:anve considerauons, helped us 10 determine “he scope of our audiz and the
naare, urmng and exzen: of our audit procedures on the indmwndaadl financal statement ine tems and disclosures and
n evaluaiung the effect of misstatements, both individually and in aggregate on “he financial ssatemenss as a whole

Based on our professional judgement, we determined matenaliy for the fiinancal stazemen:s as a whole as follows:
P udg

Qverall
materiality
How we
determined it
Rationale for
benchmark
applied

Financial statements — group

F10C miion 2022 f10 1 mi.ion)

1% of 1otal assers

The <oy meascere of e group’s performance iy tng
va.sation of invesimon: properiies and tne oa.ance
sneel as a who.e Civen Lais. we selan overa..
gro.n malteriaiy eve. nascd on iola. asse:s

Financial statements — company

FEZ mion (20722 F8 Z milaon).

1% ot «0a, asse's

The company’s main aciviiy 1s the aouding of
Invesiren:s in seosidianes. On (nis basis. we se:
an overa,. company ma.eria.aly evel nased on
Tola ausels.

naddiion 0 overall group mazeriahty, a specific group matenalivy wasg also apphed o ceriain financial statemen:
hinetems thatimpact Adpasted Zrofis 3efore Tax (A2317, which 1s based on profir before tax, adiusied 10 exclude
farr value movermnen:s on inves'mean: proparty and denvauves We sel a specific overall matenaly level of F1L3
milhion {2027 7.5 million:, equaung o 5% of A23T narnving at ‘his judgemen:. we considered the fact that A23T s
a secondary financal mdicaor of the group which s disclosed as Z7RA marmings n the Annual Repor: {refer o the
Group Strrazeqic Repor? where “he term is defined in full

We use performance materiahity -0 reduce 1o an appropriasely low level the prokability that the aggregate of
ancorrectad and undetected misstaremen:s exceeds overall matenaliny. Speaifically, we use performance maserialsy
I dezermiming the scope of our audir and the nature and exten: of our resung of accoun: balances, classes of
cransachons and disclosures, for exarnple 1n deermining sample sizes. Gur performance masenalizy was 75%

{2022 vs%) of gverall materiality, amourcing "o £7.5 milhon (2022: F7 3 milion! for the groun financial staremen:s and

Fe2 maulhon (2022: £6.2 mithon! for the company financal statements.



Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of

Civitas Social Housing PLC
Continued

ndetermiming the performance matenality, we
considerad a number of faciors - the hustory of
misstatements, risk assessment and aggregasion sk
and he effectivaness of controls  and concluded “hat
an amaouns a: the upper end of our normal range was
appropriae.

We agreed with the Audrr and Management tngagement
Commit:ee that we would repor? to them misstatemenss
dentified during our audi above £500,000 (for items
audited using overall matenality) and 764,100 {for 1zems
audiied using specific group mazenality} {group audit)
{2022: 579,000 and £74.500) and £473,000 (company

audit) {2022 £4..,000) as well as misstatemenss below
those amounts that in our view, warranted reporing for
guallzatnve reasons.

Reporting on Other Infermation

The o*her iInformation comprnises all of the informanon

n the Annual Report other than the financial statements
and our audiiorg repor: thereon. The direciors are
responsible for the other information. Our opinion on the
financial statemensts does not cover the other informanen
and. accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion or,
excep: 10 the extent otherwise exphouly stated in this
repors, any form of assurance -hereon.

n connecton with our audi of the financial statemensts,
our responsibility 18 o read the other informanon and.
n domng so. consider whether she other information 1s
mazenally inconsistent with the financral statements
or our knowladge obtaimed in -he audi, or otherwise
appears t¢ be materially missiated f wedentufy
an apparen: maenal inconsisiency or maserial
misstaremenst, we are required 1o perform procedures
10 conclude whether there s a material misstatemens:
of the financial statemen’s or 3 material misstazemens
of the other informazion. f, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude tha: there 1s a material
misstaremen: of this other informasion, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing o report based on
“hese responsibihnies.

With respec: to the Group Strategic Repor: and Repor: of
the Jwrectors, we also considered whether the disclosures
reaqaired by the LK Companies Act 2006 have heen
included.

Baged on our work undertaken in the course of the audit.
‘he Companies Act 2006 requires us also 1o reporn cerzain
opmions and matiers as described below.

Group Strategic report and Report of the Directors

In our opmion, based on the work undertaken in the
course of the audis, the informanon given in the Group
Strategic Report and Report of the Directors for the year
ended 31 March 2623 15 consistent with the finanacal
statements and has been prepared in accordance with
applicable legal regquiremen's.

in hght of the knowledge and understanding of the
group and company and their environmen: obtained in
‘he course of the audi: we did notidentfy any matenal
missaements In the Group Srategic Report and Report
of the Directors.

Directors’' Rernuneration

In our opinion, the part of the Directors’ Remuneration
Repor: o ke audited has been property prepared in
accordance with the Compames Act 2006,

Corporate Governance Statement

The listing Rules require us o review the directors’
statemenis in relation to going concern, longer-tierm
viability and tha: par: of the corporate governance
szatermnens relaning to the company's compliance with

the provisions of the UL Corporate Governance Code
specified for our review Our addizional responsibilines
with respect to the corporate governance statemen: as
orher informaton are degcribzed in the Reporing on other
information secion of this repor..
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of

Civitas Social Housing PLC
Continued

Based on the work undertaken as par: of our audiz, we
have concluded tha: each of the following elaments of the
Corporate governance statement 13 materially consistens
with the financial statements and our knowledge obtained
dunng the audiz. and, excep: for the matiers reported

1in the section headed ‘Martenal uncertainty related o
going concern, we have nothing matenal o add or draw
atteniion 0 in relation to:

e The direciors confirmason tha: they have carried ou:
a robust agsessment of the emerging and principal
risks,

e The disclosares in the Annual Repor: that describe
“hose principal nsks, what procedures are 1in place 1o
idenufy emergimg nsks and an explanauon of how
these are being managed or miugated;

¢ The directors starementin the financial stTatements
abxour whether they considered 1t appropriate to
adopt the gomg concern kasis of accounting in
preparing them, and their idennficasion of any
material uncertainies to the group's and company's
alnlity o contmnae to do so over a pentod of at leas:
swelve months fraom the date of approval of the
financal statements;

s The directors’ explanauon as 1o ‘heir assessmen: of
the groap’s and company's prospects the pernod this
assessmen: covers and why the penod s appropriate;
and

e The direciors staterment as to whether they have a
reasonable expeacranon tha: the company will be able
o continde in operation and meer 118 halnlines az they
fall due over the period of 115 assessmen:. Including
any related disclosures drawing atennon o any
necessary qualificaTions or assumpions.

Our review of the directors' stazement regarding rhe
longer-term viabiliy of the group and company was
substanually less in scope than an audir and only
consisted of making inguines and considenng the
direciors’ process supporing their stazement: checking
thaithe statemen® 1s1n alignmen: with the relevan:
provisiens of the UX Corporate Governance Code,
and considenng whether ‘he statemens 1s conssen:
with the financial starements and our knowledge and
understanding of the group and company and their
environmen: oblained in the course of the audrs.

‘n addition, based on the work undertaken as par: of
our audit, we have concluded that seach of the following
elements of the corporate governance statement 1s
mazenally consistent wirh the financial statemen:s and
our knowledge obamed during the audit

e The directors’ gtatement thar they consider the
Annual Repor:, taken as a whole, 1s fair, halanced
and understandable, and prowvides the informanon
necessary for the members to assess the group's and
company's positton, performance. business model and
strateqgy;

¢ The secuon of the Annual Report that descnbes the
raview of effectiveness of ngk management and
internal control systems; and

e 'The section of the Annual Repor: descnbing the
work of the Audir and Managemen: kngagemen:
Commitee

We have nothing 1o repor: in respec: of our responsibility
“o report when the directors’ statement relating o the
company’s comphance with the Code does no: properly
cdisclose a departure from a relevant provision of the
Code specified under “he Lisung Rules for review by “he
auchitors,

Responsibilities for the Financial
Statements and the Audit

Responsibilities of the Directors for the

Financial Statements

As explained more fully in the Statemen: of Directors’
zesponsibilinies, the directors are responsible far the
preparanon of the financial statemerns in accordance
with “he apphicable framework and for bemng sausfied
‘hatthey give a rue and farr view. The directors are also
responsible for such internal conirol as they detsrmine
1s necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statemenss that are free from mazenal miss:azemen:,
wheher due o fraud or error.

n prepanng ‘the financial statements, the directors are
responsilsie for assessing the group’s and the company's
ability 10 conunie as a going concern, disclosing.

as applicable, maters related o going concern and
using the going concern basis of accountng unless

“he direciors erther intend o iquidate the group or the
COMPany or 1o Cease operanons or have no reahsuc
alernative hut o do so



Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of

Civitas Social Housing PLC
Continued

Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the

Financial Statements

Gur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance abous
whether the financial stazements as a whole are free from
mazenal misstatement, whether due 1o fraud or error,

and to1ssue an auditorg’ repor: that mcludes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance 1s a high level of assurance, bus s
nat a quarantee tha: an audi: conducted in accordance
with (SAs (LK) will always detec: a matenial misstatemen:
when 11 exists. Misstataments can anse from fraud or
error and are considered masenal if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expecied o influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial satemeanss.

rregulariies, including fraud, are imstances of non-
comphance with laws and regulanons. We design
procedures in hne with our responsibihties, outhned
above, to detect material misszatemenss In respec: of
rregulanies, including fraud. The exrent to which our
procedures are capable of deteching irregulariies.
mcluding fraud, 1s detailed below.

3ased on our understanding of the group and indus:ry,
wedennfied that the pnincipal nsks of non-comphance
with laws and regulasons related o compliance with

the Real ngrate investmen: Trust (R=11) status Part "2 of

‘he Corporatien Tax Act 2070 and ~he UK regulatory
principles, such as those governed by the Tinancial
Conduct Authonty. and we consideraed the extent to
which non-comphance migh: have a matenal effect on
the financial statements We also considered those laws
and regulanons that have a direct impact on the financial
statemnenss gach as the Compames Act 2006, We evaluated
managemen:’s incentves and opportunines for fraudualent
manipalation of the financial statements (includmgg the
rigk of overnde of controls), and determined that the
principal neks were related to posting inappropriate
journal entnes to Incregse revenue or reduce expendiiare,
and managemen: bias in accounting esiimates and
judgmental areas of the financial stazements such as the
valuanon of invesimen: properties. Audi procedures
performed by the engagemen: team included:

e Discussions with managemens:, including
consideranon of known or suspecied ingrances of
non-comphance with laws and regulations and fraud,
and review of the reports made by management;

e Understanding of management's internal controls
designed 10 preven: and detect urtegulanies;

e Assessmen: of matiers, if any, reporzed to the Audrn
and Management sngagement Commiies;

e Reviewing relevan: meeung minaces, including
those of the Board of Directors and the Audit and
Management ngagemen: Commiites;

e Review of tax comphance with he involvemen: of our
“ax speclalists in the audit;

e Designing audit procedures to incorporate
unprediciabihity over the natare, timing and exten:t of
OuUrlesung of expenseas;

e Troceduresrelanng o the valuauon of invesiment
properies descnbed in the related key audit matter
above; and

e dentifying and esting journal entnies, in particalar
any journal entries posted with unusual account
combinauons and words.

There are inherent limizations in the audit procedures
descrnibed above We are less likely to become aware of
instances of non-complance with laws and regulations
tha: are not closely telated “o events and transacions
reflected in the financial statements. Also, the ngk of no:
detecung a marterial missiatemen: due 1o fraud 1s higher
than he nisk of not deteciung one resulting from error,
ag fraud may involve dehberate concealmens: by, for
example, forgery or intenional misrepresentatiions, or
through collusion,

Our audi: tesung might inchide testuing complete
populatnons of ceriam transactions and balances,
possikbly using data auditing techniques. However, 12
typically involves selecung a hmited number of 1rems for
testung. rather than tesung complete polatons. We will
often seek o rarget particular izems for sesiing based on
their size or isk characterisnics. 'n other cases, we will
use audit samphng 1o enable us o draw a conclusion
about the population from which the sample 15 selected.
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A further descriphiion of our responsibilities for the
audiz of the financal statements s locased on the "RC's
websiie at www fro org uk/audizorsrespongibiines This
descripiion forms part of our audiiors report.

Use of this report

This repor:, inclading the opinions, has been prepared
for and only for the company's members as a body in
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies
Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We do now in gqiving
these opinions, accep: or assume responsibility for any
other purpose or 1o any other persen ro whom this rapor:
1s shown or in-o whose hands it may come save where
expressly agreed by our prior consen: in wriiing.
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of

Civitas Social Housing PLC
Continued

Other Required Reporting

Companies Act 2006 Exception Reporting
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report
to you if, in our opinion:

¢ we have not obtained all the information and
explanations we regquire for our audit; or

¢ adequate accounting records have not been kept by
the company, or returns adequate for our audit have
not been received from branches not visited by us; or

» cenain disclosures of directors’ remuneration
specified by law are not made; or

¢ the company financial statements and the part of
the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited are
not in agreement with the accounting records and
returns.

We have no exceptions to repornt arising from this
responsibility.

Appointment

Following the recommendaticn of the Audit and
Management Engagement Committee, we were
appointed by the members on 31 March 2017 to audit the
financial statements for the year ended 17 November 2016
and subsequent financial periods. The pericd of total
uninterrupted engagement is 7 years, covering the years
ended 17 November 2016 to 31 March 2023.

Other Matter

In due course, as required by the Financial Conduct
Authority Disclosure Guidance and Transparency Rule
4.114R, these financial statements will form part of the
ESEF-prepared annual financial report filed on the
Naticnal Storage Mechanism of the Financial Conduct
Authority in accordance with the ESEF Regulatory
Technical Standard (ESEF RTS’). This auditors’ report
provides no assurance over whether the annual financial
report will be prepared using the single electronic format
specified in the ESEF RTS.

Stra 4£\Wgo(<j

Saira Choudhry (Senior Statutory Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditcrs
London

28 June 2023
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
For the year ended 31 March 2023

For the

For the
year ended yeat ended
31l March 2023 31 March 20022
o o . o . . o . . o Nare SADPB, R S‘Ui
Revenue
Ren:al income 5.0 54,607 51.636
Lc_ss direct PIOgerty expenscs o - - B o _5‘07 (!.?41) - (978)
Net rental income 52,666 50.658
Direciors remaneralion 5.0 211) (200)
nvestmen: advisory fces 8.0 (6.217) 16.132)
Cenera: and adminisiranve expenses 90 {5,393) (3.909)
Total expenses (11,821) (15.247)
Change in fair vaiue of investment propertics 15.¢ 2,640 12.259
Operating profit 43,485 52680
Finance income 100 148 7
Tinance expense 1ne (15,335) (13.608)
Cnange in fair value of intercs: rate derivatives ) 210 (2.826) 2675
Profit before tax 25.472 44,7534
Taxation 12.0 -
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year 25,472 44754
Eam.ingé per share — basic and diluted 130 4.i79;" ) 7230

Al amounis reporned in the Congo.ida.ed Staiemen: of Comprchensive Income apove arise from coninang operations.

The notes on pages 84 10 110 are an integra. par: of These conso.idated financla. siaiomen:s.



Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 March 2023

Non-current assets
[nvesiment propeny
O:her receivables

Current assets
Trade and other recevables
Casn and casn equivalen:s

Total assets

Liabilities
Current liabilities
Trade and oiqer payables

Non-current liabilities
Bank and .can borrowings
Tolal liabilities
Total net assets .

Equity

Snare capita.

Share prominm reserve
Capta reducion reserve
Re:ainced earnings
Total equity 7

Net ‘assets per share — basic and diluted

31 March 2023

31Mazch 2022

Note £000 _E000

15 953364 945237

17C 24783 23519

210 8128 2
986276  970.887

170 112600 12858

180 35588 53337

T 46848 56.202

© T 1033124 1037.089
190 (9.300) (9433
260 (361915)  (352.050)
(371215) (561542

661909 575347

72,0 6.225 5.225

730 292626 292525

240 B4 322365

| 280 45344 54331
661909 575347
250 _10916p  11030p

These conscudaled financia’ satementis on pages 80 10 110 were approved oy the Board of Dircciors of Civitas Socia. Housing

PLC and a.uhorised for issuwe and signaed onits nehalf oy:

]:\‘V'I‘HL*UM G

Michael Wrobhel

Charrman and Independent Non-Executive Direcior
78 June 2023

Company No' 10402528

The notes on pages 84 1o 110 are an integral par. of Aese consondated financial slatemcn:s.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended 31 March 2023

Share Capital

Share premium reduction Retamned Total

v IR _EN WM ER

Balance at1April2020 8225 292463 331140 43670 573498
Profit and toal comorenansive income for the year 44,754 44754
Snares reissued (rom treasury 230 - 153 184 - 647
Shares nooght pack inlo Treasary 240 - - (9.259) {9.259)
Dividends paid 11.0 N ) (34.093) (34.093)
Balance at 31 March2022 5225 202626 322365 54331 575547
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year - - - 25,472 25,472
Shares reissued from treasury 23.0 - - - - -
Shares po.gh! nack intw rcasury 24.0 - - (4,651) - (4.651)
Dividends paid 14.0 - - - (34,459) ﬂ.‘lSB)

Balance at 31 March 2023

6225 292626 317714 45344 661909

The noeg O pages 84 1o 110 are an integra. part of tnese consoadaed tingnmal statements



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
For the year ended 31 March 2023

Fot the

For the year ended
year ended 31 March 2022
S Mo 3”"”'“";8’55 ) o0

Cash flows from operatir-x-g_ activities -
Profit for the year before taxation 25,472 44754
- Cnange in {air va..le of Invesimen: propertics (2.640) (12.2.69)
- Change in fair valuc of interest rate derlvatives 2,826 (2.575)
- Rent and incentive siraigh: ine adjasiments 436 397
Bad deb: expense/(credis) 50 429 {17
Finance income {148} 0!
Finance exoense 15,335 10,608
Increase in iease incentive receivao.e (1,700} (2,010
Decrease/(increase) in rade and oher receivaoles 1,044 (230}
(Decreasel/increase in irade and oiher payab.es (1,725) 551
Cash ge-ne_ra_t-edﬁ)m operations I o 39.329_ 39.095
[nicrest received 148 7
Net cash flow g_eneraite_(ﬁ'})ry_l_ i_)i)e;iti_r_lﬁgt_@s - - 39,477 T 39.102

Investing activities

Tmprovemen:s and purchases of iInvesimen: properias (4,679) 127.695)
ACQUISI'ION COSIS (211) (1.640)
Purchase of subsidiary  me.uding property - {13.559
Sa.e proceeds on sa.e of supsidiary - cxc.ading property - 2.695

- 4.890) (40199}

Net cash flow used in investing activities

Financing activities

Cos: of snares oougat into reasury 240 (4,651) (9.259)
Proceeds from shares reissued from ireasury 10 - 919
Dividends paid 10 equity shareqo’ders (34,576) (33.928)
In:eres: rate dertvative promium paid 210 (8.841) -
Procaeds from the disposa. of interes: ratc derivaives 210 17

Ban« porrowings advanced 200 70.875 -
Band porrowinygs repaid 50 {60,000)

Banx porrowing iss.ac cos's paid (3,148) {1,BCG}
Inicres: and scourlty lees pald on bank porrowings and derivatives (12,0}2 (8.59C)
Net cash flow used in financing activites T T s233%6)  (52.653)
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (17,749) (33.760)
Cash and cash equivalents at the start of the year 18.0 53,337 107.097
Cash and cash equivailentsiati the end of tﬂaafﬂﬁ - T 180 35588 53337

* Cash and cash equivalents and monies held 1in resimeled accounis and deposits have been restated as at 31 March 2022 following clanhcaton by IFRIC un
classiicanan of lunds with exiernally imposed restrictions Please refer to details in note 2 4
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The notes on pages 84 1o 118 are an ntegral part of thesge consohdated financtal statemeants.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the year ended 31 March 2023

retirave anforisiio s

Civitas Soclal Housing PLC (ine "Company’) was incorpora:ed in Engiand and Wa es under “he Companies Act 2006 as a public
company limized ny shares on 29 September 2616 with com pany number 104G2528 Lnder tne name Civitas REIT PLC. which was
subseqaeniy changed (o the cxisting name on 3 Ociooner 2616,

The address of the registered olfice is 6th Floor, 65 Gresnam Stree:, London RC2V 7NG. The Company 18 registered as an
investment company under section 833 of the Companies Ac: 2005 in England and Wa.es and is domiciled in the United Kingdon:.

The Company did no: begin radmg until 18 Novembear 2015 when the shares were admitted to rading on ne London S:ock
Fxcaange (LSED.

The Company's Ordinary sharcs are admited to the Officia. Lis: of the Financial Conduc: Authority ("FCAY) and ‘raded on
“he LSE.

The principa’ aciivity of 1ne Company and ns supsidiarics (the "Group” is (0 provide sharehoiders witn an auractive .eve! of
income, :ogother with (ne poteniia. tor capiial growth from invesiing in a porifo.to of socia. homes.

The financial stattmenis have pesn prepared N accordance wit JK-adontad internationa. acco.ning siandards and with
the requirements of the Companies Ac 2006 as apo icabple 10 companies reporung Jnder thosa siandards.

200 W cere it PTEeparaTian

Thne Crours conse.daed financia. staiomenis nave heen prepared on a hisiorica! cost basis, as maodified for ine Group's
inves maen: properiies and derivative finanoa. instraments a: fair va.se 1arough profi or .oss,

40t Fusna vonaat gnid peoneiitat §r

Tne financla. information is presented 10 Poundsy Ster ing wihich is also e functdona. carrency of the Group. and a.. val.es arc
rounded ‘o e neares: (nowsand pounds (F7G00s). cxeept where ol aerwise indicated

Lot i s o
e Growp nenefi's from a secure imcoma siream from ong .eases witn the Apoproved Providers The Group's casn balances 4§
ar 31 Mare- 2023 wore £35.588.000 of whicn 72919000 was ne'd as restricied cash, Detats of this can pe ound in note 18.0.

Tae Company and 55 [Invesimen: Adviger, Civitas Tnves:ment Management Limied ("CIM") coniinae 10 work c.osely wiin e
Company's ma oI Corlerpdrics 1o moniior the posinon on (he gro.and and, shoeud i pe nesded. 1o olter assisiance and
quidance where possin.e The Board of Dircciors oelicves that the Company operas a ron and defensive b.siness mode.
and nd: gocial naewsing and specfalis: healicare are proving o be somas of the more resilion: sectors within the marken given
a: they are based on non-discretionary pubic secior expenditare and nat demand exceeds s.ppiy.

On 17 Noverrper 2027 an exiension was granted for the faciiy with HS3BC Bank pic, woici now oxpires on 28 Novemper 2025

On 13 Fepruary 2023 the Company closed a new five year iorm dept faciliny of £70.873.00C wiin Dewiscac Bank AG The laculy

nas oeen deoloyed (o redeem tne Company's revolving crodit facility with L.oyds Bank plc of #80,0CC.0CC as well as nroviding
addinona’ iquidizy. As a rasuit now at dept facuines nave tiked or capped rates

On 1 Decemper 2077, (ne Company signed a tacity wita an nstiteuona. .onder Soosequernt (o this. on 2l June 2023 the
Company received credl: approved erms foran addisona. £61.0 milion fixed faciily oased on a 3-year SONTA raic a: ;1e
date of draw down +1950ps margin wity a manirity dawe of 3 ALgus: 2026 Tne evenida. drawdown on inc facliy is s.oec
ceriain standard closing conditlions

Cash f ow lorcca nased on severe oyl P ausicle downside scenarios Jave peen run. in parucu-ar the {inanoma performance
of -enanigs and a red.ucion in conracied ren: As a: 31 March 2023 th2 rent wood have o drop oy approximae y 167 ocfore
any of 118 .0an covenants are orgacned. Al tne date of aporova. ol imis repor:. ne Company nas sufhicient neadroom wirun its
financia. .can covenan's. Tao Comrpany a so pencilis trom a scoure meome siream from .eases witn .ong weignied average
nexpired term .eases As a resu, 1ne Rireciors aedeve that tne Growp 1s we.. placed 1o manage s financing and ather
n.siness nses and as the Crowp wil remam viao'e coniinging 'o operaie and meel 123 Japiities as tney faldus

Tac Company's ariic.es of assomation inc.ude a requiremen: for 1ne Board o propose an ordinary reso.wlion at e ann.a.
gencra. meeing fo. owing (e fify anniversary from tae niaa’ p.o ic offering of the Company for e Company 10 contin.e
in its currens form {the Contnuaton Reso.uion) T1Is voie was passed in mber 20272 so ne Conpany wi . conlinge
0LSINCSS A3 Oresan:y consii.god and wi. propose 1N same raso wion a: (ne AGM in Sepiemoer 2027 and cvery fifin ann.a.
geonera. mecing (nereafor




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Continued

Omn 9 May 2023 an announcoment was made (o (ne marke: for an all-casa offer of Civitas Sociat Housing PLC (CSH) from

Wol ness Unity Limited. a whoiy owned indirect subsidiary of CK Assets Ho.dings Limied (CKA) The offer became
unconditiona. on 23 June 2023 The Croup's exis:ing committed debt facilitics con:ain a standard change of control clause
whicn has now been riggered dae o the offer becoming uncondiziona.. {s cod.d resull in the existing commisted

den: faci ities neing withdrawn. Furthermore, tne Direc:ors do not have visibilicy of the post completion funding for the

Group and Company at 1nis iime The Dircotors note the detailed intentions statemrent inc.uded within (e announcemernt

an 9 May 2023 which siates that CKA does no? envisage maxing any cnanges (o the management team ner any disruption

10 any codnierpariies or o the anderying tenants. However, 1nc conditions outhned above indicaie a ma:cria’ unceriainty
which may cast significant doup: .pon (ne Croup's and Company's abl.ity to continge as a going concern The Independen:
Audiiors’ Report inciuded within the Annda. Repor: and Accounts for ne year ended 31 March 2023 also nighligats this materia,
Neeriainty. Therefore, notwhinhsianding the mareria. unceriainy arising frem the offer from CKA, the Directors are satslied (ha:
e going concern basis remains appropnate for the preparation of the financial statemenis. The tinancia. slatemen:s do not
inc.oude the adjusiments imar wol.d result if the Greoup and e Company were unaole 10 Continue as a going concern.

24 New standards, anwesdments aacbanv e elaions
Tne lol owing new siandards arc now effeciive and nave peen adopicd for the year ended 31 Marcn 2025

¢ IFRIC Agenda Item: Fol'owing c.arificaiion by IFRIC on the Classificanon of monies held in restricied accounts. monies
inat are resiricted oy usc on.y are c.assilied ai 3t March 2023 as Casn and cash eguivalenis | As detailed in noie 74, Lhe
comparative nalances have peen resiated wnere appicabee to ref.ect tnis change in c.assificaton

¢ IFRIC Agenda Item: Tn Gaiober 2022, the IFRIC issned an agenda decision in respec: of Tessor forgiveness of iease
vaymeans (IFRS 9 and [FRS 15) (Tne [FRIC Decision on Concessions’) This conc..ded “nat losses incurred on graning
relrospecrive rent concessions snou.d ne cnarged o Tnc income staiemen: on the datc tna: e ega: righ's to Income: are
conceded fe immediate recognizionin fu * raier (han smoothed over (he ite ol 1ne ease). Tne caaritication nas not had a
marena. impact on he indneia. s:atemen:s.

¢ Amendments to IFRS 3 ‘Business Combinations' (cficcuve for oeriods peginning on or afier 1 Jan.ary 2022) - gives
clarification on e recogniiion of contingen: Jabi.ines at acguisrion and ¢ arities that contingen: assais should not ng
recogniscd a: tae acq.aisition date The amendmen:s nave no: nad a significan: impac: on the preparation of inc financia’
stalemenss

« Amendments to IAS 37 ‘'Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets’ (effcciive for periods neginning on or
afier 1 Jangary 20272)  gives clarification on cos's o incoude in estimading e cos: of fu.050ng a contract for e purpose of
assessing wheiner tha: conract 1g onerous Tae amandmen:s have not had a significan: impac: on ¢ preparation of the
financia. siatemenss.

« Amendments to IFRS 9 ‘'Financial Instruments’ (eifective for periods neginning on or afier 1 January 20220 gives
clarfication on :ne lees an entty inc.udes when assessing wnether (e terms of a new or modified financia. iaoility are
sLosianialy differen: from ine terms of the origina. (iapi.ty. Tne amendments have no: nad a signitican: impac: on ihe
prepara:ion of 1ne financia, s:atemen.s

LOReST A ey

R T B O RIS R AT SRR AR RN T eos e

In March 2022, 1ne IFRS [nterpretazions Commitee { IFRIC } finalised a dectsion on ine classification of monies he.d in resricied
acrouns, such (nat monies (nat are ragiricied py Gse ony. are cassified ar 31 March 2023 as Casn and cash eqaivaens

x ;
Doodlenitt

Tac Group houds resiricled cash for ‘enan: deposiis and rerention monies in re.ation (o deferred paymen:s sapeci 1o
achievemen: of ceriain conditions, oiner retentzions and casa segregated (o fund repain. mainienance and improvamen: wor<s
to nring the properties 4p "o satislac.ory s:andards for 7ne Gro.p and ne tenanis.

Asa resuii of tne IFRIC decision, tne Group nas revisized 18 policy and inciudes these monues wiliin ine classificazion casn
and casn equiva.ens . The ad;usimen: has no impact on the ¢lassification of lne net asse's of the Groupn on (ne 5laement
of Financial Position. however the movemen:s on (nese na.ances are now repor.ed in ine Statement of Cashilows and
comparasiive figures nave been restaied

Comparaiive figures for cash and cash equiva.anis’ mave increased oy £4.362,000 (31 March 2021 £3.278.000) This has
resulied in anincrease o the comparative igure for casn generated trom operations oy £1613.000 concerning movemren:s
on deposit balances and an Increase (o Jac ne: casn Low used in inves:ing activities of £529.000 concerning movemen:s On
retention mornies.

The Growp has not presented revised balance sheois as al 1 Aoril 2021 within the financial sia:emen s, in accordance with [AS1
Prasentation of Financia: S:atemenis and [AS 8 Accounting Poiicies, Changes m Accouniing Esiimaies and Lrrors

E
2
x
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Continued

The following table shows the impact of these adjustments in the prior year:

31 March 2022

31 March 2022 Restatemnent Reslated
R el o EMOS o FDOD L FDOO
Group cash flow statement (e;tra;t)i

Ne:casn fow generated from operating acuviies 37.489 1.613 39162
MNel casn llc)y«j:sed in investing activities (39.67C) {529) (4C.199)
Casn and cash equivalenis at he start of the year 103.819 3778 167.097
Cash and cash cquivalonis at 1he end of the year 48,975 4362 53.337
rease In cash and cash equiva.enis (54.844) 1.084 (53.760)

T s ENN BT TSR 8 F1 I PRE SRS T ¢ ced Y Trorr. ef et Tort atare oo g el

d srpieyn
The fo.owing are new standards. inierpretauons and amendmenis whicn are no: yot effective and have not noen earny
adopied in nis linancia. intornradon, mat wil or may nave an effeat on the Group’s futare financial stazamaen:s:

« Amendments to IAS 12 'Income Taxes’ (elleciive for periods peginning on or aller 1 January 20230 clanly now companies
accoun: lor deferred tax on lransacions g.cn ag leases and decommntissioning ooligations. The amendmen:s are not

axpectad 10 1ave a significan: impact on the preparation of the financial siatecments.

e Amendments to 1AS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ (etfeciive tor periods neginning on or after 1 January
Z0Z3) are intended 10 qalp entities in deciding whicn accounting po icies 1o disclose in taeir linancia. slatements The
amendmen:s are not cxpecied o have a significan: impact on (ne preparalion of e financal siaiemen's

« Amendments to IAS 8 ‘Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors’ {cifcctive for ocriods
peginning on or afier 1 Janaary 2023) - introduce the detininion of an accoanting estimate and inc..de omer amendmen:s
0 e entitdes distingnish cnanges inaccouning esumwates fron caanges in accounting poacies. The ameoendmenig are
no: expecied (0 nave a gsignificant impac: on 1ne prenaradon of ine tinanacia, s.alemen:s.

* Amendments to 1AS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’ (efieciive lor periods peginning on or atier 1 Jan.ary 2024)

clarify ‘ha: lianilities are classified as cither c.rrent or non-curren?, deoending on the rnigh's texist at e end of the

repor.ing period and not expec:anons of or actual events afier Tne reporung date. The amendiren:s a so give ciarification
10 1ve definition of settlemens: of a .lagiity. The amendrments arc not expected 0 Dave a significant tmpaat on e
preparation ol 1ne financia siaements,

6 Segiaenta raforananion

IFRS 8 Cyperaling Segmants requires operaing scgmenss 0 be identficd on the pasis ol mernal financial repors ano.d:
comoonenis of e Grown thas are regular.y reviewed oy tne Chief Cperating Decision Maxer, waicn in the Gro.Lp's case is
dewegared o the Invesimen: Adviser who aas formed an Execdiive Teant, in order 1o a:tlocate resources 1o the segments and 0
asgsess thelr porformanace.

Tacinterna financial reporis received ny tne Invesimen: Adviger's Execuave Team conzain financial informauion at a Group
ieve.as a who e and There arc no reconciing Tems botwecn the resulis contained in laese reporns and ne amo.ny repored
i e consoldaed linancla. sialemants,

e Directors consider 1ae Grocp's property vorfolio represcnts a concren: and diversified portoao wii simliar economic

caracierisies and. as a resun e wno.e portlo.io of properies represents a sing.c operaing segmoen: n e view of (0o
Dircerors there is according v ona reponiab e segmean: under (ne provisions of IFR3 8.

Aot the Crowp's properties are nased in the JK Geographica. informaion is provided 0 ens.re compiiance with the
diversification requiremrents of tne Comrpany. oiner 1an this no geograpaleca dgroaoing is contained in any of the ierna.
linancia: repor:s orovided 0 the Invesimen' Adviser's Executive Team and. therefore. no geograpnica. segmenia ana.ysis is
reqadred oy [FRS 8

The Directors note 1 requiremense in I[FRS § Paragraph 34 nertalning o aniities under common contro and confirm 11a:
potn Alcsand Home 3o..ions and Qualtas Housing fas lessees of e Company’s invesimen: rea. es:ate) are nder common
contro. of The Socia’ Hooging Fami y CIC "T8HF) Tne percentage and sam coa. of the Comrpany's ann.al contracied ren: ro..
neraining o nese cown:erpar:ies as if 1ney were considered 0 pe a sing.c cusiomrar can ne found in note 280 and on page 9
of tne Ann.a. Rapor.




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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[n the application ol ine Croup's accounting policies. which are descrined in note 4.0, the Directors are required 1o make
udgements, esiimates and assJmprions aboul Ine carrying amoun:s of asscts and liaoilitias ina: are not readily apparent
[tom ooner sources. The ‘Ldgemenis, ¢sumates and associated assumprions tnat have a significan: ris< of causing a nateria.
adiustment o the carrying amounts of assets and labilities witnin the financial year are cutined nc.ow

£
The GroLp uses (he va.salion carried out oy s independen: valuer as the fair va.ue of 118 properiy porifolio. The valuation is
pased upon assumpriions inciuding fuiure rental income and the appropriate discoun: rate. Tne valuers also make reference 1o
marxel evidence of iransaction prices for similar proper:ies. Further inlormation 1s provided in note 15.0

Nrgraic ant entnrigte - aieatiae of

et progerty,

Tac Group's properiies nave neen independently va ued by Jones Lang LaSa le Limited CILL or the “Valuer’) in accordance
wih Jie canren: Royal Insdwsdon of Charered surveyorg Valuaton — G obal Standards. incorporanng the [VS. and the RICS
Valuaiuon € oova. Standards 2617 JK natienal s.pplement (1ne RICS "Red Book”). ILL Is @ well recognised professiona. firm
within social nousing va.Lation and has sulficient c.rren: local and national knowledge of boin social nousing generally and
Specialis: Supported Housing ("SSH™ and has the s«i'ls and .inderstanding (o underiage ine va.Lations competent'y

Wih respect 1o ine Groun's consolidaed financia: stalements, invesimen: properiies are val.ed at therr fair va.Lc at cach
pa.ance snee: daicin accordance with TFRS 13 Fair va_te measurements showuid oe oresented and classified using a fair va e
hierarcay (ha: refiects the significance of 1ne inp.is Lsed n e neasiremaenss, according -o the fo_owing eve s:

Level 1 TInad .sed. guoled prices for identical assets and labiilies 1n aclive (:y_o”;célly guoied) markos

Level 2 [np" 5 owmer than guoicd pfl(‘.(?h:_lh(:.ljdﬁd \;vr.hin Le\-/-e_-1_:na: are obsorva&e I(); Lh;:lssei or lak)ll'I{Y, Cl'.BCI’ dim(::!;_
(ha: is. as vrices) or indirecty (that is. derived from prices)

Level 3 Inpatg for he asser or fanility 1na: are no: pased on opservan.e mar<e: data (.;nnos;fvable m?is) Va:Le is ne

Directors best esiimate, hased on advice from re.evan: <nowliedgean.c cxperts, wse of reeogrused valialion
technigues and a deermunauocn of wiich assumpnons should pe applied in vauing such assets and witn
pariicu.ar {focus on the speailic atinibwes of tne invesimen:s themsa.ves,

Given the nesporke nature of 2ach of 1nc Group's inves:men:s, the particular reqairements of d e diligence and financia:
conlirib.gion ootained tromm the vendors ogether with the recent emergence of 351 a.. of the Group's invesimen: properiics

arc inc.aded in Level 3

L L T LR TE B PR T P TR PP S Sttty T O R
The fair valuc of Groups iniersst rate derivatives is recorded in the Group Siatenten: of Financial Position and is determined
Dy lhe regpeciive cosnerparics. The couniernariies Lse a numper of assumptions in determining e fair vaiucs, mcluding

esimations over fuiLre Interes: rates and future cash flows Lsing onservaple yie.d curvaes

B S
The Oroup acquires suosidiaries That own invesimen: properues Al e lime of acquisition, the Gro.p considers wheter eacn
acqguisizion represents the acq.aisizion ot a pusiness or the acquisition of an asset. Management considars he suosiance of e
assets and acuviiies of e acquired endity in deermining whneiner tne acquisition represents 1ne acquigiion ol a nusiness.

C e T O ST AN D L e R FA PR S IR FRR R R R SR

[EFHAAREE S

The Group accoun:s for an acauisition as a Huginess compination where an integrated set of activides is acguired in addrion
10 the propery. Waere such acguisitions are not Judged (o be the acquisition of a business. they are not ireated as pusiness
combinazions. Rainer, the cost 1o acquire the corporate entivy ig al.ocated oerween ne idenufiab.e assets and labilities of 1ne
enlity nased upon their re:atlve fair va.ues a: the acq.asiion date Accordingly, no goodwill or addinenal deferred tax ariscs.

TACre WOre Ro corporate daqualisiilons made in tc yvear

During ne previous year, the Group entered into a mransa<ciion (o acgare the frechold properaes operated oy CPI Care Limited.
Upon the acq.aisizion of :ne company: the properiies were ransferred inlo oiner gro.p companics and the company acquired,
a.0ong with 1ty associated operations. was so.d to Envivo Corundum Bidcoo Limited. Furiner details are shown in note 150 10 tne

financial sta:emenss.

Tae acquired companies me: the definition of a business under IFR3 3, and the ransaction was therelore recorded as a
business compination.

Beeause e Group acqdired the company with the inten: to se.i ne ousiness, management applied the shori-cul merhod
wnder IFRS 5 - Sapsidiarnes aceg.ired with a view o resale. Inder tais method. ine subsidiary 1s recorded at fair value less cos:
10 sell and tere is no reguiremen: to fair value ‘ne subsidiary’s individua, assets and liabi.itics.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Continued
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The Group nas acquired Invesiment properiies thal are subject to cominercia. property leascs with Approved Providers, The
Croun has determined. oased on an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements. particuany the duration
of the lease terms and minimam .ease payments. (nal il reiains ail ine significant ris<8 and rewards of ownership ol thesc

propenies and so accounts for the leases as operating .eases.

| ISR Lt L PR RR HEpdome ot

Civitas Social Floasing PLC is a Keal Estate Invegimen: Trust (REIT). Tne UK REIT regime applies wnen entilies nieel ceriain
conditions with 1ne effect that the income profits and capitat gains of e gqualifying property 1en:a: nusiness are exempt from
ax, Within thesc condiiions a: leasl 9% of the Group's property income most be disiriouied as dividends 1o shareno.ders and
e Group must ens.gre that the property renta. business represen:s more than 75% of (otal orofits and assets.

Foliowing e completion of tne offer, there is a leve. of ancertainty that the Grouo wil. remain in (ne REIT regime

Vo bunnd :
The principal accouning pe.ces apn.ed in he preparation of the consodated inancid. stalemen:s are set 0.4: be.ow. Thne
policias nave oecn consisienty applied o a.l periods vresented. un.ass olnerwisc stated

b wnaglieant A0 oreaatingg o

b oHaues o

The consolidaed linancial statemen:s comprise the inancia. intormanon of the Group as at e year end dale

HERAMES S KRS S TALIH

Saosidiaries are al entities over which the Grouap nas control 7ae Grouwp coniro.s an entty waen ine Grodo is exposad o,

or nas righs o, varian.e retarns from g invo.venien: with the entity and has the aniiiyy 1o affect those returns “hro.ga s
power o dircct the activiies of the = v, AL Intra-growp transactions, balances, income and cxpenses are o iminaited on
consolidation The financia, informartion of the suonsidiaries is incioded in tne consolidatert linanca. statements from tne dae
that conirol commences unti. the dae {nal conro. ¢eases

If an eqguity interastin a subsidiary is transferred oot a conrolling inieras: conunues o be held atler the transter tnen ine
cnange in ownersmyo intarast is accountad for as an equly rransaction

Accounting policios of tne subsidiaries are consisten: wil (e policies adopied by the Company.

R A N

Invesiaren: propery, walca is nropery nc.d o earn ren:a.s and/or tor capita apopreciaion. is inidaly meas.red a: ¢cost. acing
ae fair varae of the consideration given. inc.ading oxpenditure that s directly atribuianie to the acq.asiton of e invesinten:
oropery. Afler inia. recognidion, invesiment properiy s stated at B8 fairva. .e a: the na.ance snea: date. Gams and .osses
arising from: cnangos in the fair va te of mvesimen: pragerty arc inc.aded in profit or .oss for e neriod in waleh (acy arse in
ne Consodidated Statemen: of Comprenensive Incomao

Subscqg.en: expenditure is capra’ised ony wien 10 is propan.e 11ad latuIo economic benefits dre associacd wiin 1ne expenditare.
Ongolng repairs and mainienance arc cxpensed as incurred. Overncads and operaling expenses arc no: capiialised,

An invesimen: prover:y is derecogmsed woon disposd. or when the IVesTInent progerty 1s permanenty witndrawn {rom .sc
and no funre economic peneliis are sxpecied lrom e disposa . Any gain or .08s ansing on derecognition af tne propery
(ca.cuatod as e difference poiween e ne: disvosa. proceeds and e carrying amo.an: of the asse:) is inc.urred in profi or
.08s in ine period In wnicn tne oroper:y is derecognised.

Signiltcan: accownung | .dgemen s, eshnrales and ass.mplions made lor e va uation of InvesiTen: oroperics are disc.ssed
innoe sl

PR Y T

Leases are c.assificd ag tinance cases whenever (ng sormms of The Lcase ransfer suosiantia.y a. (ne ris<s and rewards of
awnersiio 10 N0 .essce AL 0iNer .eases are cassifiicd as operaiing cases

The Company nas de:ormined as 10 retamns a. nc significant ris<s and rewards of ownersmp of (e prooeries and acco.nts
for Ine conirac's as operating .eases as discuszed innoic 34,

Froperiies .eased oul wnder operaiing eases are inciuded in invesimen: propery in the Consolidaied S:atemen: of Financia.
Position. Renta income from overalng .eascs 1s recognised on a siralghl anc pasis Over inc term of ine re.evan: .€ases,

Lease incen:ive cosig arc rocogmsed as an asse: and amroriised over the ife ol i1e easc

CLVITAS SOCIAL HOUSING
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Continued

i Fonar et At

E oy, e e

"'he Growp c.assilies its tinancia. assets in the following measurement catcgories:

e lhose o ne measured subseqguenty a: fair va.ue {either through other comprehensive income or tarough orofit or oss): and
e those Lo be measured at amorised cos:.

The classification depends on ne entity's pusiness model tor managing the financia. assets and thae contractua. terms

of the cash flows. For asseis measured ai fair vaiue. gains and .osses wiil eitner be recorded in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income.

foaafes arod Tl e e Aanle
Trade and other receivagles arc amounts d.ue in the ordinary course of business. If collecuion is expected in one ycar or .ess.
ey are classitied as current assets. If not, (ney arc presented as non current assats,

Trade reccivab.es are recognised initialy at fair valuc and subsequenty are measured at amortised ¢ost using e effeciive
intcrest meod, less impairment provision. Tae Group ho'ds the rade receivap.es with 1ne ob_aciive 1o Coled! e conracdiua.
casi flows.

TR TR

The Crowps financial agsets arc suojee: 10 ne exoeced credit.oss mode.,

For ‘rade recewvan.es, the Group app.ies the simp'ified approach permited oy [FRS 8. waich requures expecied etime osses
1o pe recognised from mitia. recogniion of 1ne receivan.es.

The expecied [oss rates are bascd on ne paymen: orofiles of leasc income over a period of Lo 10 12 months ocfore 31 Marct
2023 or 1 Aori: 2022, respective.y. and the corresponding nistornical credis iosses expericnaad wiinin tus period. 7 historica.
.oss rates arc adjas.ed o retlec: current and forward-iooxing information on macroeconomic factors atfecting ine daolity

of the tenanis 1o setie the receivan.e Suea torward-.co<ing information wolld include cnanges in cconomic. regu. alory.
technological and environmen:a. faciors (sucn as indusiry oualleox GDP employmen: and policsk externa: mar<et indicalors:
and ‘enan: base

Bascd on e assessnent and ne specific work taaris wnderway arcund colleciion of aged arrears, a provision of
£459,.000 (2022: 7239.000) has neen reflecied in "he annua. resuils,

Trade receivan.es are wriien off when there is no reasonan.e expeciaton of racovery
Indicators tha: tere is no reasonab’ o expeciaion of recovery include, among oers, tne propabi.lty of inso vency or
significant linanmal difficaies of The dewior Trrpaired deols are derecognised when they are assessed as uncol'eciin.e,

Loaan EES RN L

Cash and cash eq.iva ens inc ude cagh in hand, cash held by awyers and JQgaidity funds with a terme ol no more than three

mon.as tha: are readl'y convertipie (o a <nown amo.n: of cash and whica are sunect o an insignifican: ris< of changes in va ue.

esnaied cash represents amounts hed for specific commitmen:s. i.chan: deposiis and reention moncey he.d by ‘awyers in
re.a:on (o deferred payments sub'ec: to achueverran: of certain conditions. orher reienuens and casn segregated "o fund

rcpair, main:enance and improvement wors 1o arnng ‘he properiies up 10 saisfactory standards for the Group and e tenans.

NEREA R e P

Derivaidve financial insiruments, which comprise interes! rale caopg and swaos for hedging purposes, are initialy recognised
at fair val.o a: acquisizion and are supscquen:y measared a: fair value being the esimated amount that the Group would
receive or pay to se.. or rransfer the agrecmen: at 1ae period end date raxing into accoun: curren: iRIErest raic expeciaions
and ne carrent credit raung of the lender and its counlerparies. Thg insirument may oe an asset or a liabiiity. Tne gain or loss
at eacn fair value renreasurement date is recognised in e Grouo's Consolidated S:atemen: of Comprchensive Income.

Derivauve financial iIns‘rumen's are derscognised when e rigats o receive cash Lows from the agreement have expired
or nave peen ransforred. and the Croup has ransferred suns:andia iy al ine nis<s and rewards ot ownership. The diffcrence
beween he carrying amonn: and congideration reccived is tecognised as a gain or Loss in the Group's Consolidated
Sratemen: of Comprenensive Income.

The Croup wses vasation tecanigues that are apgropriaze in the circums:ances and for wiach safficien: data is availaole
[0 meas.Jre lair value, maximiging e usc of re'evan: ocossrvao e inputs and minimising the ase of unobscrvab ¢ inpu's

significant to the fair valae measurement as a wno.g

O:ner tnan derivative financia. ins:ramenis woch are no: designa.ed as hedging insiraments, the Grouo does nol nave any
assers ne:d for rrading nor docs it volun:arily ¢lassity any financiar asse:s as being a: fair value through profit or oss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Continued

{5 Finaaoral habaaees

The Group recognises a financial liaoility wnen it lirst pecomes a party 0 the contracrial rigns and ob.igations in the contrac:

A.. financial 1abilides are initial.y recognised a: fair va.se. minus {in the case of a linanciai ilapbility tha: is not at tair va ue
carodgh profic or loss) cransaciion cosis that are directy atribaiap.o o issuing the nancia. dapiity. Financial (ablites are
suosequenty measdred at amortised cost unless the Groso opled ‘o measure a Jdability at fair val.e througn profit or Joss.

A financial sapiity is derecognised when the ooaga:ion ander the ilability is discharged. cancel.ed or expires.

Poorales et S e -

Trade and otner payab.es are classified as current lapilizies if paymen: s due wiiain one year or less. I[f not, iney are oresentad
as non-current 1abiities. Trade and other payables are recognised initial.y a: thelr fair va. .e and sunseqaently measured at
amortised cost annl sertied. The [air vasie of a non-interest pearing .aoi.y is iis discounied repayment amount. If 1ac duc
daze of the lability is _ess than one year, discounang is omitted.

e gy

Al pank and other borrowings are intiially recognised a: fair value ess directy ailrioutab.c ransaction costs. After inma.
recognition, all pan< and other borrowings are meas.ured ar amortised oc Jsing he cliective interest method Any
alirioutan.e ‘ransaciion ¢osts relaung 10 the issJge ol tne bank porrowings are amortised througn ine Crowp's Statemens of
Compreiensive Income over the lifo of ine debtmsirument on a srraigh:-.inc oasis

Borrowings are removed lrom 11e consoildaicd statemens of financial posilion when the obligation specificd in tne contract
is discharged, cance ed or expired. The difference betwesn (e carrying amount of a financia: lianility thal has been
exung..ishad and Jhe consideration paid is recognised in orofi or loss as a finance cos:

LI ST B A
Provisions are recognised wnen 1ac Grodp has a presen: on.igation {{ega. or consiruative) as a resu.L of a pas: event itis
vroonable 1ha: 1ne Group will be reguired 10 setle that ooaga:ion and a reliabio esiimate can oe made ot ine amoont of the
ooligaion

it

The amoun: recognised ag a orovision 15 inc oes: eslimate ol the consideration required to sgit.o the present on.lgalion al e
ralance shest date [ading into acco.nt Lo necs and wneerainies sarro.nding e oblgation

i

Taxaion on the grotic or oss for the peried not exemp: under JK REIT reg.Laions is comprised of courrent and deferred tax Tax
is recognisad in e Consolidated Statemens of Comprenensive Incormre except 10 e exien: nat it relaias (o llamrs recognised
as a direc: movement in equity. in wnich case 11 s recognsed as a direct movemaen: in equity. Carrent lax is expecied ax
payan.e on any non-REIT taxan.e income lor ine geriod. asing tax rates cnacted ar suosianiively enacied ar e 0a:ance siect
dae, and any ad’usimen: (0 1ax payaole in respect ot orevious verieds.

2 current ax cnarge 1s ca.cuated on profits arising i the pertod and in accordance wita .egis.ation whicn nag been
enac.ed or sensiantially cnacied at tc balance snee: date.

Deferred tax is provided on remporary differences peiwecn the carrying amodn:s of asse:s and J1apiaes for financia!
reporiing purposes and the amountg wsed for raxation purposes. Tae amownt of deferred tax thatis provided is Dased on
1ne expecied manner of rea.isaton or seii.emen: of 1ne carrying amo.n: of assets and Japlites, LSIng ax raies enacted or
sLbganivey enaciad a the balance sneet dae,

SR IR B LI § 57 SE FEEI

Tne Gro.up’s 00;ectves wWACH managing cavila are o sateg.ard e Group's abliy 1o coniin.e as a going concern in order o
orovida rerurns for snargao dearg and (o mainiain an opidmal capial siricture toreduce the cost of capha.

Capita asse:s comarise e lolowing

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

F'000 £ (3030
Proceeds from e iSs.e of Ordina ry saares and reained carnings o 661,909 a 575.547
Bank and oan norrowings 361,915 332.050
Total ' S S 1.023.824 1027597




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Continued

The Dircctors may use gearing 10 enhance equity reiurns. The eve. of borrowing wil, oe on a grudent basis for tne assei class
and wil. seex o acnieve a .ow cost of tunds, wnilgt maintaming the flexibily in the ander.ying security requirerents and the
structare of the Group.

The Grodp may [ollowing a decision of 1he Board, raise deoo: from pan<y and/or the capital markets and the aggregale
borrowings of the Group wil” a.ways pe subjec: 10 an ansc.ute maximum, calculaed at the time ot drawdown, of oelow 4G% of
e Gross Asgzer Value on a fu ly invested pasis.

19 Drnrrraass pavancie fo s e g ter

Dividends are inciuded in the financiaj statemen:s in the year in which they are paid.

THE Rendta! oo

Rental income from mvesimen: property is recognised on a siraigns-line basis over ine lerm of ongoing Jcases and is shown
gross of any UK incaome tax. Lease incentives arc spread even.y over the lease erm. Losses incurred on granting retrospective
ren: concesgions are charged 10 21 income siaement on e dae tial ine edal rgnis 1o income are conceded (Le. immediate
ecognition in tul rather than smoothed aver the life of the easec).

Insurance recharges and otner simiar receipis are recognised under IFR3 15 Revence from contraais with castomers’. and are
mnc.aded in net rental and properiy income gross of the related costs as the Directors consider the Group acis as principa. in
“his respect.

NERESS Lo

Finance imcome 1s recognised as interes:, and is acceraed on cash and cash equiva.ent na:ances he.d oy ine Group.

O T B N

Finance cos.s consis: of interest and piner costs that 7ae Growp incurs m connection with pans and oner borrowings. Bang
intercs: and oanx charges are recognised on an accraa.s hasis, Borrowing ransaction costs are amortised using 1ne effective
ineres rale.

LIRSV FTLLE NN
A.. expensges. Inc.ading Inves rent Advisory fees, are recognised in
dn accrua § nasis.

e Conso.idated 3tazanten: ol Comprehensive Income on

EE R R At I

The costs of issuing or reacqullng cqguity instraments (o1Mer than in a p.siness compinationt are accounted [or as a deduciion
from eq.iy

HE 5'*!.;>€s‘g<“|z‘:5:i 1

Excepional iloms re aie 0 amounis which do not norma'ly 0ccar in e norma. aourse of b.siness.

Lxcentiona’ orofessional ¢osts for -wo maor oro ecs nave peen disclosed separately These reiate 10 cosis associacd with the
offer for :he purchase of the entire snare capiial of the Conmpany by a suosidiary of CK Asse: Holdings Lintized (CKA) and costs
associaied with a p.anned 0onil 1580 wnich was posiponed

TN Eboaras e treinea

Tae cosls, inclading ditectiy atriputan e rransacions cosis, of purcnasing e Company’'s own snares 1o be acld in treasury
arc deducied from equiliy and e costs arc snown in the Consolidated Siatemrent ol Changes in Equity Consideration
received. nat of rransacuon coss, for the resale of these snares is a.s50 inciuded in eqaliy Whist the Company nolds snarces in
rreaslry. tho calcuiations tor net assel valie and carnings per share are ad;asted o exaoiude (1gse snares.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Continued

TEoHare ek

t'or the For the

year ended year ended
- ] B ) o B 3 Marchcaggg j-l Malchgf!:;ﬁ
Renzal income from 1r1vestrrlént proper{y" - - 53.53-17 | 51,038
Ren: straight ;ine ad;usmaents 586 529
Lease incentuive amorlisation (1.022) (928)
Rechargeab.e costs received ) 1512 995
Rental income B - T ) " 54607  515%
Less direct property expenses
Tnsurance and scrvice charge costs (£,512) 1993}
Bad deio: {429) 17
Direc} prope;ty eipenses ) T T T T - (1,941) 77#97‘78)
Net réntal i.ncc:rrlr‘le o - - - T 52.666- 506%8_

Rechargean's costs received represen: ins.rance and service ¢aarge costs e CroLp and recharged (o tne
Approved Providers and are accounted for under [FRS 15 ‘Revenue from conracts win cusiomers’

As per the lease agreemen's with the Group and Approved Providers. e Approved Providers are resoonsiole for the
serement ol i prosen: and [ul.re rases taxes and other imposiions payab.e in respacr of ihe pronery. As d res.. Lo for
diree: nroperiy expenses were incorred.

LEREL I | ' ot PR AR TINEYS [
Fot the Yor the
year ended year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 042
. — . B R . L ~ UL £ 000
Direc:ors leesg 194 190
Emp.oyer's Nallona Tnsurance Conirinuiions 17 15
Total 211 208

The Direciars are remr Lnerated for their services in accordance with (he Remuneraion Foooy wiuch sois paran eers within
wnicn Direciors’ remoneration may pe sci Tae Remaneraiion Poulcy is approved oy shareho ders.
Disc os.res required by the Companies Act 2006 on Direciors’ rem.aneration, inc. ading sa.aries. share oplions. pension

contnpuiions and pension entit emen: and nose specificd ny e Lising Rulas of the Financia. Condue: Autnority are inclded
on pages 64 10 67 in ine Remuncration Repor: and form par: of These Financia) S:aiemen:s,

frei

Tne Group nad no emp.oyees during (ae year (2022 niy otner man e Direciors



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Continued

B Irvespres g

Yor the For the

year ended year ended

31 March 2023 31March 2022

—_— - - . o o £o00  £oue

Advisory fea 6,206 5.132
Dispursements 1n -
Total 6,217 5132

Civitas Invesimen: Managemen: Lurited CIM) is the appoinied Invesiment Adviser of the Company. Under tne curren:
Invesimen: Managemen: Agrecemen:. the Advisory Pec shall be an amount ca.culated in respec: of each guarter, in each

case pased Jpon the Ne! Asset Value mos: recenty announced (o the marke! al the reievan: time (as adi.sled forssues or
repurenases of shares in she neriod between the date of suen announcement and ne date of the re.evan: caleuladion). on the
fol.owing nasis:

a) on aai par of the Net Assot Va'.e Jp o and incuding £250.00C,00C, an amoun: eq.ia. 10 1% of suca par: of the Net Asset Valle,

b) ontha: par: of the Ner Asse: Va.ue over £250.000.000 and vp o and inc..ding £500.0C0,00C. an amount egua. o 0.9% of such

ne Net Asser Valle:

€) ontha: par. of tne Ne: Asse: Va.uwe aver £F500.000.00C and 4p 0 and inciuding F1.00C.COC.C00, an amoun: equal 0 C.8% ol
sacn par: of e Nel Asset Va. ue;

d) on:na: par of the Nel Assel Va..e over £1.060.600,60C. an amo.n: eq.ual o 0.7% of si.ch par: ot tne Net Asse: Value

nar: ol

e appoinmment of the Investmean: Adviser sha.l continae inforce aness and wni. erminated by criner party giving 1o the

olner not 'ess than 12 moniag wrisen notice, s.ch notice not o expire eanier man 36 May 2025,

T AP LI S N R T Ny T N O I LA

Fot the For the
yeat ended wear ended
%1 March 2023 31 Maich 2022
3 . o _ . ____E_Z'UUEIV 7(‘:“&
chgi and profcssi;najags o - 1,250 1459
Lxcentiona. prolessional cos:s 1,816
Adminisiration fecs 1,044 1.037
Cons..cancy lees 143 138
Audis tees 441 340
Aporuve cosis 48 196
Valuation tees 96 160
Deposiary fees Kl 71
Grants and donainns 65 26
Insurance 97 84
Marzeling 225 313
Reg..aory tees 21 23
S.ndry cxpenses 76 92
Total - T - - 5383 3909

Abortive costs rentesen: .egal and professiona. fees incurred in relation 1o e acguisition ol investment properties and
vroposed share 1ssucs (hat were congideraed bu: singequently apcred,

Cencra_ and adminigsirative expenses for ;he current year contain excephional professional cos:s of £18156.000 (7G22: £Ni) These
cosis periain o 1wo srategic proects the Company has osen evaluaing and conprise of £1294.000 {2022: Enli) assoclated with
‘he offer tor ine purchase of the entire share capital of the Company oy a subsidiary of CK Asset [Ho.dings Limiied (CEAJ and
£522.000 (2G22 FNIY) associated with a p.anned bond issue which was posiooned.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Continued

et es ooy bed By e Thospe s radsiory antt In e pesaeraion

Tne CGroup has oniained 'ne following services fromr t1e Growp's auditors and 1ncir agsociates:

Forthe Far the

year ended year ended
31 March 2023 31 Maich 2022
P O . - . - _ - Foao Euoo
Fees payable to the Group's auditors and their associates for auditing financial statements:
Andi of the Groups financial statements 358 295
Total fees payable for audit services 358 296
Fees payable to the Group's auditors and their associates for other services:
Audit reiated scrvices - review of the half year financial stiaiemaents 83 14
i - A7
Total fees payable to the Group's auditors and their associates 441 402
1 Inciudes £64,000 (2022 £18 000) costn relation o the previous yeatr audit
2 This amuun! was recogmised within excephonal legal and professional costs 1n the yeat onded 3t Mareh 2022
RSN S -
For the For the
year ended yedr ended
31Magch 2023 31 Match 2022
_ - B R ) o . ~ o R . L 7& . f:'[l(m
In:crest and dividends recerwved on iguidily funds 148 4
Ban< m.ores: rocoived - 3
Total 148 7
v Fayra P s
For the For Uie
yeatr ended year ended
21 March 2023 31 March 2022
_ ) - ) o ) L - . . ﬂ 000
Bans< charges 8 5]
Ineres: paid and payap.e on pank oorrowlngs and derivaiaves 12,151 8.907
Amorilgailon of .oan issde cos:s 1,869 1853
Cosis of carly repaymen: of debt 1271
Loan sacuriy fees 36 42
Total 15,335 10.608

D.nng he year tac 1ooyds Ban< oo £5C.00C.C80 revo.ving credit faci ity was repaid Costs of early repaymen: of deo! inc.ude
bread cosis and ine write off of e remaining cnamortised oan 185ue costs.

P T e

Ag a JK REIT. 11e Grouo s exerr o Irom corboralon tax on e nroliis and gains from 118 properiy INVesimen: oLsiness
provided it maars certain condiions ag sot o.u in tae UK REIT rega.auons. For the current year ended 31 Marcn 2623, the Groun
did no. nave any non-gua.ifying orofits and according y tnere 18 no lax charge i e yaar [fthere were any non-g.a.itying
orofiis and gains, 7ese wo.ld 08 s.o 0C "D Corporation ax.

Deferrad tax nas no: peen recognised on temoporary differences re.aing 1o tne propeliy renta. pusiness. No deferred (ax asso:
nas oeen recognised in rosnec: of the wnutiised residua. current year sses as ib s no: anticipaied na: suflicien: resid.al
orotie wil e gencrated mn che (L0 ure In e evens tnac Civras property porions was 1o de so.d al va.wation any gains
rea.ised on s.ch disposa ¢ may e gan ect o axation in e JK Ceneraly disposa s oy a REIT of assets 1e.d for the purpose

of a propery renta. n.siness sn1oo.d oe exemp: from JK corgoralon (ax. Tne Direciors do not peiieve (na: any groparies
wiinin the Cwlias property porfoio mee! the conditons for asseis no.d as par of tne provery renta nusiness 02INgG s.u0,8C 10
corporalion 1ax on disposa  According.y, if ine Civitas propery poerdolio was 10 oe so.d at valLanon. iae Direciors estimace ma:
N COrporatiaon :ax iaol 1y wo..d darisc on that sa &
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Continued

Following :ne compietion of the ofter, there is a ‘evel of Lncertainty that the Grouo wi. remain in the REIT requme
! g

Tu i U e

year ended vear ended
3lMarch 2023 31 March 2022
£'000 L7000

For the Tor the
yeat ended year ended
- o - - L 31Marchs.‘:!r;!§3 K3 Marchﬂ?r(]ljg
Group

Profit belore taxanon 25472 44754
UK corporation :ax rate 19% 19%
Theorencal 1ax at UK corporation tax rae 4,840 8.503

Elfecis of:
Changc in va.ue of exempl Invesimen: proparics (502) {2.351)
Fxemp: REIT income (6,019) {6.598)
Amo.nts not doductib.e for tax parposes 1,081 (230)
Jnuilised residsal current year tax losscs 600 S11s)
Total o T T -

Dot £2.877.0CC (2022 T1.268,0C0). ca.cu.a.ed asing the forrhcoming tax raze ol 25%, nas not peen recognised in
ised resid.a. current year losses as 17 is not anucipazed that soificient residual profits will be gencrated in

A deferred ax as
respec: of ineun
e fuiure

The siandard rasc of corporation tax s cLrrenty 19%. The standard rate of corporation tax increased o 25% with effect from
1 Apri. 2023,

REIT oxempt income includas property renial income nat is exemp: from UK Corgoration Tax in accordance witn Part 12 ol
Corporation Tax Act 2010,

DA Dasrrnimaegs oy stz o
Farnings per saare {"EPS™) amoun:s arc <a cu'ated oy dividing profi: for 1ne yvear alinouiabie 1o Ordinary eqaity noiders of the
Company oy the weighted average number of Ordinary snares in Issuc during he year

The calcalation ot nasic and diwled earnings ger snare is pased on the foliowing

For the For rhe

year ended year eixded

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

— . o o _ o o o _ £000 000
Calculation of earnings per share

Net profiz atmbusavle (o Crdinary snareno.ders (£'000) 25,472 44,754

Weighted average ne.mber of Ordinary shares (exciuding shares held in treas.ry) 608,552,681 £18.797.947

Earnings per share — basic and diluted 4.18p 7.23p
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Continued

U1 Byuwsetensis

Forthe For the

year ended year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
- o . . — L - . - R £on ET00
Dividend of 1.3875p tor tae 3 monins 1o 31 Marcn 2022
(135G0p 3 montas o 31 March 2021} 8,474 8,403
Dividend of 1425Cp for tne 3 menths to 3C June 2022
(13875p 3 months (0 30 Jane 2021) 8,703 8.637
Dividend of 1.4250p for tne 3 mon:ns "0 30 September 2022
{13875 3 monihs 1o 30 Scotemper 2021 8,641 8.555
Dividend of 142500 for the 2 montas ¢ 3l December 2022
(13875p 3 monis o 31 Decemper 2021) 8,641 8,498
Total 34459 34,093

On 9 May 2025, :ne Company anno.Jnced a dividend ol 1425 pence por snare in respect of the period 1lan.ary 2623 1o 31 March
2023 totaling £8.641.0CC Te dividend payment was made on 9 June 2023 1o sharenn.ders on the register as at 19 May 2023 The
financial sia:emen:s do not ref.sct nis dividend. The dividend was paid as a REIT propeny income dismrinubion CPIDY).

10 Pererty

For the Tor e

year ended year endéd

A1 March2023 31 March 2022

. i . - . _ . I __ =ooo . Eenn

RBa.ance a: beginning of year 968,756 915.589
Property acq.asiiions 543
Improvemean:s 1@ invesimaent proparties 4944
Lease incentives and ront siraight Jine ad us.men:s recognised 1264
Crange in tair vat.e 2,640
Valic advisced by Lnc propery valiors 978,147
Loss leasc incer s and ren: straign: ine assets (24,783)
Total 953,364

-~

Improvements 10 invesimen: propariies inc. Jdes capiia. expenditwre ncarred of £128 060 (2627 F12.0C0) in respect of cimae
change iniilatives.

During tne previows year, the Group acgaired a provery no ding company trom Her.eva Properies Limited whicn ne.d
asgels :0wa . ing £8.511.000 These are inc.uded within Propery Acqu.isiions in tne notc apove. Her.eva Froperies lumited is
a s.bsidiary of Specia ist Hea Thcare Operations Lirrited (SHO". Andrew Dawper and Tom Pidmore (notn direciors of tne
Invesimen: Adviser). ars 14.99% snareho.ders in SHO They are not direciors of SHO, and jave no operailona. ro.e intha:
nusiness SHO does no: mree: ine detiniiion of a related vary under [AS 24

Vacdainas..

In accordance wity "IAS AC Invesimen: Proper?y’. 1ne Inves: men? Dronery nas neen independen: y valued at tair va, .e oy JLL
an accrodized exierna, va. .61 wii recognised and re.evan: professiona (qaalifications and recen: experience of 1he location
and calegory of e invesimen: prooerny oeing va..ed. dowever e valialions are s LINmate responsiniy of ine Direciors

JLL va.wed e Civiias Socia. Housing PLC pronarty porifoho on tie vasis of each individua’ property and (ne theoreica. sa.e of
e properics whnou: e penefit of any corporae wravper a: £978.147.000 as a1 31 Marcn 2023 (3022: £358.755.000).

JLL nas orovided valiation services 1o tne Company witn regards 1o the broperties during me vear JLIL nas orovided addittona.
va_.alon services on e acquaigidon of invesimen: oroperiy oy ine Company d.nng ne year Tne Dircciors nave ens.red

shat JLL has aporopriate procedures n p.ace o ensure inere are no independence conflicis wiin tne services provided 1o ine
Carrparny. In re.ation 1o 1ae year ended 31 Maren 2023, 1he proporaen of 2he toza. fecs nayao.c ny the Comrpany 2 ILLs 0. tee
income was .©s3 1nan 5% and is merefore mimma. Addriona.y. 1LL nas a rolation no.lcy in v.aco waereoy e signaorias on
‘ne vataations rolatc alier seven yoars




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Continued

With the exception of the acquisizion deiatled in note 15.0. all corporate acg.isitions daring the year and the comparative year
have neen treated as asset purchases rather than business combinations necawse following review of the [FRS 3 concentralion
test. they are considered to be acquisitions of properiias rather than businesses (note 33).

The folowing ianle provides the fair value measuremen: nierarcny for investment property:

Quored prices n Sgnificant Significant

active markels observabte unobservabte

Total (Level 1) inputs (Level 2y inputs (Level 3)

. Fo0n 000 wooo #0040

Investment properties n_:easilraat fair vailue:'
31 March 23523 953,364 - - 853,364

31 March 2022 - - 345.237

There have peen No ‘ransiers netween Leve! 1 and Lovel 2 during any of the years. nor have thaere peen any ‘ransicrs octween
leve! 2 and Leve. 3 during any of tho years.

The va.uatons nave peen prepared in accordance with the RICS Valuation  Professional Standards (incorporaung ithe

Iniernaiional Va.uallon Standards) oy JLL, one of :ne leading professiona. tirms angagad in (a¢ social nousing s&clor.

As noted previowsly all of the Group's invesimen:s are repored as Leve. 3in accordance wiia [IFRS 13 where mipuLis are not

bascd on observan.e marxet data and ;he va.ue is nased dpon advice from relevan: knowledgeanie cxperns.

Tn this instance, the dezermination of (ne fair value of inves:meon: oroperty regalires an examination of tne specific merits of

cacn property thal are in turn considered pertinen: (o tne valuiation.

These inciade:

i) nereg..ated social housing scoior and demand for 1ne faci.ities ollered oy each 351 nroperty owned oy the Group:

i} e panic.iar sirycture of Tae Groups jransacions wniere vendors, a: thelr own expense. meet 1 malorty of ine
refurpishren: coss of eacn property and certain p.rchase ¢0s:s:

iii) derailed hinancia ana'ysis with discount raes s.pooring the carrying vaiue ol eaca oroperiy:

iv) 4 lu.. repairing and insuring ease with annua’ indexation pased on CPT or CPI+I%.

The folowing descriptions and definitions re.aung to va uanon izeanigues and g0y Lnooservas e iInpus made in determining
lair vaiues are as fol.ows

Vataatien
Fair vaiie is defined as the price tha: wouL d oe received to sel. an asse: or paid "o ranster a liablily in an orderly rransaciion
boween mare: particioan:s at the measuremen: date (ie an exit price)

IR SR NR TR TS PP PP Ts

Thae va.salion menodology used oy the vallers [ollows the income aporoacn This approacn considers 1he renta’ income

carreniy nayanie: the nex: Lolift due on tha! income on review: the lizedncod of 2 contiinuaion of tha: renia. income - wits

growth 1n accordance witn tne leases - over the remaining terms: and then a .ong-lerm reversion which considers the lizely

abl.izy of 1o praperties 10 conunue o genera.e ren: tarougn suapoorted housing occupaton, as distinct from a reversion o
acan: possessIon va o,

Risks are inveolved in ootn asscssing (e va e of the indexed tental income over the remaining termms of the leases and in a.so
predicing that INCofre wil. coniin.e neyond ne end of Tne exisiing .eases. Thig 1s a palanced | cdgmen:. which can propery
be refecicd in e exis yvie d applied to the final years income and 1n the overa ! relurn to a purchaser

Apuvrogpriate laxalion ca'cllations are adooted for every property oascd on i:8 va:ie and on :n¢ ass.mpiion of ihe sa.e ot
1e property asscis dirccty as opposed 1o ghares of a subsidiary company no.ding (ne propery and nave considered e
mndividial caaracierisiics of the prooer:ies

There are TwWo maln unooscrvan.c inp.ls (nat determine the fair va Le of the Group's invesurent proocrty:

i) Therate of 2% verannam nas peen ased for CPI over ine term of the subjoc: properties’ lcases in line with the Banc of
England’s .eng-term infiation arge's [or CPL I snould be noted tna: al: .eases benetit from ehther CPI or CPIi indexation.

ii) "he discountrate applied o the rena, llows.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Continued

Kay facrors in deiermining he disco.n: raes dappled inc.ade the regulated social nausing secior and demand for each SSIH
proverty owned by the Group. cos's of acguisition and refurnisnmen: of each property, ine anucipated future underlying cash
'ows for cach oroper:y, benchmarking ot each wnder.ying rent for cach properly (passing ren?). impac: of climate change. and
e fact tnat al. ol The propertdes wiliin the Group's ooritolio have the penetit of {1 repalring and insaring leases en'ered into
by an Approved Provider

As atthe paiance shoet date, 1ne lease lengths witin e Groan's porfoue ranged from an effeciive 14 years 1o 35 years (2022
15 years 10 36 years) with 4 weighied average unexpired .gase term of 215 years (2022: 22,1, Tho greater the length of the lcase,
then. a.l cirer metrics pelng eguas, Jhe greator the va:uc ol tne propaerty.

Sernanivitios of jpeasiresient of suapalioan winhb

EVETSNELTORE EEN

As s¢ o4 within sigrficant acconniing estimates at 31 anove. tne Groud's propeny investmenlt va.uaion is open 0 inheron:
uncertainues in the Inoputs tha: determine fair va.ue. Managemen: has re-considered the sensitivity ranges and widched them
for the current year as a result of macroeconomic wneertainty As a resull the iolowing senstivity ana.ysis has oeen preparad:

R R R T A S SA AR LI L

The average discoan: rate used hy e valuer n the Group's prooerty Portto io VaLation is 638% (2022 55%). [n sciting (ac
discoun: rates adopled in tne va.uation, the va..ers nave considered nmarket standard and anuopated retuns 1o set a
benchmars {or “he porifo.do as a who.o. They have then considered the various charactensiics of 1ne individua. proper:ies in
order 10 ad’ws Thosge rates for eacn property. JLL wi <eep yie ds, and nhercfore discount rates, ander reguar reviow.

The range ot discoun: rates wsed oy the valder in the Group's oroperty Portfo.io Va.uaion is from 4.6% 1o 1L7% (2022 4.5%

1 11.5%). Tnassessing 1ae range of discounis, Jhae valuer considers thoe ikey nat inltda. yield which woud oo sowgnt by t1e
investmeant marke: and o.uiids additiona discounis o refec added risk into fie discownt rae of ine term and. in some cages.
the discoun: rale for the reversion. For examp.e where .arger renia, growin 1s alowed durng he leasa an additiona; discoun:
1S pJdl.uinio the reversion necause of e greaterrisk ol a fall in e rent at ine end of 1he case.

e considerad where properties are in a progess ol being re-ourposed and promiame aro

Simti.arly additiona. disco.n:s ar
L cares asses are funded oy bacato-bac< lcases with care providers

conswdered where residenila

THe a0 o De.ow L
Va.i

LEITAISS 1o Caange o che va,.e of inves:men: properiies if tne discount rale and CPT wsod for the poridolio
tion ¢a.cu AlonE arc changoed:

TU% N +1 0% 10

diseount rate discount rale 10 3% 10 TP 0 5% 0 CP1
— . e . R o . £oon . £oog £ 000 - Eton
Increase/(decrease) in the IFRS fair value of investment properties at:
31 Maroen 2023 71,929 (62,507) 56,676 (52,583)
31 March 2022 - 73.955 {64.020) 58150 (33.813)
1 Lernag’s
T T o o o T N T B - 31 M;:;Zbi} 31 Mm;ct\ .1‘022
L _ - o o £000_ Dathiil
[\(:c]_.isr.l(“)n of sunsidiary Cdrr_{;—mmﬁ -
Acquaisrion costs -
Transter to nvesimen: Drogery -
3a.e proceeds -
Total ’ ) o - ' ) T ’ ) R e

During - year e Crowp onierad Into a ransaciion 10 acg.ire 1ne freenod properies operaed oy CPI Care Limned.
Joon ine acgadsition of tac comrpanics kor £13.559.C00 p..5 1Tansasion cosis (ne properiies were rransterred in:o olher growp
companes and e cormpany acquired, a.ong wit 17§ assoclaed onaranons. was s0.d 1o Invivo Corundam Bideo Lintited for
£Z.695.00C. Envivo Cor.nd.m Bidco Limred is a s.ubsidiary ol Specians: Healtheare Opoeranons Limited CSTIGH. Andrew Dawsoor
and Tom Pridirmore (bon ditceors of tne Invesiment Adviser). are 14.99% snarcho ders in SHO Thcy are no: directors of SHO.
and nave no cpcranena. ro.e. SHC does no meoe: (ne definiion of a related pary wnder TAS 24




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Continued

Amounts falling- due in less than ;m Vyear

Trade recewvan.es

Less provision [or impairmen: of rade rcceivao.cs
Accrued income

Prepayments and cther receivab.es
Total

31 March 2023

L. BUUU

6,676

(459)
3,313
1,730

11260

31 March 2022
EU

4960
239
4982
3162
12865

Prepaymen:s and other receivabie amounts incude prepaid iega!l and professional fees of ENil (2C272, £34.000) that have been
incurred in conneation with acqaisinons ve: o pe compieted and £286.000 (2022: £1.046.000) In respect of ongoing works on

the property por:clio
Accr.ed income reiates main.y 1o ren. aceried for ne year oul not yet demandead.

Amounts fallixig due after mare thanron;year

Straightline ad, wsiments
Leasc incentives
Total

The aged analysis of radce reccivap.es was as fo lows:

D&&rs pést dlie
currens

< 30 days
30-50 days
> 50 days

Debtors past due

Less provision for impairmans
Total

The Dircctors consider e far va e of recewvables eqea.s Thelr carrying amodnt
Olner categories wiinin rade and other receivables do not inc.ude impaired asses,
Thae provision for impairnent movenrent was as follows

Ba.ance a! peginning of year

[rrpawrmrent provigion made
Amount recovered
Anoants writien off

Balance at end of yearr

31 Maich 2023

31 March 2023
£000

2,639
22.144

24,783

F1March 2022

£000
2053
21455
23.519

A1 March o2z

E'UH!EL E-UU&
2,518 1777
862 355
275 105
302 2723
6,676 4980
(459) 239
6217 4721
For the N For the
STt e 31 Maren 3002
£'000 _ 7E'U007
239 256
306 109
67 (126)
{19)
459 239
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Continued

PE Mo g Can D SR e ey

31March 2023 31 March 2022
£000 _£oun

Cash held by ol 64 376
Lig.idity funds 15,636 10.489
Cas held at bang 16.939 38.110
Unré_s-;l_:;:md c:asl; ami_c_ash oqaiva.cn:s o T o - ) 75263? o 48.975 ;
Restricted casi 2.949_ 4352

Total 35588 55337

Liquidity funds refer 1o meney placed in moeney marger funds. These arc hignoy liqaid funds wity accessibiaty witnin 24 hours
and sobject o insignifican: nskc of changes in value.

Cash ne.d py solicitors 18 money ae'd in escrow for cxpenges axpeoied 10 be incurred i reigion © invesimen: properdes
pending completion These funds arg avai.ao.e immediaiely on demand

Resineied cash represenis amo.nis held for speciflic copmitments, .enani deposits and retention money hed inre.ation
o deferred paymen’s sue ect w0 acnievomeant of certain condiliens. otner retenuons and cash segregated (o tund repair.
mainienance and Mmprovemen: wordg 1o oring he oroperties .o 1o satislaciory standards for the Group and e lenanis

ERIE R RS AN K (R S PR SR

) --;7 T —; ’ T . T T ) 31 March -ZLMZ

L i B

Deterred income ) - ' o ' T 860

cquislion costs acerucd 600 95G
Finance coss 2,688 184G '

Dividend witnho.ding ax payao.c 940 1.057
Accruas and otner creditory 773 2202 ‘
Tenant deposiis _ 2538 2373 ‘

Tot_aL o — B T o - ) ) ' ) . 71300 7_;7;192

Acq.tsition cosis acoriaed a'so inc wde monies retained az tae point of acquisition 1o ba paid at a later dae oalang F383.000
(2022: £.262.00C0).

* Comparanves have been restated 1o correct the analysis ol E1.896 000 ol wnant deposiis wlich had previously been included I acquisimion cosls aceriecd '

AN Banh aud oo Do oy

Ban< porrowings are sec.red oy charges over individ.a. invesimen: grooerics neld by cernain assel-hwoiding suosidiaries. The
vanks 4 80 no.d charges over 11c shares of ceriain gungidianes and any intermediary no.ding companies ot tnose subsidiaries.
Any assoclaicd foes in arranging “he nang oorrowings wnamortised as at e year end are olfse! agains' amoJnis drawn on
e Iaci,rlcs as S-ﬂOWﬂ mnae lan.e VDCAO‘\N'

B o ) i T T korme For the
year ended yeap ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
o - - R - . - . _ Fopo _ £000
Ban< oorrowings drawn a: s.ar. of year 357.050 357 G5C
Ban« oorrowings advanced 70,875
S Ban< borrowings repaid (60,000)
s = Ban< porrowings drawn a: end of year 367,925 357.050
Z & T N T - T - — - T - - - P -
e Unamor:iscd ¢osts at siar of yoar (5,000) 119303}
== . .
R Less: loan 1ss.ae Cos's incarred (3,544) 11723)
== Add: Loan igsuc costs antoriksed apon repdaynent Hf Dan< .oan 665 -
% Z Add. oanis.e oosis amarisation 1,369 1.653
£x Jnamrornged cosis a1 end of year (6,010) (5.GC0)
S At end of year 361,915 352050

-
[=]
[=]



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Continued

Loan Balance?
31 March 2023

Loan Balance®
31 March 2022

. s i - i . £'000 . 7%
ﬁatu;;ty o?bank barrowings o
Reopavapic within 1 year - -
Repavanle neiween 1 1o 2 years 59,600 158.745
Repayaple between 2 10 5 years 302,315 59.365
Repavyapie after 5 years - 133939
Total S - T 361,915 352,050

Loan Frincipal
31 March 2023
£000

Loan Puncipal
31 March 2022
£00

60,000 160.000
307.925 60.C00

- 137.050
367,925 357.050

1 Loan balance net ol unamortsed costs

“he Group nas ocon party :o ne tolowing loan facllity agreemaents in the year:

loan Principal

— . Teelny - ___fwee Lxpuy Date _ Interest rate
Summary of Borrowings ’

Scottish Widows Limited 10-year facility Term .can 52.500 C2/M/2627 29935% fixed
[ oyds Bank plc Revolving credit facitity - SONIA +167%
Deusche Banxs AG Loan Notes 70,875 D3/02/2C28 5.69% hixed
[I3BC Banx n.c Revolving credit facility 1G0.000 28/11/20725 SONTA + 2.15%
INaiona. Wesiminster Bank Pl 3-year laciity Rovo.ving crecdi: faci.ity 6C.000 14/08/2024 SONTA + 2.00%"
M&G Investment Management Linuted 7-year faciily Term loan 84.550 a1/C2/2028 31E7% frxed

367,925

Borrowings are secured on investment properties to the value:

Jcoulsn Widows Limited 1C-year tacility orincipal £52,500.000

Desche Banx AG Toan Noles orincipal £70.875.000

T1SBC Bang plc facury princigal F160.000.000

Nationa. Westminster Bank Plc 5-year lacLiny princpa: £60.000.060

M&G Investment Management Lirmted 7-year faciiy orincipa. £84.550000

AL 31 March 2023, Tae Group is in corrpliance with all covenans

Thae covenanis in place under Tne five agreemens are sumirarised in ne lab.e beow

Histoncal and projected interest cover
Loan:

A least 325%

AT east 175%

A leas: 250%

Al edy: 250%

AT least 250%

Sconish Widows Limied 10-year facility
Deutscne Bank AG Loan Noes

HSBC Bank pleo facihty

Nationa. Westiminster Bank Plc 5-vear laciity

M&C Invesimen: Managoment Limited 7-year facnity

1 Interest rate caps have been purchased o cap interest costs on this facility as per details in notes 21 0 and ns
2 Txed by way of an interest rate swap as detatled 1n note 210

31March 2023 31 March 2022

. £70040

173,510 173.777
168.610 -
231116 222.745
137,827 135.330
230,279 235.187

Loan to Value Ratio

Mvis: no: exceed ACH
Mus: no: exceed 507
Mgt not cxeced 50%
Mus: no: excead 30
Mg no exceed 55%

=
e
3
2
=
=
3
Z
=
ﬁ
o]
2
Z
A
»
=

ld DNISNOH Y 1DOS SVYLIALD

101



PORT AND ACCOUNTS 20243

CIVITAS SOCIAL HOUSTNG PLUC

-
o
N

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Continued

A0 Tuteresy rare denafives

The Gro.p has entered in an intcrest rate swap witn Na:West Marxets in order 1o mitigate the risk of changes in increst rates
on its ‘oan win National Wesiming:er Bank F.o under waicn £6C milion is currenuy drawn, The swap nas a notional va.ue of
FA0.00C.000 and fixes intercs: ai 2.60% (inc.uding “he 2% margin on e bank loan).

Dunng the year. the Croup has entered in.o (nIcc new IniCres. ratc cap arrangemen's for a total cost of £8,641.000

An interes: rale cap hai caoped e EBA.0GO.000 Lioyds Bang pic facility a: 3.92% {including the 157% margin on e joan
faci.ity) for the peniod from 18 Scpiomber 20272 0 20 Febriary 2023 This arrangemen: was sold wpon the repaymeaent of the loan
with proceeds of E17.000.

An interes: rate cap tha: capped (he SONIA interest rate on e £160.0C60,50C HSBC Bank ple facliity ai 2.60% for w1e period from
21 Bentemper 2022 10 17 April 2023

Aninterest raie cap iransaclion o miugate e risg of tnc SONIA interes: rac cxceeding 2.458% p.a. on the principal of
£1C0.000,000 1ISRC Bank ple faciiity for the penod from 17 Aorl 2023 1o 28 Noverrber 2025 Thisg ingiramen: ¢overs the remaining
erm of ine revoiving credit taclity with HSBC Bank p.c and its extension (o November 2025

Forthe For the

yeat ended year ended
31 Maich 2023 Al March 2022
o . o _ . - o o o o o0 V‘FEUUU
Interest rate derivative assets/(liabilities)
At start of year 2131 (544
Inerest rate cap promians paid 8,841 -
Disposa: proceeds (17}
Realised .oss on disnosda. (187)
en fair val.e dari (2.639) 3 575
At end of year 8,129 72131
Tne lao.e be.ow S10ows Tne fair value measuren an: nierarany {or interest derivalives,
QuOke Prices i Stgnificant Signifieant
Active Marketws OQbservable  Unobservable
(Level ) Inpuls (Level 2) Inpuls (Level 3)
_ . o o - . . o L _ 2000 iﬂﬂ . £ ﬂ(JVU
31 Maren 20723 - 8,129 -
31 Marcn 2022 - 2131

Tne fair vaiae of Group's interes: rate derivatives is recorded 1 e Groap Siatemen: of Financial Posimon and is deernuined
DYy TNC respeciuve coLanlerparies The couniarnaries Wse a numoer of assumpiions in delermining ne fair va'.es incliding
cslimations over future interes: rates and fuiure casn f[ows wsing observaopic yvied curves The fair va Le reprc 18 e noe
presen: va.ue of e difference getween the cash f.ows produced oy the contracied rate and e va.casion rale This va..ation
recanigqae fals witnn Leve, 2 of 1ne fair val.e nierarchy as defined oy [FRS 13.

Thaere Rave peen noiransgfers noiween Love 1and Love. 2 dunng any of the periods nor nave there teen any transicrs

neiween Leve 2 and Leve. 3 dunng any of (he nperiods,

GShars ot

Saare capita. represcnis (ne nomina va..e of considerazion receoivaed oy tne Contpany for the isswe of Crdinary shares.

For the tol the year

year ended ended
31 March 2023 31 Mdrch 2022
B - - B - . o e £ 000
Share capital
Al peginning and cnd of year 6,225

Number of shares issued and fully paid Ordinary shares of £0.01 each

A oeginning and end of year 62‘2.%@.380 62;461.38@




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Continued

Draring The yeoar. she Company purchased 8,056.000 Ordinary shares 1o oe he.d in treasury at a cost of £4.651.0C0 (31 Maran 2022
10.025.000 Ordinary shares for £9,259,000).

D.itlng .ne previous year. the Company reissued 563,000 Crdinary snares held in reasury for £647.00C The cosi of purchasing
~hese shares into reas.ry of £F484.0C0 has been crediied (o Te capital reduction regerve with the gain credited (o the Share
premiam reserve.

A7 31 March 2023, :ne Company ne.d 16,075,003 (31 Marcn 2022 10.025.000) Ordinary shares in tfreasury The shares wil conunue
0 ne held in treasury uni either reissued or canaellad.

Az 31 March 2023, sne numeoer of Crdinary sharcs wsed (o calcilate the not asse: value per sharce is 606.386.38C (31 March 2022:
612,456.580) wnich exclades the snares hed in reasury.

EA D BB [ T e e
Tae snare premium reserve represents the amoanis suoscribed for Ordinary share capita. in excess of nominal va. e ioss
associaied issue coss of the subscripiions

For the Far the

year ended year ended

31 March 2023 31 Maich 2022

~ s . o o o 775'(}[][] iﬂ

A beginning ot year 292,626 297453
Premiam arising on shares reissced from treasury - 153

Atend of year i __ E_ZJIGZG

For moverrenis in (ne year. p.ease see deials in noe 22.0.

R e R Sl T L L

The capltal reduction reserve is a digiribuwanie reserve 1o winen the va..e of the cancerled snare aromrium was transterred,
Pursaant o Aricie 3 of The Companies (Reduction of Share Capitaly Grder 2008, tac balance he.d 1n ine capiia. reduciion
reserve is to oe reazed for the purposes of Par 23 of the Companies Ac: 2005 as a rea ised proli and crefore availane for
distrib ation in accordanae wiih section 830 of the Companies Act. The Company has uscd this reserve lor the costs of ouying
pack shares 1o pe ac.d in rreasary and payment of dividends

[Forthel For the

- yeat ended

3 MAATC2025F 31 March 2022

- — o . . L - — £'aa0
Al peginning of year 331140
Shaares reissued from Teasary 484
Snares powghit back Inio rreas.ary {9.259)

55

At end of year
For movemenis In the year, pucase see detalis in note 22.C.

o TE ety vy e s

This reserve represen:s (ne profics and .osses of the Groap.

For the For the

year ended year ended

I March 2023 31 March 22

. . e - o e _E‘UL!(}_ oo
At beginning of year 54,331 43670
Proti: for the year 25,472 44,754

Dividends pad (34,459) (34&932
Atend of year 45,344 54331
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Continued

EH 0 e dssel vaiae

Basic NAV per share 1s calcu.ated py dividing net assets In the Consclidated Statement of Financial Posiion atributable o
Ordinary equity ho.ders of the parent by [ne namber of Ordinary snares o.uistanding a: ine and of the year,

Ne: assel va ues have been ca.cu.aed as [olows:

Netassers (£006)
Number of Ordinary shares in issue at end of year
Komber ol Ordinary shares held in reasury

Number of Ordina}’y shares excludipg treasux;y shares -held byihe gomp_any

NAV per share fgﬁsic and di.lutedm

L R R R T N R S LS P S EAFITE IR R IR S PRL DAY SR R PRI £

AT br;ginm'ng of yé;r
Cash flows from financing activities

Loan 1ssJ¢ costs paid

Iniercs: rae denvaiive premriams paid

Proceeds from the salc of Tnieres: rate denvaiives
Banz borrowings advanced

Banx< norrowings repaid

Non cash movements

Loan issue fces acerued

Amorusaton of loan 1ssue cos:s

Unamorised [oan arrangamen: fees writen ofl
Change in fair vaize of interes: rae denva‘ives

At end of year -

AL neginning of year
Cash flows from financing activities
Loan draw down

Non cash movements

Loan iss.e fecs pavao.e

Amorisation of .can iss.e coss

Cnange in fair va..¢ of incres: rate derivatlves
At end of year

interest rate
derivarives
£'000_

(2,131}

{8,841
17

2,826

Interestrale
dertvarnves
£ 0on

544

{2.675)

(7131}

3t March 2023

Bank
borrawings
£ood

332,120

352,050

1 March 2022

661,909 575547
622461380 522461380
(16,075,000) (10,025.000)

| 606386380 512436380
o o l‘(;l the

borcowngs ¥ Marcn 2653
£00U £000
352,050  349.919
(3148)  (3.148)
- (884D

- 17
70.875 70875
(60.000) (60,000}
(396) (396)
1.869 1869
665 665

- 2.826

 (8129) 361915 353786

For the

year ended
31 March 2022
000

82
1.653

: 12.873)

2348.519



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Continued

£H O uheratang e e
The Group is party 10 a number of operating .cascs on ils investmeni properties with Approved Providers. The futare niinimam
lease paymenss under non-cancellable operating leases receivabie hy the Grosp are as foows:

3l Match 20235 31 March 2022

£000 £000
Amouns rccciv(a-éic?__ T - - T T
< 1year 57,262 53.821
1-2 years 57,352 53.879
2-5 years 172.536 151,340
= 3 ycars 958,286 328210

Atend of year

Leasces are direct- 't agreemesnis with Approved Providers for a term between 20-4C years with indaxad linded ann.a. ren:
reviews AL curren: .cascs are ful repainng and inguring leascs (ne enants are ‘nerefore oplged (o repair. mainiain and
renew |ne propear:ies pack (o :hc origina. conditions.

Tae following ablc gives deiais ol percenage of annual renial income per Approved Frovider:

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
% %

B

m‘r{land Homeﬁ;‘:]als and Q:;al]‘:as?{nusmg 24.97 4.4
Falcon Housing Association CIC 19.1 187
Bospoxe 34000Tve Tenancies 12.5 12.6
Inc ssion Housing CIC 9.4 93
Wesimoreiand Suoporied Housing Limied 5.6 5.9
Encirc.e Housing Limized 5.2 5.9
Trinity Housing Association Limited 5.2 5.1
Pivana. FTousing Associaion 4.0 3.8
Chrysa. s Supporied Asscciation Limited 3.7 3.6
New Walk Property Managemen: CIC 2.7 28
Harnour Lign: Assisted Living CIC 23 3.0
My Space Houasing Soluiions 13 13
Elysium Healthcare Limied 11

TKE Szonorned Housing Tamited 1.0 11
Hi da e Housing Association Limited 1.0 1.C
Windrush Alllance UK CIC a.7 G7
Lilly Rose Suppored Housing 0.2 c1
Blue Square Residenna. Lid 0.1 o1
;I'oléll R B - T T ‘1063 o 10C.C

Aucxand Home Soiutions and Quatiias Housmg are poin members of the Social Housing Family CIC and s.0jeCt 10 Comn on

control Their annal rent iigures nave therefore neen aggregated in the table above. The percentage reiating (o Adc<iand

Ilomre So..cions and Qua.izas Housing was 16.5% and 8 4% (2022-16 3% and 8.1%) rospeciively. Tne annua. rent at 31 Marcn 2023 tor
ok and Home Solutions and Gua itas Housing was £9,2566,00C and £4.730.000 (2022 £8.679.000 and £4.334.000) respective.y

The Group is also party 1o a number of operating ‘eascs on its 'ong easenoc.d properiies The gro.nd rent paymen:
commurents under these operating ieases are negiigib'e so the fuitire minim . lease paymenis .under [nese ‘eases have nol
been discinsed in tnese financia. statements.

1245436 1197830
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Continued

A9 Danaiing parties

As at 31 March 2073, there is no dllimate contro..ing pary.

T Robatedr BTy b :
Alist of all sunsidiary undertaxings including tae address of the registered office is detailed in note 8.0 o the Conpany
accoun:g on pages 115 © 118,

[SEEFTREEN

3ir % .

Tae Direciors are rem anerased tor their services at s.acn rate as the Directors shall from time o nme determine The aggregae
remuneraion and penefits in kind of the Direciors of the Company {in eacn case, soley In their capaciiy as sucn) in respect of
the year ended 31 March 2023 payap.e our of tne assets of :he Company is no! expectad o exceed £250.000

RN

Fees of £194.C0C {2027 F190G,000) ware incurred and paid o the Directors

Ag at 31 March 2023 and 2022, “he Directors hed the fol owing namoer of shares

31March 2023 31 Match 2022

ordinary Qrdinary
- o ~ o o shares _ shates
Director T T
Michaei Wrone. Chnairman 200,000 120598
Alastair Mogs Diroeior 11,766 11.766
Adson Hadden Director 31,937
Caroline Guiver Audit and Managemen: Engagemen: Commitien Chalr 58.832 58832
Petcr Baxter Direcior 82,065 82,045

The Inves:men: Adviser aas revicwed Its remaneration poucies and procedures to ensare incentives are aligned with te
redqairements of AIFMD. It inc.udes measeres (o avold conflic:s of interes: such as providing s.alf wimn a hxed moniny

sa.ary and determining discredionary paymen:s by e performance of the Invesimen: Advisar 48 a wao'e and not .inxed

1o any one AlF in particu.ar The Invesron: Adviser and 175 s:atl recoive no rem. neration mrowgn orofit share. carried

INtErest, co-INMVes mern: Or oiler scnemes rajaed to tne Company's oerformance

REIPUE B R T e N S T TR LSRR Eb ST R

On 1 Novembper 2018, Clvitas Investment Managemen: Limited (CIM") was appoinied as (ne Invesimen: Adviser of thao Company.
lis address is shiown on page 131 10 e Renors

Feos of £6.206.000 (2022, 75.132.00C) were Inc.irred and pald .o CIM. In addinon £11.00C (2C22: fni) disborsements were paid in
ne year

Tne Investnien: Adviger agreod to conirin.ie £nil (2022: FICC.G00) towands ega and professiona. toes incurred. Tails amoant
was olise: agains! lega. and profcssiona. fees in note 90

Ag a3l Maren 2023, a net amoun: of £48.000 {2022- F151.000) wasg dug Irom CIM. wailca has einee pean recoived.

Az a3l Marcna 2623, CIM neald 167.6541 (2022: 56.000) Ordinary shares 1n 1ne Company
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ELEEE S .
The Croud's iy, Jdietd! dgsed and [aoinies are mose 1nas anss direrly trom its onerations rrade and o
receivab es. rade and ¢iher payaoles and cash and cash equivaients. Tne Group's other principa. financial liabilitics are nang
horrowings. The main purpose of wnich s o finance the acquisilion and developmen: of the Group's Invesunen: property
porifolio. and interest rate derivatives as detalled in notes 20.0 and 21.0.

ar

Al financial llabi tties are meas.red at amorised cost. except inierest rate denvaiives. which are measarad at fair valae. Al
financial insiruments were degignated in their current categories apon initla. recognizion.

Sc:out below is a companson oy class of (ne carrying amoun:s and (air va.ue of the Group’s financial insiramen:s t
carried in tac financial stalements:

i1 March 2023 31 March 2023 31 March _znza 31 Maich .ZUZZ

£000 £000 £ooo £0a0

Financial assets B S - T 7 -

[1izeres: rate derivasives 8,129 8,129 2131 213

Trade and other recervanies 34,949 34,949 315380 34380

Cash and cash equivaen's 35,588 35,588 53337 53,337
Financial liabilities

Trade and oincr payan.es: 7.599 7,599 8632 8.632

}mm)wings 361,915 350,179 __'".?,SC _ __349,4_06

1 Excludes prepayments
2 Exchides deferred income and dividend withholding 1ax payable

The Groap nas five bank 0ans as detailed in note 20.0. The fair value ot the fixed raic Joan is determined by comparing (he
discounted future casn Hows

Faveish iad IS LA e, it

The Group is cxposcd 1o Imare; risg, n:cres: rae ris<, credit ns< and Jq.idity risg In the curren: and tutare years
Dirsctors oversees e managerent of “hese risks. The Board ol Direciors reviews and agrees policies for managing eacn of
thesge rses thd! are summansced pe,ow.

0 Board of

3¢ B

The Gro.p's activiies wil exoose it primari'y (0 11e marze: risks associazed with changes in property va.ues and changes in
E 3! £ ¥ 1 K

ILNIErQst rates.

Yot o - . o .
ey e I T P

[nvestment in property is subject o varying degress of ris<. Some [aciors that affect the value of ine Investment in properiy
inc.ade

e changes in ‘he genera. ecochomic clinate;

e competion lor avai.ab'e Droperies:

L] opsolescence: and

e governmeantregulatons, inciuding planning. environmen:al and tax laws,

Variations in the above [actors an affect the valiazion of asse:s neid py the Gro.p and as a resul: can inl.uence he financia.
performance of the Group.

Book value Fair value Book value Fau value

k]
i
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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The Gro.p hoids positions in two AAA rated Jgudity funds natinvest in a diversified range of government and
non-goveImment monay rarket sec.rilies, which are subject 1o varying degrees of ris<. Some factors that affect the value of
the Jiquidity tunds inc.ude:

e he periormance of the underying governmen: and non-governmen, money marel secuniies: and
® inierestraies.

Variations in :ne apove lacors can affect the va.wazion of asse's held oy the Croup and as a result can influence the linancial
performance of the Grouo.

[ntersst rate ris< s e risk thas ine tair value or future casnh fows of a financial insir.ment wil . uctuate because of cnangas in
mar<e: ifliorast raes,

AL 31 March 2023 all long-lerm borrowings are 21:n¢r a: hixed rate or have an Increst rae ¢ap or iNteres: rate swapy in place
which has mitigaled the nisk of rising interest raze. Interes: rate dorivative insiruments are 11 piace o (ne ioan matdarity date on
tne varlan.e rale loans,

The :able be.ow snows ne pank ioans, dervative insiruments and inleres: ra'es:

Mdaxunum

Loan Prncipal Denvalive INStrument 1NICTCst rate
Summary of Borrowings £000 Lxplty Date Interestrate mplace  payable
Smw V\fid()r\/’\;;[.lm}.led 1G-year [a(,jl.i:y o 52,500 C2/1/2027 299%5% lixed 2.99%
Dosche Ban< AG 70.875  (3/CA/2028 5.69% fixed 5.68¥
H3BC Ban< pic 100,000 28/11/2G°5  SONIA + 218%  Tnlerest rate cay 475%
Nationa. Wesimrinster Ban« Pie 3-year laciiity 60.000 14/G8/2C024  SONTA + 2.00% Tioeres: rate swagp 250%
M&G Inves:men: Mgemen: Limited 7-ycar faciiizy 84,550 24/02/@8_ 3137% tixed . _314%

367.925

1 Maxunum lhlerest rafe Teduces 1o 4 b% from 18 Apnl 2023

oan faci ives, 10 ensare That tae

The exposure of e Growp 1o variapie raes of intores: is considered cpon drawing of any now
Giroup’s exposare Lo nieres: rate fiuoiwaiions iy within acceniab.o evels,

The Inves:iment Adviser moniiors the Gro.p's expos.re 1o any changces in mMiercst rate on an ongoIng oasts. with the Beard
wodated on a quarery pasis of [he carren: axpos.re of ine Group's .oan faciities,

As a: 31 March 2023, 1 interas? rates had been 105 hasis points aigner/flower! witn a. oaer varian es ne'd consans the i pac:
on profilg afier taxanon for ne year wouad be as be:ow. Tone Investiren: Adviser anicipales these (eve:s are reasonaoy
possio.e pascd on the observation of current arxe: condillons tha! inierest ratas would no: fuctuaie more than 1%,

T T - T T iimarchzozs 31 Maren 2z

. o R . R . L . . & . £0on0
Increase/(decrease) in profits due to interest rates

1C0 pasis poln:s ngaer 256 (10as)

[CC nasis poinis ower (210) 1572

Tac average cifoclive Intcres: rates of financia. insiroments at 31 Maran 2023 and 2022 were as toows:

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

k] %
Ban< porrowings - fixed rac 2.65 234
Banx porrowings variaplc ra.e- 607 223
Casn and cash equiva.enis 0.82 ok

1 Vanablea rate borrowings are subj=ct to o maximun (nterest tdte of 4 /5% due 1o annlerest rate cap The maximum interast rate reduces 10 4 6% [rom 18 Apnl 202%



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Credii ris< i$ the risk that a counierpany will not meet 15 op.gatons under a tinancial iInS$ITUmMent or CUsICMEer COnirac,
leading o a linancial 288 The Group is exoosed 10 crodit ricks fromr ootn its icasing activinea and linanding activies.
e Lding deposits with hanks and financia. instituiions.

Deblors and accried income represent rent duc or aceracd. Thnese amounts due are diversilied belween a number of diffcrent
Approved Providers of differing financia. strength. see note 28.C for detai s of tne different counterpariies. None of e
Approved Providers have a credit rating, however, tne diversified nature ol tnis asse: supports the credit qaality

The Group has policles in p.ace (o chsure that renia. contracis arc ensered into on.y wit lessees with an appropriate credit
and opecrationa. history. and limis exposure 1o any one enant. The credi risk is considered o be furtner reduced as the
source of the rents received by 1ne Croup is witimately orovidad by e Government, oy way of nousing benefit and care
provision, via a diverse range of .oca. a.ithorities.

For detalis of provisions for impairmen: picase refer ;o note 170,
A S S TS U L L I I KPS [ e S T S T S SR PETL S
One of the principal credis risks of the Groap wiil arise wilh the panxs and financia! institutions. The Board ot Direclors nelleves
that the credis rise on short-lerm deposite and corrent accoun: cas) ba.ances is mited onecavge the cosnerparies are bangs
considered o be of good credit q.ality In e case of cash deposits neld with .awyers. 1ne credit risk is imited pecause 1ne
cash is hcld py the lawyers within Cien: acco.ints al nan<s witna high credit quality.

The credi: ratings for banks wacre ba.ances are neld oy e Group arc as lo".ows’

Lloyds Bank pic A4 fFl
IISBC Bang .o AM-FF14
RB3 Inernationa: Lintited ASFT

Na:lona. Wes:minsier Bank p.c A fFL

Raungs advised oy Filen
No balances are held with Deutsche Bank AG

S (RS A
Thae Group manages its ug.idiy and funding ns<s oy considering cash Cow forecas:s and ensuring sufficicn: cash palances
are held wiihim the Growp (o mee: fuiure needs Pruden: ligquidity risk managemen: implies main:aining suificient cash and
markectlaole securities, the availabiity of financing inro.gn appropriate and adeqguate credi: lines, and (ne ablitty of cusomers
o sele opligazions within norma’ Térms of credit. The Group ens.res, ‘nrougn forecasiing of capita. requiraments, that
adeqaate cash is avai.able.

Tne folowing table details the Croup's maiurity profilc in respect of it inancia. instrurren: uabllizies oascd on contraciual
undiscounted paymenis

On demand <1 yecar 15 years » Byears Toral

_ _ 5000 £000 Lfl i £'non ~ £000

3t March 2023 o o S -
“rade and other payao.cs 7.599 - - - 7.599
Banx borrowings - 14,482 407,770 - 422,252
e - 7599 14482 407770 - 429,851
31 March 2022
Trade and oiher payvab.es 86372 - 8,332
Bang norrowings - 9,330 245974 144 562 299912

o - T 8,532 9336 245074 144502 408544

Tne profi @ above saows e matiury profiie a: 31 March 2023 and inc wded wilhin Tac contracied paymen:s is 154.327.000
(2022: £42.852.000) of ‘ean interes: payap. e Jp 10 the poin: ol mai.rity.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
Continued

S8R AT Coraniiaed
AT 31 Maren 2023, :he Company had tunds committed tota_ing £Ni. (2022 £92.000 concerning capita expenditure for a property
in Surrey).

$3 4 Fasr Bobasies ahyeet o

LERRUFES iae PR AN

On 9 May 2023, the Corrpany announced a dividend of 1425 pence per snare in respact of the period 1January 2023 o
31 March 2623 1ota.ling £8,641.000. The dividend paymen: was made on 9 June 2025 1o snareholders on 1nc regisier as
a: 19 May 2023 The financial statemen:s do not reflact tnig dividend. The dividend was paid as a RRIT property incormre
distnbution CPIDY).

Eariatyessics

On 1 December 2022, 1ae Comoeany signed a faciaty with an insuteiiona! lender Sunseqeent (o This, on 21 June 2023, the
Company received credit approved terms tor an additional 761 C million fixed tacility nased on a 3-ycar SONIA rate at 1n¢
date ol graw down 1195bps margin with a matdrity date of 3 Augus: 2026 The cvential drawdown on tne taziity 18 s.ojeet to
cerain slandard closing conditions

TEL s Y tiyes s

L EER PRI R CUNS PATET T EPRUPRIE JPEN
On 9 May 2023 an announcement was made 10 the marke: tor an all-casn offer ol Civitas Social Housing PLC (Civitas) from
Wei.ness Jniy Limiled. a wno.ly owned indirec: subsidiary of CKA Asset Ho.dings Timited {CKA}) The offer ol 80 pence

ver sharc receivead values e endre issued share capital (exciuding rreasury shares) of CSH at approximate.y £4185 milion
This represen:s a 44 4% premiur o the snare price of 554 pence per share on 5 May 2023 {(1ne ast rading day prior (o
announcemen: of tnc offer). and 258.7% discoLn: 10 31 Marcn 2023 NAV of 109160 This provides sharehoiders inc opporiinity (o
cxitinfu ' and in cash a: a significan: premi.m o (ne current share price The offer wil pe imp crrented by way of a taceover
offer witnin the meaning of Par: 28 ol the Companies A

Yieoaan

On 22 May 2023, e Offer Documen: was made avai.aoie Tae ofler pecame anconditiona. on 23 June 2673, Payment of
songideraion dse 1o snarenoiders wao nave stLomizied vaid acceplances wil be made no iater than 14 ca'endar days

after the dato tne Ofter pecomes or is dac.ared Lnconditiona . onan relation o valid acceplances received allar sucn darte,
within 14 ca.endar days of receip: of That accepiance. According 10 the Cller Documenc, it is intended that Civitas Invesimen:
Management Limized (CIM ) i1s maintained as (ne Invesiment Adviser to Civitas so tnat the day-io-day nranagemcn: of

e Civizas porfolo wit continue aninterrapoted, and Civiias ne re-regisiered as a private imied company a5 sO0n 4s
practicab’c fodowing tne cance.alion ol 1ne histing and irading of Civitas snares. Al the na.ance shieet date. CKA. as an indirec:
investor in CIM, was not a re_ated pany o :ne Group as per [AS 24. On 23 June 2023 wnen the offer pecame unconditional.

CKA subseguenty pocame (ns coimate contro.ning pary of the Corpany. and a re.ated pary wnder TAS 24




Company Statement of Financial Position
As at 31 March 2023

3lMarch 2023 31 Maich 2022
Note ED00 E000

Asgets
Fixed assets
Invesurent in subsidiaries ) 7.0 794,733 792,284

Current assets

Trade and otacr reccivaoies 9.0 2,599 - 4310
Cash and ¢asn equiva.en's 100 26,193 23.438
o T - - 28792 27.748
Total assets T - o 823525 821032
Liabilities
Creditors — amounts falling due within one year
Trade and o:her payaoies 1.0 (318.414) {274.020)
- ' T T o - @il?)i {274.020)
Total liabilities (318.414) {274.G20)
Totalmetassets . 505 547012
Equity
Sharc caplia. 12.0 6,225 5.225
Snare pranium raserve 13.0 292,626 297625
Caprzal reduction reserve 14.0 317,714 3223065
Accuma.aed .osses 15.0 (111,454) (74,2040
Total equity S o T © 505111 547.012

Tne Company nas asen advantage of the provisions of Companies Act 2006 5408 and does not disc.ose the Company's
individla: profit and loss accoun:. 1oss for the year was £2.791.000 (2022 profit £21362,000).

Tne Company financiai staiamenis on pages 111 w 128 were approved ny ine Board of Directors of Civiias Social Housing PLC
and autnorised [orissae and signed on i3 bena | oy:

i\.\xvm J

Michael Wrobel

Chawrman and indepcenden: Non-Execulive Direcior
28 June 2023

Company Mo 15402528
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Company Statement of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 March 2023

Share Capial

Shate premium reduction Accumulated Total

Hote oo 00 oo Fonn “Eoon

Balance at 1 April 2021 T 6225 292462 331140 (51473 568354
Frofit and total comoprehensive income for ine year - - - 21,3672 21,352
Shares reissued from reasury 130 164 184 - 648
Snares bought back into reasury “MC (9.259) - (9.259)
Dividends paijd 15.0 - - - (34.093) (34,0093}
Balance at 31 March 2022 - 625 292675 322365 (71201 347012
Loss and total comprehensive loss for the year - - - (2,791} (2,791)
Snares reissucd from reagury 12.0 - — — - -
Shares nough! Dack InN:o reasury 14.0 - - (4.651) - (4,651)
Dividends paid 15.0 - - - (34,459) {34,459)
Balance at 31 March 2023 T 7 8225 292626 7714 (11454) 50511

The Companys disiributable reserves compnse retamed sarnngs/laccumulated losses) and the capizal reduction
reserve. These in aggregate had sufficien: realised disinibiuzable reserves to suppor: divtdends paid to date.

Tne notes on pages 113 10 120 are an integra. var: of “acse finandla. statements.




Notes to the Company Financial Statements
As at 31 March 2023

R o gharade Lrilesr theati g

Civitas Soctal Housing PLC (“he Company”) was incorporated in Lngland and Wa.es under the Companies Act 2005 as a pub.ic
company Jdmited oy shares on 29 Septemoer 2016 witn company numbper 104G2528 Lnder the name Civitas REIT PLC winey was
subscqguenty changed 10 the exisiing name on 3 Ociober 2015,

The address of the regisiered olfice s 6ih F.oor, 85 Gresham Swrect, London FC2ZV 7NQ. The Company is registered as

an investmen: company wnder section 833 of the Companies Act 2005 in England and Wates and is domiciled in the

United Kingdom

The Company did not begin trading unti. 18 Noven ber 2016 when the shares were admitted 1o trading on lhe London Stoag
Exchangc {"L3L").

The Company's Ordinary shares have necen admited to the Officia: List of the Financia. Cond uct Authority (FCAD. and are
wraded on the LSE.

Tne arinciva. activity of the Company is (o act as ne uliimaie paren: company of i's subsidiaries (the "Group”) and o provide
shareholders with an attrac:ive level of income. (ogether with the potentia. for capital grow:n from invesing in a porifo.io of
social homes.

DRz tiG

The financia. sta:cmrents have peen prevared on a historica. ¢ost nasis and in accordance with Financia: Reporting Standard
101 Reduced Disciosure Framework ('TRS 101" and the Companies Ac: 2006 as applicable w companies using FRS 10L

S Buasis af o

[n preparing these financia! statements, 1ne Company app.ics tae recognition. measuremen: and disc.osure raquiremen:s of
Internanona. Financia. Reporiing Siandards (CAdopted [FRSs™), niit ma<es amendmen:s where neccessary in order 1o comoly
with e Companies Act 2006 and ras sot o4t be:ow waere advaniage of tac FRS 101 disclosure exempuons has oeen faken.

In preparing these tinancia: starements (ne Company nas taken advantage of a.. disclosure exemptions conferred oy FRS 101
Tagrefors, thege financial staicmen:s do not include:

e coriain comparaiive informauon ag oerwise required by [FRS:

e cerain disc.osures regarding tne Company's capiia. managemeni:

e ceriain disclosures in relation (0 IFRS 15 Revenue Contracis with Cusiomers:

e asatemren: of cash t.ows:

e hectfectof fuiare aceolnung siandards not yot adopted:

e nedicosdare of The remuncraion of koy managenten: personne:; and

e disciosure of reiated pary rransacions wiin other who.y owned memoers of Civitas Sociat Housmg PLC

In addition. and in accordance wity FRS 101, furthor disciosure exempouoens nave peen adopted becauss egulva ent discosures
are incuded in the Company's conso idated financia’ stazemenss. 7acse financia. s.atemen:s do net include ceriain
disc.osures In respect of:

s [inancial nstramen:s. and

e far va.uc mecasuremaeni olner (han ceriain disciosures required as a resait of recording financia. insirumenis at fairva.se.
The Company has taken advaniage of the exempion in sechien 408 of the Companics Ac: 2066 nol 1o presen: 1's own tncoire
statement of statemen: of comoprenensive INaome.

LR LR I TR R BT E L SO N APV ST SN PUL VS SERREZ 0l & TR ALENE FERFY it

Atler a review of new accouniing siandards which are now effeciive. none are relevan: 1o be adopted in ine preparation of (e
Company's financia. statemenis for (nc year ended 31 Marca 2023,

{aos

PR TIPS I

Tne financia’ s:a:emenis have necn nprepared on a going concern pasis

As discassed in the Group financial statemen:s above. the anderying asscis of the Company penefl from a secure income siream.

Tne Company financial statements saow an accumulaled loss, however this is duc o a time-.ag on profiis from suapsidiary
companies being moved Up the structare 1n the form of dividends.

Tne Company has ne: current liabilities of £289.622.000 (2022: £245272.060). This ba.ance arises due 10 e intercompany
paiances oaling £3168.128 000 (2022 £271.632.000) with the Company's supsidiary companies. "ne amounts principally relate o
bank loans drawn in the Company's s.obsidiary companies in order ¢ [inance the purchasc of new acg.isitions 1n accordance
witn e Groap's nusiness model The directors of the subsidiary companies nave provided a letlar of comfor: tha: they wi'l no:
scck repayment of these na’ances within 12 months Irom the date of approval of the Company's financial staiemen:s.

I DNISMOH T 08 SVLIATD
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements
Continued

The Company's ariic.es of agsociation include a reguirement for the Board to propose an ordinary resolution a: the annua’

genera mecting fo.'lowing the fifih anniversary from Lhe initial public offering of the Company for the Company 1o continue

in 115 current form {the Conzinuasion Resolutiony Tnis vote was passed in Septemoper 2027 so the Company wi.l continue its

business as presenty consiituied and wi.l propose Lhe same resoluiion at ine AGM in September 2027 and every fifin annua!

general meeting thereafter

On 9 May 2023 an announcement was made ;0 1he marge: for an a..-cash offer of Civitas Social Housmg PLC (CSH) from '
We'lness Unily Limited. a wnolly owned indirect subsidiary of CK Assets Holdings Limited (CKA). The offer necame

unconditional on 23 Junc 2023 The Group's cxisting commritted debt facilities contain a standard change ot conro. cla.ase nas

now been inggered d.e o the offer necoming unconditional. Tais could result in the existing committed deiot facilivies oeing

withdrawn. Purinermaore. (e Direciors do not have visibi ity ot 1ne post completion fanding {or the Group and Company at

this time. The Direciors note the detai ed intenions staierren: included wiinin the annoancemen: on 3 May 2023, wnich states

that CKA does not envisage maxing any changes 1o the management team nor any disruption (¢ any counterparues or to

‘he underlying renan:s. However the conditions outiined above indicate a mazteria. uncertainty which may cast significant ,
doup: Lpon 1ne Group's and Company's ability o continue as a going concern. The Independent Augitors' Report inciuded

within the Annual Repor: and Accounss for ine year ended 31 March 2623 also high'ights this material uncertainty. Therelore,

notwithstanding (he material uncerainty arising from the ofter trom CKA, the Directors are satisfied inat tne going concern

basis romains appropnate for the preparation of tne hnanciatl statements The financial statemenis do notinaiude the

jusiments tha: would rasul: it the Group and tne Company were Lnaole 0 coninue as a going concern.,

EAEESaRt K R ES FOY TP PR s
The ey saource ol estimation unceriainty relates ;o 1ne Company's invesimen: in Group companies, and is stated in the |
Company's separate financial sta:ements a: cog; ess impalirmen: losses. \f any. Impairmen: {osses are determined with

reference oy e investment's (air valae less cstintated costs of disposal. Investmeont properies hed oy the subsidiary

companies gre supnored oy Independent valuation. Judgements and assumptions associaied witi 1ng Dropery val.es of the

investmenis heid by (ne soosidiary companies are detal ad in the Group finanaal statements,

R R N LIRS PERR LS RERE ST

ARV AN SEUH FERERLIN
The financia’ staiemen:s of the Company fo_.ow ‘nc aceoanting policics .aid outin rne Groun's consoiidated financa.
st@ements along wi:h the fol.owing acco.niing poicies waich have been consistenty app led:

SESETRRS FELE S I IE AR IR LR N [EARN
The nvesiInen:s in swosidiary companies are included in ine Company’s Statemen: of Financial Posiion at cos: less provision
for impairmen: Impairmen: iosses are delermined with relerence 1o e invesiments fair vaiue less esldimated seling costs. On
disposa.. e dilference peiween e net disposa. proceeds and its carrying amoudn: is included 1n Thc income statement

Tne invesimen: in a subsidiary company may include nolh tae purchase of shares and an intercom pany loan whicih is
supseducnyy caplalsed inraium lor snares in the s.osidlary company e intercompany .0an caplta.ised is disc'osed 1n
notc 7.0 as a ransfor between 1ne snares and loan co.Lwmns.

Pevagr: to snbvsiddiarie -

Loans made (o sunsidiary companies waich anse as par: ol the ransactions for tne acquisinon ol Investments and are
s.bscquently capitalised py the iss.e of snarce arc recogniged as inves:ment n suosidiaries a: cost. Al 1ne point the Joan is
capitaiised. ©us ransacuon is recognised as a transfer witnn the rac.e in note 7.0

LR N R L P SRS S N 0 A S TS S SRS E TN
Balances arising wit swpsidiary comoanies of a tempoorary na.re arc ini:ia. y recognised a: fair va. we and suoscguenty
measured gt amorised cost.

P Teeaide e
Dividends are inc.aded in ne financia. siasemrents in 2o year in wnien ey are paid Delars of dividends paid and proposad
arc inc..ded in noe .0 of ine Group's consoadased financla. staicmen.s.

Taobhn, st :
Dezais of Direciors rerruneration arc inc..ded in noe 50 of the consolida:ed hnancial staiemen:s. The Company 1ad no
emop.oyees danng the year (2022 ).

O A R NP

0 At e
Auditfees in re.anon o e Company's linancia. stalements wa. £358.000 (2022 7296 0C0). For furiner details, p case reler 1o
noie 95 of :ne Gro.p finanoma slazerments,
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SRS sl anes  FMarch 2023

Year ended 31 March 2023 . 3 _ AN €000 £'200
Balance a: the beginning of (he year 768,075 25,209 793,284
[ncrease in investments 1,090 600 1,680
Loans wransterred 7.727 (7.727) -
Impairment (241) - (241)

Atthe end of the year 776,651 18,082 794,733

Fol the yeat

shares in Loans o ended
subsidiaries subsidianes 31 Maich 2022
Year ended 31 March 2022 ~ : _ ; ; i . . £000 £ 0oy _Eoo0
Balance ai [ne oeginning of tne year 703435 17.483 T20.N8
Increase 11 INVCSHMEnts A1,712 31,013 72725
L.oans iransferred 23787 (23.287)
Impairmen: {359) - {359)
At the end of the year 768.075 25.209 793.284

Fo.owing a review comparing cos: of inves:inien:s 1o he anderlying ne: assels of supsidiary companies. an impairmen:
orovigion has neen made of £241.000 (2022 7355.000)

Tt i sttty el
Tne Company has provided a guaraniee ander s479C of the Companies Act 2006 1n respect ol 1ne financial year ended

31 Marcn 2023 for a namber ot its subsidiary companics (as indicated in the Tagic on tne following pages) Tne guaraniee s
over a oulsianding dapLidies to waich t1e s.osidiary companies are s.oec a: 31 March 2023 antl. they are satisfied in fu.

"~

Tne Group consists of a paren: company. Civizas Socia! [o.sing PLC. incorporaied in Fngiand and Wales (company n.mber
10402528) and a numper of supsidiarios ne.d direcy by Civitas Socia) Housing PLC. wnich operate and are incorporated in
Fng.and and Waies or Jersey.

The Group owns 160% cquily shares of all subsidiaries hsied velow and nas tne power (o appain and remove (e mazoriy of
the hoard ot direciors of those sJbsidiaries. Tne relevan: activiiles ol 1ne pe.ow supsidiarics are determined by inc Board of
Direciors pased on the parpose of cach company.

q

Therefore the Dirce:ors cona uded tnal e Group nas control aver a.l these enuiies and al. inese enines have been

consolidated within (e conselldated [inancia. staements,

A his: of al. re.ated .nderakings inc.uded within these consoadated financial staterrents are noted oe.ow. Indirect.y held
s.ogidiary companies are rarked by an indentation in the lanle pe.ow:

Country of Incorporation

HNaine . - Registered

Civitas Sc;c : H?)-usmg Finance Cot‘r.f;;anTl; 16387/07 Eng.and & Waiss
Covitas Socia. Housing Jersev 1 Limited 124128 Ho:ding company Jersey
Cvitas SPVI Linuted® 10318723 Properly investment Lng.and & Wa'es
Crvitas 5PV2 Lim.ted® 16114251 Fropearty investment Eng.and & Wales
Crvitas SPVI Lorited® 15546749 Property 1mvestment Eng.and & Wales
Civitas 3PVI1S Limited™ Ca7773R0 Property 1mvestment Lng.and & Wales
Civitlas SPV28 Limited™ 16791473 Property ‘mvestmen! Fng.and & Wales
Civilas SPV27 Llimited* 10883112 Property imvestment Fngland & Waes
Crvitas SFV33 Lomited* 10346407 Pronerty investment Eng an:d & wales
vitas SPVES Limited® 16588830 Property nvestrent bng.and & Wales =G
Civitas SEV3SE Limited* 16758318 Property 1vestne:nt Eng.and & Wales § 5
Crvitas SFV39 Lunited 105473553 Property mvestment Eng.and & Wales : -
Crv.tas SPVAC Limuled” 1C738510 Property 1mvestment Erig.and & Wales % S
Civitas SPV41 Limited™ 1G7385412. Property investment Eng.and & Wales E -:i
Crv las SFV30 Limed® 167475419 Property Imvestment Engand & Wales E o
Civitas Social Housing Finanaoe Conpany 2 Limied® 16997698 Finance company Eng and & Wales § %
Civitas So¢ia, Housing Jersey 2 Limited 1248756 lloid.ng comopany Jersey § ;
Civ.las SEVE Lined® 10136529 Property 1mvestrent Eng and & Wales “ o
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Name
Civitas 5Pv4 Limited®

Civitas SPV3 Limited*
Civitas SPVe Limitaed*
Clvitas 3PV Limited*
Clvmas SPVIO Linted*
Clvilas SPVI2 Limated”
Clvitas SPV1Y Limited®
Civitas SFVI8 Lim:ted”
Civitas SPV1S Lumited®
Civitas SPV20 Limited”
Civitas SPV22 Limited*
Civitas SFV24 Limted*®
Ciwvitas SEV26 Limmned*
Cwitas SEV29 Lim ted”
Civttas SPV30 Lurited*
Covitas SPV31 Limuted®
Civilas SPV32 Limited™
Cryvitas SPVE4 Lomitesd®
Civitas SFVIE Lim ted”
Civitas SPVA2 Limited®
Civitas SPVAS Lim ted®
Clvitas SPV43 1, ted”
Clvitas SPV46 L:mled*
Civitas SPVLY Limled®
Civitas SPV48 Limited®
Cov.tas SPVS1 Limted®
Covitas SPVSA Limited”
Clvitas SPVES Limed®
Chvlas 3PVE4 Ly ted”
Civitas SPV/0 Lint . ted”
Civitas SPVYT Loniited®
Cowntas SPV72 Lomited®
Covitas SPV74 Limited®
Covilas SPVTS Lumted®
Civitas SPV8E Loy edt
Civitas SPV183 Lomoaed®

Cw.tas SPVE Limnitedt
Civitas SEVAE Lontited®
Civitas SPVAS L ted®
L.moted”
Covtas SPYSY Limted®
Civ.tas SPVBC Lomited™
Civitas SEV61 [arired”
Clvitas SPVEH 1.onired”
Clvtas SPVFT Lo ted”
Civ tas 3FV78 L. ted*
Civitas SPV79 [om.ted”
rtas SEVEY Lo ited®
as STVA2 Limrited®

Svitas SPVES LI ted”

9]

9]

£y

imited”
Tyitas SEVIS Lot ted:
Cvias SFVI7 Lurted®
Covitas SEVICS Loried®

tas SPVES

o0

C'v tas Socla: Hous g Fnance Company 3 Ln ted”

Notes to the Company Financial Statements
Continued

Regusteted number

Prineipal achvity

10455744
10479104
10674493
10536388
10535243
10546753
10479036
105846651
10548932
10388735
10743938
10731512
108647356
10911365
10936023
16374889
ncaON73
16738381
106588792
16778536
10534877
1G871854
1087110
1G8/32/0
1CR7I295
10826693
10827G06
109578C5
10958411
1G77GEC1
16688639
16938G22
NCC18E
11CC1834
NCe19%s
14327873
153897714
16336157
10893228
1G21823
136433
11091444
1MNBCE
1G937852
1GAZ7E38
M16643
11175039
11236344
M3zz1
1138G735
11571128
11306749
1268184
11453830
113063346

Properly investment
Proverty investment
Pronerty anvesinient
Propenty ‘nvestn:ent
Property investment
Property livastment
Property Investmeant
Froperty investnient
Property nvestment
Froperty investment
Property nvestme:nt
Prope-ry investnend
Proverty investment
Froverty invastment
Propeny .nvestment
Property pvestmeant
Property Investment
Property Investment
Property ivestuent
Property invesinient
Proverty investnienl
Fronerly nvestment
Froperly nvestment
Property [:nvesimant
Property 1nvestnent
Proverty imvestiment
Froverty investnent
Fropeny nvestment
Properly investment
Property investment
Propersty investment
Property favestnient
Proverty investment
Froperly nvestment
Froperty nvestmeant
Froperty nvestment
Fnance Conpany

Eroverty civestment
Froperty inveastrent
Property nivestent
Froperty nvestment
Froperly inrvestatent
Property \mvestment
Proverty ‘nvestmeant
Froperty nvestrent
Froperty avestment
Froperty nvestment
Property investment
Pronerty mvestreant
Frooerty mvestme:l
Frooerty nvestment
Froperty nvestment
Froperly vestment
Pronerty vestment
Proverty vesinienm

Country ol incorpotation

England & Wales
Eng.and & Wales
Lagland & Wa'es
England & Walies
England & Wales
Eng.and & Wales
Eng.and & wales
kngland & Wales
England & Wales
Exgland & Wales
England & Wales
Lng.and & Wales
Fng.and & Wales
Eng and & Wa.es
Eng.and & 'Wales
Eagiand & Waies
England & Wales
Lng.and & Wales
Lngland & ‘Wales
Lng.and & Wa'es
Eng.and & Wa.es
England & Wa.es
England & Wa.es
Lagland & Wa.es
Lngland & Wales
Lng.and & Wales
Eng.and & Waes
Frg and & Wa.es
Fngand & Waes
England & Wales
Eng:and & Wales
Lngiand & Wales
Eng.and & Wa.es
Englandg & Wa es
Ehgland & Wa.es
Lngiand & Wa.es
Lagand & Wa es
England & Wa.es
Eng.and & Wales
Eng.and & Wales
Lng.and & Waes
E1g and & Wa.es
Eng and & Wa.es
Eng.and & Waes
Eng.and & Wales
Lngand & Wa.es
Frgiand & 'Wa es
Fagand & Wa.es
England & Wa.es
F1g.and & Wales
Enyg and & Wa.es
Lag.and & Wass
Ehg and & Wa.es
Engand & Wa.es
Engiend & 'Vales
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Name o . _
Cfivitas SPVI0S Limited™
Clviles SPVIOS Lannied?
Civitas SPVI0Y Limuted”
Clvitas SPV1IE Limited®
Clvitas SEVI7 Limted*

Civitas Soc.a. Housing Fonance Company 4 Lmited*
Civitas SPV23 Limited®
Civitas SPV51 limited®
Clvitas $PVEY Limited®
Civilas SPVEI Limited”
Clvilds SEVT3 Limiedr
Civitas SPVE4 Limited™
Civitas SEVES Limited”
Civilas SFVB7L'm tad*
Cov.las SPVES Limted™
Civitas SFVAU Larted”
Crvltas §FV9I1 Limted”

“witas SPVIZ2 Lomited”
vilas SEVIS Limited®
rv.las SPVI4 Lirred”
tas SPV9s Lincled™
Civitas SPVI0C Lomited®
Covitas SEVI01 Lirated™
Covlles SEVI0Z Limited™
Creitas SFVICH Lmied®
Crytas SPVI2 Limited®
Civitas SPVIN Lim.ted®
Crvitas SPVIIS Limited:
Covilas SPVIB Limted®
Civitas SPV121 Limited®
Crvtas SPY122 Lim.ted®
Covitas SPVIZE Limued®
Civitas SPVI27 Limited”
Civ.las 5PVI129 Limied”
Civitas SPV150 Lorted®
Crvitas SPVIET Limited®
Crzitas SPVISA Limited®
Crvitas SPVI143 Limited*
SPV1SS Lomited (prev.ous y Fieldbay imited”
Crvitas SPV148 Lorited®
C vitas SPV149 Limited*
Crvitas SPV1EC Limited*
FPICO 324 Lid™

Civitas Social llousing Finance Comopany 5 Limited®
Civitas SPVY Limited®
C.vitas SPV1S Limued®
Civitas SPV37 Lim.ted®
Civitas SPv44 Limited”®
Crvitas SPVA3 Limited”
Covitas SPV5E Lomiiledr
Cuvitas SPV62Z Luriled”
Cvitas SEVES Lomited”
Crvitas 5PVEY Limited®
Ciovitas SPve8 Lim.ted”
Civitas SPVA8 Limated®

=

Reqistered number

principal activity

11332177
[JERRIFET
11332182
113643939
11304445
11906660
10746881
11039730
1musz
1MAZZT2
10934075
11381435
114184352
10888903
10933044
10333131
109415777
114493813
164311
11208103
11270786
11069703
(9978282

11232120
11379750
11579733
11322178
111411438
11639917
11482646
11433821
16341401
11664394
117035G74
116731352
11475755
11842308
5219017
11632633
11462631
N462555
1633019
13083077
10536368
Ca517692
10738450
10588783
11031543
NC36465
10937328
109358467
169757929
16958269
11478635

Property ﬁnvegtmei'][
I'roperty nvestment
Mroperty investment
Pranerty nvestment
Property nvestment
[nance Company

Property _nvestment
Property mvestment
Property ‘nvestment
Froperly -nvestment
Property Investme:nt
Property nvestment
Property investment
Property vestment
Praperly fnvestment
Property Dvestment
Property investment
Property nvestment
Properly vestment
Property investment
Prooerty nvestmenl
Property ;mvestment
Property investment
Property vestment
Property nvestment
Froperty nvestirent
Property mvestment
Pronerty Investment
Pronerty nvestment
Eraperty avestiant
Frooerty nvestnent
Mraverty mvestment
Property nvestment
Property nvestment
Froperty nvestnient
Property vestment
Property nvestment
Hoiding company

Froperty .nvesiment
Property .nvestment!
Froperty mvestotent
Froperty nvestment
Froperty nvestiment
Fnance Comnany

Property Investment
Froperty mvestment
Property nvesiment
Property ‘nvestment
Froperty lnvesin:ent
Property nvestment
Froperty nvesiment
Froperty nvestmnent
Property ‘nvestme:nt
Property nvestment
Property _nvestn:ent

Country of LOCO! porallon

Lng.and & Wales
Frig.and & Wales
Lng.and & Wa'es
Lng.and & Wales
Eng.and & Wales
Eng.and & Wales
Eng.and & Wales
Lng.and & Wales
Lng.and & Wales
Fng.and & Wales
Eng.and & Wales
Eng and & Wales
Lng.and & Wales
England & Wales
Fngland & Wales
England & Wales
Engiand & Wa.es
Lng.and & Wales
Eng.and & Wales
Lng.and & Wales
FEngand & Wales
Eng.and & Wales
Engrand &% Waies
Lag.and & Wales
Frigiand & Wales
Frigiand & Waies
Eng and & Wales
Lhagand & Waes
Lngland & Wa'es
Eng.and & Wales
England & Wales
Engiand & Wales
Lng.and & Wa'es
Lngiand & Wa.es
Eng.and & Wales
FEagiand & wales
Engiand & Wa.es
Lng.and & Waies
Lngiand & Wa'es
Lngland & Wales
Fngland & 'WVales
Lagiand & Waes
Engrand & Wa.es
Lng.and & Wa.es
Frg:and & Wi es
Fng.and & '‘Wa.es
Lig and & Waes
England & Wales
Eng.and & Wa es
Eng.and & Wa.es
England & Wa.es
Lng.and & Wales
Esigland & Wales
Eng.and & Wales
Lng.and & Wa.es
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements

Continued
;amg B h Reg:sle[ed number Principal activity Country of Incorporation
Civitas SPV39 Limited* 11478707 Property Investment Fngiand & Wales
Civitas SPV104 Limed® 11532174 Property investrent Eng.and & Wales
Covitas SPVIDE [omited® 11532135 Froperty investment Lngand & Wa es
Civitas SPVIE Limited® 11580CE68 Froperty ‘nvestment Lngland & Wa.es
Civitas SPV123 Limted* 08253452 Froperty :nvestment England & Wa.es
Civitas SPVI1Z3 Limuted” 1698972 Property investment England & Wales
Civ tas SFVT44 Linited® 116894561 Proverty imvestment England & Wales
Civ.tas S3PV135 Limiled™ 1379880 Propertly 1vestment England & Wales
Covitas SPVIZE Limited™ N37976C Prope:ly investment Lng.and & Wales
Covitas SPVI43 Limited™ 115468C8 Property investment Eng.and & Wa.es
Civitas SPV144 Limited” 11546696 Property ‘'nvestment Eng.and & Wa.es
Crvitas 5PVI46 Limued® 861500 Ho.ding Company Eng.and & Wales
Bryn Eitan (2019) Limited® 11844898 Property investnnent England & Wales
Civitas 3Pv147 Luminted* 11861974 Ho.dng Comnany Engiand & wales
Mynydd Mawr (2019) Lim led® 11844917 Progerty investirant England & Wwales
Civitas SPV152 Linuted* 1955719 Croperty nveastrent Lng.and & Wa'es
Covias SPVISS Limlted: 12044281 Froperty nvestreant Lng.and & Wales
Clvitas SPY156 Limited® 12081093 Troperty nvestmeant Lngland & Wa.es
Crvitas STV157 Limited™ 1218861C Froperty investment England &% 'Wa.es
Civ.tas 3rv1ss Lim:led® 12202674 Property investniernt Lngland & 'Wa'es
Civ.tas SPV1aC Limited* 12272906 Property investment England & wWaies
Bedford SPVI L 1ited” 12215518 Prooerty Investnent England & Wates
Bridge Froverty Herts Lintted” 12455983 Fronerty imvestaient Eng.and & Waies
Bridge Propoeo Rintesd? 1241553 Froperty nvesiment Lngand & Walas
FPl Co 234 Lid* 11513226 Property -nvestment Eng.and & Wa.es
Coaitas SPVI4 Limcted® 10473041 Property -nvestoent Tngiand & ‘Na.es
C.owvitas SPV HE Ltd * 12784838 Property nvestment Fngiand % Waies
Cowidas SPVIS Limmited™ COA7557 Property ‘nvestment Engiland & Wales
Cowvitas SPV21 Limted™ 105351541 Proverty investment Erhgiand & Wales
Civitas SEVISA Linsredt 122383515 Frovperty investnrent tng.and & Waies

Cwvitas Financ ng FLEC?

tioiding Conpany

Eng.and & Wa.es

* These enunes are exemnpt [tum e requirements ol 1he Companies Act 2006 elanng to the audn ot indwidual fnancial statements by virtue ot Section 479A of that

Act These are all entities that have a year end of 31 March 2023

Tne registered addresses tor the suosidiaries are consisien: nased on incir co.wniry of Incorporation and are as fol ows:
« England & Wales entities: [.in<x Company Ma:ters Limited. 6.1 Foor, 65 Gresham Sireet London RCR2WV 7NG

s Jersey entities: 17 Casi.c Sreet, St Heller Jorsay JE2 3RT

Specl i v S gt

A1 March 2023 31 March 2022
£'000

£'000
Trade receivao es T S S T 157 s
Propaymen:s and ool rocaivan.ss 420 1.8G2
Accricd income 635 1258
Tetal S S T - 2509 430

Prepayments and omner recelvaos amouns Inc..de prepawd .ega. and professiona’ fecs of PN (2022: £34.00C) tn
inc.rred I CORNOCUON wita acgLisiaons yve: o oe comp.eied and FZ85.000 (2022 £1.045.500) in respec: of Lncampi
on “ac proper.y porfo.io.

d.nave pecn
ed words
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asn he'd oy soliciiors

Liquidity [unds
CE?} he.d at bani

Casn and cash equivafer:s
Resiricted cash
Total cash held at bank

31March 2023

31 March 2022

£'any £

777777 - a 64 275
15,636 10,489

10,239 12,258

h T 25939 23.123

254 315

S T 26193 23438

Liquidity funds refer o money placed in money markes: funds. These are highly iiguid funds with accessinllity witiin 24 hours

and subrect o insignifican: risk of changes in va. e

Cash neld by soiciors 1s money ne:d in escrow for expenses cxpecied 1o oe incurred in reidnion 10 INVEsHent properiaes
pending comp.etton. “hese funds arc avai.ab'e immediately on demand.

Restrictied cash represen's amounts ne.d for specific commitments, tenant deposiis and reienion money neld by awyers in
reration o deferred paymen:s s.ireot (o acalevemen: of ceriain conditions. other retentions and cash segregaied o fund repair.
main:enance and improvemen: works 10 pring ‘he properties up 10 satisfaciory standards for The Groap and e tenans.

Retentions®
Accrua.s

Dividend witnao.ding 1ax payao.c

Deferred income
Amounis duc 1o suosidiary companies
Tonan: denoshis ned*
Total

* Comparatuves have been re-analysed ro corredt the analysis of £222 000 of 1enani deposits which had previcusly been included in ietenhons

CEEE IS HIC ISR § I

Snare caplial represents the nominal va.Le ol consideration received by the Company for the issue

Share capital
AL peginning and end of year

araxar; shares of EaJi:;é:h
At beginning and end ot year

31 March 2022

31 March 2023 Restated

£000 L2000

T - 20 80

7485 583

940 1.057

374 358

316,128 271832

207 258

T - 318,414  774.020
of Ordinary shares

o - B FD;-l_l'-le For the

year ended
31 March 2023
000

6,225
For the

year cnded
31 Match 2023

622,461,380

veal ended
31 March 2022
5000

6225

For the
year ended
31March 2022

on

61,380

During e year e Company purchased 5,050,000 Ordinary snares 10 be held 1n treas.ry at a cost of [4.651.000 (31 March 2022

10.025.000 Ordinary snares [or £9.259.000)

During 71e provious year. the Company reissded 565000 Ordinary shares neld in reasury for £647.60C The cost of purchasing
Lnese shares Into reasury of £484.000 nas neen credited 1o thao capia. reduction reserve with the gain credited 10 11e share

prcmi JdIM reserve.

AL 31 March 2023, the Company he.d 15.075.000 (31 March 2022; 12.025.000) Ordinary shares in lreasury. Tho snares wil continue

10 oo held in treasdry wnili either reissucd or cance! ad.

Al 31 Marca 2023, the numoer of Grdinary shares used to ca.culaie ihe net asset value ner share is 566386380 (31 March 2022,

512.456.380) when excludes (e ghares neld in treasury.

=0
)
o5
=
3%
>
23
24
» >
2=
ooz
2 <
z5
d =
D
3=
o

119



Notes to the Company Financial Statements

Continued

Yaod whag

ERRRREETRY 5 5) Bkl

Tne share premium rescrve represents tne amounis

assoaated issue cosis of the subscriptons.

subscribed for Ordinary share

Forthe

caplia: in excess ol noming. value less

For the

year ended year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

. o o _ - _ . _ _ soog £'000
At beginning of year 292.626 782462,
Premium ariging on shares reiss.ed {from treasury i } ] B - 164

At end of year 292,626 292,626

For movemen:s in (ne year, please see details in notwe 12.0.

e

P10 Uapstal raddue oo ris ¥
The capita. reduction reserve is a disieinuianle reserve o waich the varue of the cancelled share premi.im was (ransterred
Purguan: to Artic.c 3 of The Companies (Reduction of Snare Cawpizal) Order 2008, tne balance he.d in the capria: reducion
reserve is to be reated tor the purposes of Par: 23 of (ne Campanies Act 2006 as a realised profit and theretore avai.aole for
disrin.dion in accordance with section 830 of e Companes Act Tae Company has used this reserve for e costs of buying
back snares to be neld in ireasury.

ror the
year ended
31 March 2022

For the
year ended
31Maich 2023

. £'000 £oon
Eibeglnn'ing of vear T T ’ - 322,365 331140
Shares reissaad from reasury - 484
Shares Doulgon Bacs G ircasury (4,651 {92.259)
Atend of year - — - T imaa wames
For movemenis in ine yedr p ease seo details in noe 12.0
T FA TR PTREAS I EEIE R
Tnis reserve represenis the profits and osses of the Company.
- ) T T - - - ) i Trertne | farthe
SIMarcn 3025  arch 02t
. _ _ . i}ﬂﬂi f‘.ﬂl!lj
A: beginning of year - o (74204) (51473
(LossYoroli: for the year (2,791 21.362
Dividends paid ) (34,459) 134083
At end of year o o o T (458 (74209

AR SIS RV AE AN TER SIS T FRERN

Ag ar 31 Marcn 2023, miere 18 no sJimate Coniro.uIng nDarny.
P4 Helotedd frarsy T
Foral re ated pary ransac:ions and rransacions wiia sie Inve
“ha Growo’s conso idated financia. stacmenss and amo.nis due o sLosidiary companies in noe 110 anpova

P ease refor o note 33.0 of the Croup Consoidared financia. statlemenis on page 110

Sincea the year end, Civiias Socia Housing Jersey 1 Limited and Civitas Socia. Housimg Jersey 2 Limited have issied dividends 1o
e Company ‘ola.ling Fi0.245.000
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Appendix 1 (unaudited): Notes to the calculation of EPRA and other

alternative performance measures

The Groun has cnosen 10 adopt EPRA bes? praciice guldelines for calculaiing key alternacive performance meas:res Notes 10
w0 7.0 suppor! the CPRA metrics disc.osed on pages 28 and 29 of the Repor: where the definition and purpose of eacn meiric

are outiined.
Py FPRA Faroeigs

For the year

end
31 March 2023

Earnings from operational activities

For the year
ended
31March 2022

Profit afler taxation (£'000) 25,472 44,751
Change in fair vaiae of derivaive financia. instruments (£'00C) 2,826 (2.675)
Cnanges In value of invesiment proper:es (£'CC0) (2,640) 12.259)
Caos:s of carly repayment of deo: (FCCG) 1271 -
LPRA Larnings (£060) ST 26.929 29.310
Welghied ave}ago number of shares in issue {adjusiad for snares heid 10 treasary) - 608,552,681 518_79794?.
TPRA Earnings per share (FPS)  nasic & dil o - 443p 487
20 TR R Mot
T -  LpRANet EPRANet  EPRANet
e e et et
31 March 2023 S h o
Ne! asgels (F'OC0) 661,909 661,909 661,909
Fair va.uc of derivative financia! insiruments (£'C00) (8,129) {8.129) -
Ad ugimoen: o fair vaiue for panc norrowings (FOGG) - - 11,736
NAV (£G00) T o o 653780 653,780 673,645
Numper of shareg in Issue (ad usted [or shared held in reasury? 606,386,380 606,386,380 606,386,380
. - 107_'.(_3Zp 107.82p 111.09p
- ) C wrkaNel | ErRANa EPRA Nt
e e sty =
31 March 2022 - S
Net assets (F000) 575547 675,547 575547
Fair val.c of derivalve tinanaial insiruments (GGG (2130 (2.131)
Adrasimen: 1o fair va.ue for nanxs porrowings (FCC0) 2644
WAV (7GC0) - T o T a73415 673416 578191
Numoer of saarcs in iss.e (ad; wsted lor shared ac.d in reasary) 812435380 6172430380 ALI43538C
NAV per saare 109.950 159 95p 12.74p
S PEPHA Mot oo Vi
o T ) o o ) For (_he T For the

Invesiment property (£'000)

Aowance for estimaied parcnasers cos:s (7800)

Grns@i‘p compioied vropery portfd‘ro (L'000) S
Ann.a.sed ne: rents {F'G00) S

Add notlonalren: expiration of ren: froe penods or ainer ease incen:jves (£000)

59103

EPRA NTY
EFRA Topped-.n NIV

year ended
31March 2023

veatr ended
31 March 2022

978,147 958756

59,973 55412

o " 1,038.120 1025168
T 57654 54091

57,654 54.091

5.55% 528,

555% 5 287



Appendix 1 (unaudited): Notes to the calculation of EPRA and other
alternative performance measures

Continued

bRT]
[

Yor the

EPRA Vacancy Rate

S0 TFEA Cous Rano

Toral adrrinisiranve and operating expeinscs
Dircc: DTOpCry oxXpenses
Less property expenses recovered inrough ren's

EPRA Costs (including direct vacancy costs)
Dirccr vacancy cos:s
EPRA Costs (excluding direct vacancy costs)

Renlal income

Less rechargeablc costs received

Gross rental income

EPRA Cost R_c'_n:i9 (mcl_udmg direct vacancy costs)
I-:PR.ﬁ Cost Ratio (excludiqg dirqqt vacancy cgrsts)

The Croup nas nes incurred any direct vacangy cosis

Net Debt
Barrowings fron® financia. ins:i:utions (£70G0)

Casn and cash equiva.cn:s (ECOC)

Total Property Value
Investreni propertics a: fair va we (FO00)

Nel recelvan.eg (F000)

For the
year ended yedr ended
B _ 31 March 202% 31 March 2022

10
57.654 54.091
- 0.02% C.00%
B Fatr the For the
year ended yeatr ended
31March 2023 31 March 2022
_ . £ 000 £080
11,821 10.247
1.941 378
(1,512} (995)
12,250 10.230
D ) S 12250  10.230
54,607 51.636
a5y @9y
53,095 5C.541
L 23.07% 20707
23.07% 2C.20%

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

£000

367,925 357,050
(35,588) (53.337)
332,337 3CINE
953,364 945,237
26,743 25,897

980107 972129

Nét receivables comprises
Crher receivan.es

Trade and other receivables
Less ‘rade and other payab.es
Total

33.91% 31.74%

- :nrl\;amh 5023 :41’March 2022

_ - e o FEQ‘J’ £00n
24,783 23.519

11,260 12,8565
_ (9300) (5492

26,743 26.892

&
2
=2
=]
z
]
I
Z
3
=
:
)
z
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Appendix 1 (unaudited): Notes to the calculation of EPRA and other

alternative performance measures
Continued

Components of Net Asset’g@éd in EPRA LTV célculatisn

Invesiman: propertics at falr val.ie

Net receivab.es

Cash and cash sq.iva.ents

Less borrowings Irom tinancial institutions

Net assets used in the EPRA LTV calculation

Less amoLnis oxc.uded from ne calculation

Inerest rate dertivatives

Unamorised oan iss.e cosls

Net assets

GoOFUHA Tanie of e Tenondt,

Acquisiilons inc..ding tncidental costs of purcnase
Developnen:
Investment properties

[neremenial ielan.e space

Fnnancing letianlc space

Tenan: meoentives

Otaer material non-acioca:sd ypes of expenditure
Capialsed interest
Total Capital Expenditure
Cr)ﬂnvcrsion from a::rr?rrlijjais 0 cas!{ 24sis

Total Capital Expenditure on a cash basis

The Group nas nos capiialised any overhead or oparating expanses

Tne Grown nas no loint Veniores so thare s no oins veniire progery o 4isc.ose in the anave Taoe

1 March 2023
£000

953,364
26,743
35.588

(367.925)

647,770

8,129
6.010
661,909

For the

year ended
31 Maich 2023
£'000

543

4,944
1,700

- (597)

6,590

7187

31 March 2022
£000

945237
26,892
53.337

{357.C5M

868416
2131
5000
&75547

For the

year ended
31 March 2022
£ oo

33,4566

5.818
Lot4

40,898
1.512
42.210




Appendix 1 (unaudited): Notes to the calculation of EPRA and other
alternative performance measures
Continued

D0 Fevssatien oresrial Hoate ot Betoa o TR R
Thus ig the annua’ grow'h rate based on grow: in net asse: value per share since launcn and dividends paid 1o
Ordinary snareho.ders.

31March 2023 31 March 2022

NAV per share ) ' 109.1600p 119.3000p
31 May 2017 Inzerim dividend 0.7500p 073000
31 Augus: 2017 Interim dividend 0.7500p 0.73000
30 November 2017 Interin dividend 0.7500p C75G0p
9 March 2018 Interur: dividend 0.7500p C.75GC0
8 June 2018 Interim dividend 1.2500p 1.25CCp
7 Sentember 2018 In:erim dwidend 1.2500p 1.25G0p
30 November 2018 Intenum dividend 1.2500p 1.25GCp
11 January 2019 In:crint dividend 1.1100p 111CCo
28 Febraary 2019 Interim dividend 0.1400p SI4GCo
7 June 2M9 Interim dividend 1.3250p 1.325Cn
4 Seniember 2019 Intenm dividend 1.3250p 1325Co
29 Noverrper 2219 Interur. dividond 1.3250p 1.325C0
28 February 2070 In:erim dividend 1.3250p 132500
12 Tune 2020 Intenm dividend 1.3250p 1.325Cp
7 Septemper 2020 [nterim dividond 1.3500p 135GCD
4 Decern ner 2020 Interim dividend 1.3500p 135000
1 March 2021 Interim dividend 1.3500p 1350Co
11Jsnc 2021 Interim dividond 1.3500p 1350C0
16 Seplemper 2071 [n:erim dividend 1.3875p 138750
13 Decemper 7021 [nienm divideond 1.3875p 1.3875p
1 Marca 2022 Inzcrim dividend 1.3875p 138750
28 June 2022 [n:erim dividend 1.3875p
9 Septemocr 20272 [nierim dividend 1.4250p
9 Decen ber 2022 [n:erim dividend 1.4250p
11 March 2023 Inernm dividend 1.4250p

139.0100p 134.4875p
NAV per share at .aanch 98.0000p S30C00p
Levered [RR 6.29% 553%

g
]
2
5
z
>
z
2
8
=
S
8
z
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Five Year Financial Results

Loy g Statemant CE oA ne g e iag

Revenue
Ron:al income
Less direc: property expenscs

Net rental income

For the

year ended
31 March 2023

For the

yedr ended
31 March 2022

Direciors’ ramaneradion
Investment advisory fees
Genera. and administralive axpenses

Total exi:;enses

Change in fatr vawae of invesimen: gropertics

aperating Profit

[ — B £000 £000
54,607 51,635

) o qeay 97

52,666 50.658

(211) (7206)

{6.21%) (6132)

(5.393) (3.909)

(11.821) (10.7247)

Finance income
Finance expenses  reiating (o bank borrowings

Finanace expenses - re.ating to C snare anoriisation

Profit before tax
Taxation

Profit being total comprehensive income

Earnings per share — basic
Earnings per share — diluted
Dividend dec}afed (ger share) N

2640 12.269

43,485 52,580

148 7

(153350  (10.508)

. (2826) 2673
25,472 44751

25472 4475

4.19p 7230

419p 7230

5.70p 3550

35.075

for the

year ended
31 March 2021
__ EwDuo

49.020
0173y

(198)
(5.107)
(3.183)

ECYEE)

5.51

43.858
20
7.737)

(HE
36.075

5.80p
5800

5400




Five Year Financial Results

Continued

foonue Metement o o

Assets
Non-current assets
Invesiment property
Cther receivab_es

Intcres: rate derivatives

Non-current assets
“rade and oiner receivabies

Casn and casn equivalents

Total assets

31 March 2023

3t March 2022

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

31 March 2019

Liabilities
Current liabilities
Tradec and other payabies

Non-current liabilities
Bank and ioan oorrowings
[nicrest rate derivatives

Total liabilities

Total net assets

Assets

Share capiial

Snare premium raserve
Canital reductlion reserve
Retained earmings

Total equity

Net assets per share - basic
Net assets per share — diluted
Share price

Total shareholder return {on a NAV basis)

Leverage

£000 £ 000 £'ana L'oont £°000

953,364 945 237 893 584 867988 820,094

24,783 23,519 21,905 10755 6.824
8,129 a3t - -

986,276  970.887 915589 878743 826918
11,260 12.865 12.821 10.838 5723
35,588 53337 107.097 52374 54347
46.848 . 56202 119918 59212 60.070

1033124 1037089 1035507 947.955 886988
(3.300) (9.492) (9.345) (774% (15324

7 - (59.957  (59.730) -
(9.300) (9492)  (69282)  (8747%  (15324)

(361.915) (3DA050)  (292183)  (209.440)  (205155)

- (544) 178 -

(361,915)  (3572050) (292777} (209.918)  (A0D5.155)

G71215).  (361542)  (362009)  (277.391)  (220.480)

661,909 675517 673498 670964 656508

6.225 5.2:5 5225 5775 6.225

202,626 292626 292453 292405 292405
317714 327365 331140 330926 331625
45,344 54331 43,570 41008 36253

661909 573547 573498 670564 555508

109.16p  N0300  10830p  10787p  1C7C8p

109.16p  103Co  10830p  10787p  167.08p
33.70p 87400 i7.80p 956 400 96.0Cp

4184% 37.23% 29.56% 23.51% 17.45%
35.61% 34437 34.48% 26.90% 22.00%

&
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Shareholder Information

Share Information

The Company's Ordinary shares of “p each are quoted

on the Official List of the TCA and traded on the premmm
segment of the Main Market of the _ondon $iock Fxchange
(LSE}.

SEDOL number 3080334 .
ISIN C GBOOBOBH3IS2

Ticker/TIDM 5~ o
LEI 2.3800PGRGBAI8GMEI9S

Frequency of NAV Publication

The Company's NAV 1s released to the L5F on a quarierly
zasis and published on the Company’'s websiie:
www.eivizassocialhousing.com.

Sources of Further Information

Copies of the Company's Annual and Half-Yearly Repors.
Stock =xchange announcements and further informanon
on “he Company can be obtained from 125 websirre:
www.civizassoclalhousimg com.

Share Register Enquiries

‘The regngser for the Company’s Ordinary shares 1s
mamtaimed by Laink Group. 'n “he even: of queries
regarding your holding, please contact the Registrar

on 037! 664 G300 (calls are charged at the standard
geographuc raze and will vary by provider: calls ourside
rhe UK will be charged at the applicable imternatenal
raze). Lines are open berween 9.00am and 5.30pm,
Monday o fnday, excluding public hohidays in =ngland
and Wales. You can also emaltl enguires@hnkgroup.coiuk

Changes of name and/or address mus: he nonfied in
writing o the Reygisirar Link Grouyp, Central Square,
29 Welhingron Streer, "eeds .57 400

Key Dates

June Anru@]rreg Vnno;m(:ed i _
Jayment gf”(q:g[tﬁiln?erzm drvidand

September Company's half-year end

- Annual general mesung

o fayment of first intenm dividend

December Falf-yearly resulis announced

o Paymen: of second intenm dividend

February Paymens: of third intenm dividend

March - Company's year end

Association of Investment Companies

The Company 1s a member of the A.C, which

ruabhishes staustcal informanon in respect of

member companies. The AIC can be contacted on

020 7282 5555, enquinies@thealc.co.uk or visit the website:
wwwihealc.couk.

Electronic Communications from
the Company

Shareholders now have the opporumsyy to be notified by
email when the Company's Annual Report, Zalf-Vearly
Report and other formal communmcations are avallable
on the Company's website, instead of recewving printed
coples by post Thig has environmental benefits in the
reducten of paper, printing, energy and water usage, as
well as reducing cos:s 0 the Company.

(fyou have not already elected to receive electronic
commurucaions from the Company and wish 1o do so,
please contact the Regisirar



Glossary

AIFM means the Alzernauve Invesiment Jund Manager.

AIFMD means the Aliernative Investmen: fund Managers
Regulauoens 2013 {az amended by The Alternauve
nvestment ~und Managers (Amendment etc.) (21 =xn)
Requlanons 2019) and the ‘nvesimen: "unds Scurcebook
forming part of the "CA Handbook.

ALMO means an arm’s length management organisaion,
a no:-for-profi company that provides housing services
on behalf of a local authorn:y

Alternative Performance Measures (A”Ms) means a
financial measure of hisrorical financial performance,
financial posmon, or cash fiows, other than a financial
measure defined or specified in the applicakle finanaal
reporung framework

Annual contracted rent rolk means the annual
contractual rental income cuarrently receivable on a
property as a: the 3alance Shee: date.

Approved Provider means Approved Providers, local
awzhonnes, ATV Os, Community interes: Companies,
Regqugtered Channes and other reqgulazed organisaiions
direc:ly aor indirectly in receipt of payment from local or
central governmen: inclading the N=S.

Care Provider means a pravider of care services o “he
occupanss of Specialis: suppored Fousing, registered
with the Care Qualirty Commission.

CIM means Civitag invesiment Vanagement amiied or
ClM {formerly known as Civitas “ousing Advisors _trmized
un:il 115 change of name on /¥ May 2020),

Community Interest Company or CIC means a
company approved by the Office of the equlatar of
Community nteres: Companles as a comrmunily mteres:
company and regigtered as such with Companies Souse,

Company means Civilas Soqal Housing 2.0, a company
incorporated in Zngland and Wales with company
number 0402528

CMA Order means the Stanrory Audit Services Order
2014, 188ued by rhe Competitton and Marke's Authonty.

Current Leverage means ‘he percentage taken as tozal
bank borrowings drawn over total assets.

Dividend Yield means the ratio of :otal annual dividends
declared for the financial year over narker price per
share.

e Assoclauor.

EPRA means the suropean “ubhc Rea

EPRA EPS 15 the -2RA earnings divided by the weilghted
average rumber of shares inissue in the period.

EPRA LTV 15 the RPRA loan to value rato calculated as
deb net of cash balances divided by the market value
of property (including ne: receivables} as defined n the
EPRA Bes: Practice Guidehnes,

EPRA Net Initial Yield (“EPRA NIY™) 15 calculated as
the annualised rental income based on the cash rents
passing at the balance sheet date less non-recoverable
property operaling expenses, divided by the gross
market value of the property.

EPRA Net Reinstatement Value (“EPRA NRV™) 1€ an
EPRA NAV metnc which assames that entines never sell
assers and aims 1o represent the value required to rebuild
the entity.

EPRA Net Tangible Assets (“EPRA NTA”") 1s an -°RA
NMAV metne which assumes tha: entiiies buy and sell
assets, thereby crys:allising cerain levelg of unavoirdable
defaerred ax.

EPRA Net Disposal Value (“EPRA NDV"™) 15 an =PRA

NAV metnic which represen:s the shareholders value
ander a disposal scenario, where deferred 1ax. filnancal
ngruments and ceriain other adjusimenrs are caloulated
<o the full extent of their habkility, net of any resulting zax

Gross Asset Value means 101al assets
Group means ‘he Company and s subsichanes.

Housing Association or HA means an independent
society, body of trastees or company egrablished for
the purpose of providing low-cos: social housing for
people in housing need generally on a non-profis
making kasis. Any trading sarplus 1s typically used o
main:ain exisung homes and to help finance new ones.
—ousing Associanons are regulated by the Regulator of
Socgial Housing

Investment Adviser means Civizas nvesimen:
Managemen: Lmited ("C.V7 a company incorporated in
sngland and Wales with company number 10278444 1n its
capacly as invesiment adwviser o the Company.

g
g
8
x
>
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IPO means _nuual Pulzhic Offering.

IRR means imternal rate of retum.

Levered IRR means the internal rate of return including
the impac: of debt

Local Authority or LA means the adminstrative bodies
for the local government in mngland comprising 326
authornies dncluding 32 London boroughst.
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Glossary
Continued

Net Asset Value or NAV means the net asset value of the
Group on the relevant date, prepared in accordance with
II'RS accounting principles.

Net Initial Yield means the ranio of net rental income
and gross purchase price of a property.

NHS meansg ‘he pubhicly funded healthcare system of
the Lnired Kingdom comprising The National “ealh
Service in =ngland, NHS Scotland, NHS Wales and Sealth
and Social Care in Northern ‘reland, including, for the
avoldance of doubt. NHS Trusrs,

NHS Trust mesans a legal enuty, set up by order of the
Secretary of State under sechion 25 of, and Schedule 1 to,
the National Fealth Service Ac: 2006, w0 provide goods
and services for the purposes of the health service,

Ongoing Charges means the figure pukhshed annually
Ly the Company which ghows the drag on performance
caused by operanional expenseas, Vore specifically. 1m1s
the annual percentage reduction in shareholder retarns
as a result of recurnng operational expenses assurming
markets remain stane and the portfoho s not traded.
Al'hough the Ongomng Charges figure 1s bagsed on
historical informaton, it provides sharehaolders with an
inchicatiaon of the likely level of cogig that will be incurred
N managing the Company n the future

Portfolio means *he Group's porfolio of assets.

Portfolio Valuation means an independen: valuauon of
the Porfolio by Jones Lang LaSalle Limited or such other
property adviser as the Direciaors may selec: from ame
to ame, based apon the Poridfoho beng held, directly or
indirectlty, warthin a comorate vehicle or equivalen: enuty
which 1s a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company and
otherwise prepared in accordance with 2UCS “Red 300k”
cuidelines.

REIT means a gualifying real estate inves men: Iris:in
accordance with the UK R=ETT Regime inwroduced by the
L« Nnance Act 2006 and subsequently re-wriien in:o
2ar 2 of the Corporation Tax Act 2070

RICS means 2aval nsanaaen of Charered Surveyors

RSH means the Reqgulator of Social Housing, the
execullve non-departmental public body, sponsored
by the Ministry of Fousing, Communiues and Local
Government, which is the requlator for Social Homes
providers in England and Wales.

Social homes or social housing means social rented
homes and other accommodarion that are offered a
ren:s subsidised below market level or are constizuen:s
of other appropriate ren: regimes such as exemp: renss
or are subject to bespoke agreemen: with entiues such as
NH5 Trasts and are provided by Approved Providers.

Specialist Supported Housing or 8§H means soctal
housing which incorporates some form of care or other
ancillary service on the premises.

SPV means special purpose vehicle, a corparate vehicle
in which the Group's propertes are held.

Target Return means the target return on investmenst.

Total Return means Ner Total Retum, being the change
1 NAV over the relevan: penod plus dividend paid

Total Shareholder Return means a measure of the
rerarn Rased upon share price movemen: over “he penod
plus dividend pard.

Valuation meansg an independen: valuaion of the
2orfolio by Jones ang LaSalle amited or such other
property adviser as the Jireciors may selec: from
ame to ame prepared in accordance with RICS "Red
sook” gultdelines and based upon a valuation of each
underlying inves:men: property rather than the valuae
ascribed o the poriffolio and on the assumpiion of

a theorencal sale of each property rather than “he
corporate entlies in which all of the Company’s
invesimen: properiies are held.

WAULT or “Weighted Average Unexpired Lease Term”
15 the produc: of annual contracied rent roll a® penod end
and The tme in years ;0 when the lease expires for each
qiven lease, summed across lgases, and then divided by
the tomal annual consracied rens rell of the porrffolio. The
rezult 1z expressed in years WAULT 15 a key measure of
che qualizy of the Company's porifolio. Long lease terms
underpin the securty of the Company's income stream.
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54 Jenchurch Street
London ~C3M $]Y

Registrar

Link Group

Central Square

29 Wellington Street
Leeds LS1 400

Independent Auditors

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
7 Maore London Riverside
London 857 23T

Legal and Tax Adviser

Cadwalader, Wickersham & Taft LLP
Dashwood Eouse

69 Old 3road Siree:

London mC2M QS

Public Relations Adviser

Buchanan
107 Cheapside
~ondon =C2V 60N

Tax Adviser

BDO LLP
55 Baker Street
London WU 75U
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Civitas Social Housing PLC
ink Company Maters Limied
6:h “loor

65 Gresham Stireert

London U3V 7NO

T 020 3058 4840

E enquiries@civitasim.com

W www.civitasim.com




